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Department of Administration 200 South President Street 
Post Office Box 17 
Jackson. Mississippi 39205·0017 

April 30, 2014 

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and 

Citizens of the City of Jackson, Mississippi: 


A requirement of Mississippi law is that local governments annually publish audited 
financial statements. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 for the City of Jackson, MS is submitted 
herewith. 

An unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Jackson, MS has been 
issued by Banks, Finley & White Co. for the year ended September 30, 2013. The 
Independent Auditor's Report is included in the front of the financial section of the CAFR. 
The City of Jackson is also required to have an audit performed in compliance with the 
Single Audit Act of 1996 regarding grants received from the federal government. The 
Single Audit report was issued by Banks, Finley & White Co. 

The dedicated and professional staff of the Finance Division, Department of Administration, 
prepared this report in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP). We maintain that the data is accurate in all material 
aspects and is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial activities of 
the various funds of the local government. The responsibility for the accuracy of the data 
and the fairness and completeness of the presentation, including any disclosures necessary 
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the fiscal affairs of the City, is entrusted 
to the administration of the local government. We further assert that the internal controls 
implemented provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of any 
material misstatements. 

All of the governmental activities and business-type activities of the City of Jackson, MS, 
as well as the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA) and the Capital City Convention 
Center Commission (component units of the city) are included in the 2013 CAFR. JRA and 
the Capital City Convention Center Commission are presented as a proprietary fund type 
within the CAFR because the City exercises significant oversight responsibility. The 
approval of JRA's administrative operating costs and appointments to its Board of 
Commissioners are authorized by the City's governing body. Additionally, JRA accounts 
for its separate funds and maintains revenues sufficient to meet their operating costs, debt 
service and system replacement and maintenance needs for their parking garages and other 
urban renewal projects. The Capital City Convention Center Commission is accountable as 
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a component unit of the City because of its fiscal dependency on the City of Jackson. 

Four Proprietary Funds, which provide a variety of services on a fee-for-services basis, are 
among those funds whose financial operations are jncluded in the CAFR. These Proprietary 
Funds are the Water/Sewage Disposal System, Madison Sewage Disposal System, 
Transportation, and Sanitation and Recycling. 

Organizationally, the 2013 CAFR provides information in three major sections: 
Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section encompasses the Letter 
of Transmittal, the Organizational Chart of the Executive Branch of the City of Jackson, 
MS, and a list of principal elected and appointed officials. The Financial Section consists 
of the Independent Accountants' Report, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to the 
Financial Statements and the various individual fund and account group financial 
statements and schedules. Additionally, a narrative introduction, overview I and analysis 
are provided in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). We 
recommend that the MD&A on pages 3-11 be carefully examined by the reader to provide 
a more concis~ picture of the financial position of the City. 

DESCRIPTION OF CITY OF JACKSON, MS 

Historical Background 

The City of Jackson, MS was founded in 1 821 at the site of a trading post that was 
situated on a "high and handsome bluff" on the west bank of the Pearl River, which is 
located in the central region of the state. It is said that the trading post was operated by a 
French-Canadian trader named Louis LeFleur, who g'ave the town its original name of 
LeFleur's Bluff. The Mississippi Legislature wanted the seat of government moved out of 
the Natchez area and into a more central location. Thomas Hinds, James Patton and 
William Lattimore were then commissioned to locate the ideal site for the state capital. 
Their report to the General Assembly was that LeFleur's Bluff had "beautiful and healthful 
surroundings, good water t abundant timber, navigable waters, and nearness to the Natchez 
trace." A legislative act dated November 28, 1821 authorized the location to be the 
permanent seat of government and that it would be named Jackson in honor of Major 
General Andrew Jackson who later would become the seventh president of the United 
States. A $3,500 contract was let to build Mississippi's first capitot a two-story brick 
structure 40 feet by 30 feet, where the opening session was held on December 23, 1822. 
A second capitol building, popularly known as the "Old Capitol," was completed in 1840 
and remained in use until 1903. The building, restored in 1961, has become Mississippi's 
Historical Museum. The New Capitol building, a magnificent structure patterned after the 
National Capitol, was completed in 1903. 

During the Civil Wart the town was ravaged and burned three times by Union troops under 
the command of General William Tecumseh Sherman. The destruction prompted the 
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unwelcome nickname of IIChimneyville." Although less than 8,000 people lived in Jackson 
at the turn of the century, its population began accelerating rapidly after 1900. 
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Jackson Today 
Presently, Jackson has 173,514 citizens within it radius of 113 square miles. Since 1985, 
the City of Jackson, MS operates under the mayor-council form of government. Prior to 
1985, the commission form of government, which included a mayor and two 
commissioners elected at-large, was in place. Currently, the municipal government is 
comprised of the mayor, who is elected at large, and seven council members, who are 
elected by ward. The mayor and council members, who have policy-making and legislative 
authority, serve four-year terms. The Mayor appoints, and the City Council approves, the 
Chief Administrative Officer, City Attorney, and eight department heads. City leaders are 
committed to ensuring that the municipality has a healthy financial outlook while providing 
essential services. 

A comprehensive range of municipal services including public safety, street maintenance, 
water, sewer, and sanitation services, social programs, recreation activities, cultural events 
and general administration are provided to Jackson's citizens. These services are provided 
in the context of the broad public policy initiatives as determined by the elected officials of 
Jackson, MS. Youth Development, Public Safety, Economic & Cultural Development, 
Healthy Communities, Improving Government Service and Infrastructure, Transportation & 
Technology Enhancement were the policy initiatives for FY13. 

The City of Jackson, MS is required to submit its municipal budget on an annual basis to 
the City Council for adoption on or before the fifteenth day of the last month in the fiscal 
year. A budget process, linking policy initiatives, services, and available resources, is 
utilized to develop the budget. As the primary financial planning and control document, 
the budget provides the foundation for City operations. The budget is crafted to include 
expenditures by fund: General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Proprietary, Trust, and 
Capital; by department: Administration, General Government, Human & Cultural, Parks & 
Recreation, Police, Fire, Personnel, Public Works, and Planning; and by category: Personal 
Services, Supplies and Material, Other Services and Charges, and Capital Outlay. General 
Property Taxes, Licenses and Permits, Fines and Forfeitures, Intergovernmental, 
Admissions, Fees, Rentals, Interest, Other Revenues~ and Operating Transfers are the 
categories that comprise the revenue budget. During the fiscal year, department heads 
may transfer resources within a department by following established guidelines. These 
transfers, along with other budget adjustments, are incorporated into Budget Revisions that 
must be approved by the City Council. The Executive Branch is afforded the opportunity 
to submit a maximum of three Budget Revisions to the City Council for approval within the 
fiscal year. 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

The City is the seat of government for the State of Mississippi and home to a diverse 
economy. In addition to governmental services, major industries located within the city 
limits or in close proximity include the Nissan auto plant and manufacturers of power, 
metal fabrication, airplane parts, and machine parts and engines. However due to the 
national economic downturn, the city, state, and industries alike have been impacted by 
the national recession. Jackson continues to be the site of the largest financial institutions 
in the state. Numerous healthcare facilities and health service agencies, including the 
state's only medical school provide employment to more than 30,090 professionals and 
staff. 
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As the population, educational, cultural, medical, and governmental center of the state, the 
Jackson metropolitan surrounding area has a relatively stable unemployment rate of 6.9 
percent with an employed labor force of 264,700. This unemployment rate compares 
favorably to the state's overall unemployment rate of 8.6 percent. Over the previous 
years, the unemployment rate has ranged from a high of 8.6 percent to a low of 5.8 
percent for 201 3. 

Jackson, MS, however, is highly dependent upon the public sector as an economic engine. 
While public sector employment is generally more stable than private sector employment, 
the spin-off businesses and entrepreneurial opportunities that are needed for sustained 
growth is not generated at the desired level. Thus, the economic development efforts 
must look toward business-government partnerships as a part of the solution. Towards 
that end, Jackson is poised to realize a number of developments of mixed use facilities in 
the immediate future. 

The City has also begun to benefit from a variety of downtown revitalization efforts. 
These efforts include a recently renovated multi-modal transportation center, completion of 
a major portion of a parkway project to connect downtown to Jackson State University, 
and creation of an entertainment district in and around Farish Street, the oldest African 
American nationally designated historic district. Occupancy in the downtown area is at 85 
percent and is expected to remain stable. The high percentage of college-educated 
residents who reside in Jackson is a positive trend that can further the City's efforts to 
becoming a dynamic urban center. 

The total renovation and completion of the King Edwards Hotel (Hilton Garden) and Class A 
office space at the Pinnacle building along with the opening of the Standard Life Building 
as a mixed use facility has generated a resurgence of downtown. 

Jackson property owners pay property taxes for county, city, and school totalin,g $173.85 
per $1000 of assessed value. The assessment rate is 10 percent for residential property, 
15 percent for other real property and 30 percent for personal property. There is no local 
income tax in Jackson. 

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK 

The City's financial stability is evidenced by the general fund reserve, fund balance reserve 
policy, bond ratings and other fiscal determinants. An Unrestricted General Fund Reserve 
policy that is within range of the level cited by GFOA recommended practice has been 
adopted by the City Council. The City's unreserved fund balance amounted to 23 percent 
of the adopted General Fund operating revenues for FY 13. 

The unassigned General Fund balance available for future appropriation is $26,516,918 
million, which includes $8,946,959 million attributable to the City's General Fund reserve 
policy. An additional $4,498,536 million is reserved for inventories and state tort claims. 
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The City remains an excellent place for investors with ratings of A 1 on G.O. bonds and 
Aa3 on Revenue bonds by Moody's and A + on G.O. bonds and A + on Revenue bonds by 
Standard & Poor's. 

The estimated ratio of net bonded debt to estimated assessed valuations and the amount 
of bonded debt per capita in FY 2013 are useful gauges of the City's debt position. 

POPULATION: 173,514 
BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA: $ 758.24 
REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUE: $ 1,053,717,632 
NET BONDED DEBT (G.O): $ 144,665,000 
RATIO OF DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE: 13.24% 

The following charts reflect activities within the Debt Service Fund and Proprietary Funds: 

BONDS OUTSTANDING 

Category 

Amount Outstanding 

Sept. 30, 2013 

Amount Outstanding 

Sept. 30, 2012 

General Obligation 

General Obligation Note 

Tax Increment Limited Obligation 

Revenue Bonds 

Urban Renewal Bonds -
Component Unit 

Total 

$ 135,465 

9,200 

5,622 

239,265 

12,817 

$ 402,369 

$ 131,290 

402 

6,102 

154,430 

9,865 

$ 302,089 

I' PROPRIETARY FUNDS - CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

L 

Net Income (Loss) 2013 2012 

Water/Sewage Disposal Fund 

Madison Sewage Disposal Fund 

Transportation Fund 

Sanitation and Recycling Fund 

$ (860) 

(82) 

(6,397) 

(354) 

$ (6,530) 

(36) 

1,476 

342 

Total Net Income (loss) $ (7,693) $ (4,748) 
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The City of Jackson participates in two retirement systems administered by the Public 
Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Both systems are defined benefit 
plans and include a multi employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi employer 
pension plan. Substantially, the City of Jackson full-time employees participate in the multi 
employer cost-sharing pension plan. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by 
state law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The employer 
and employees' contributions represented 15.75% and 9.00% of covered payroll, 
respectively. 

\ 

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees' Group Benefit Fund (Internal Service) to 
account for the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of 
Jackson and employees to be used to fund future liabilities and current payment of 
employee medical claims and related administration expenditures of the City's group 
benefit plan. Revenues totaled $8,238,995 and employee benefit costs were 
$14,347,908 during fiscal year 2013. The City's General fund appropriated $6,760,123 
to the Employees' Group Benefit fund. 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 

There are several distinct policies that proyide the framework for the financial operations of 
the City. One such policy is the commitment to conservatism by the Executive Branch in 
projecting its annual revenues. This policy provides a safeguard to drastic reductions in a 
given budget cycle in the event of under budgeted or unbudgeted costs. The City of 
Jackson, MS also has a policy to carefully allocate one time revenues such that operating 
expenses are not increased. 

SELECT RECOGINTIONS 

Recognized as one of 8 cities to participate in the 2014 Community Progress Leadership 
Institute at Harvard Law School. 

The City of Jackson was named the 4th Best U.S. City to Start a Business in a recent study 
from the leading personal finance outlet WalletHub.com. 

Smith Robertson Museum and Cultural Center in downtown Jackson was recognized by 
CNN as 50 states, 50 spots for 2014. 

Certificate of Achievement 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada 
awards a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting to a governmental unit that 
publishes a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that meets the GFOA 
standards. GFOA awarded a Certificate of Excellence to the City in 2012 for its CAFR. A 
Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year only. The City's management believes that 
its 2013 CAFR confirms to the Certificate of Achievement program requirement and 
therefore will submit it for review. 
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FUTURE INITATIVES 

The Construction and development of a Convention Center Hotel remains a top priority for 
the City of Jackson. It is expected that many developers will respond to the Request for 
Proposals and once the hotel is developed will employ 300 persons within the hotel and 
restaurant. 

Farish Street Entertainment District is being developed as a tourist destination which will 
have restaurants and clubs. These venues will provide live music, food and opportunities 
for local talent to perform. The number of jobs is estimated at 600. 

The 21 acre property, centrally located off of I-55, known as the Old Mississippi School for 
The Blind has been acquired and being developed as the site for the District at Eastover 
Development which is proposed to include a 100,000 square foot office building, an 80­
120 room hotel, a 45,000 square- foot grocer, a restaurant, 125,000 square feet of retail, 
120,000 square feet of residential units, and a four screen movie theater. 

The Landmark Health Care Facility has been completed and is a state of the art five story 
medical office complex with medical offices, restaurants and retail outlets located on 
State Street. 

Growth along the Mississippi Healthcare Corridor (Woodrow Wilson Drive) is expected in 
the coming years with University of Mississippi Medical Center having hired 1,800 
employees over the last 18 months. 

The Highway 80 initiative plans for a cooperative effort amongst many different groups. 
The City of Jackson has relocated 300 City employees to the Metro Center Mall to create 
an impetus for other businesses to locate within that area. The Jackson Redevelopment 
Authority has designated the Highway 80 Corridor as an Urban Renewal Area and has 
shown different sites to developers for future development. 

The Iron Horse Grill business occupies 10,000 square feet, with the Mississippi Music 
Experience Museum in 4,000 square feet, and the Headquarters for the Mississippi Blues 
Trail in the remaining 1,000-2,000 square feet. This facility opened in December and 
employs over 120 employees. 

The adaptive re-use of historic structures called "Capitol Lofts" will create 31 units of artist 
housing, community areas, and art gallery/studio space. This development is located 
across the street from the successful King Edward/Standard Life Mixed-Use Project and 
will further the revitalization of the western end of Downtown Jackson. Capitol Art Loft, 
LLC is a Joint Venture between HRI Properties and Black White Development. 

A 205 room Westin Hotel with restaurants and shops is slated to break ground in 
downtown Jackson in June, and when opened will employ 150 full time jobs. 

A Whole Food Market opened in Highland Village in February and employs over 120 
employees. This is the only Whole Food Market in the state of Mississippi. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor Tony Yarber 
and Honorable Members of the City Council 
City of Jackson, Mississippi 

W~ have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
financial statements of the component units of the City of Jackson, MiSSissippi, as follows: Jackson Redevelopment 
Authority and the Capital City Convention Center Commission which statements reflect assets and revenues of 
11.24 percent and 6.80 percent. respectively, of the business-type activities funds. Those financial statements were 
audited by other auditors, whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the 
amounts included for these component units, are based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.­

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Jackson, 
Mississippi, as of September 30,2013, and, the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Federal Grants Special Revenue 
Fund, and the Capital Project Improvement Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE· RIDGELAND, MS 39157. (601) 353-5423. FAX (601) 353-5426 
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I 
Other Matters I 
Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion I 
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 11 and 81 through 95 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing' the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the Information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Jackson, Mississippi's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules, capital asset schedules and statistical 
section' are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profits Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the 
City of Jackson, Mississippi. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.pqrst 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 3D, 2014, on our 
consideration of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

:;9:::\:0/~~~. 
April 30, 2014 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


As financial management of the City of Jackson, we offer readers of the City of Jackson's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Jackson for the 
fiscal year ended September 30,2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found on pages i-viii of this report. 

Financial Highlights 
The assets of the City of Jackson exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 

$407 million (net position). Of this amount, there is $114 million in unrestricted net position, which 

may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The government's total net position decreased by $12 million. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined 

ending fund balances of $54.1 million, an increase of $4.4 million in comparison with the prior year. 

Approximately forty-seven (47) percent of this total amount is $26.5 million (unassigned) and is 

available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

At the end of the current fiscal year unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $26.5 million, 

or twenty-three (23) percent of total general fund expenditures. 

The City of Jackson's total debt increased by $105 million (31.3 percent) during the current fiscal 

year. 


Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Jackson's basic 
financial statements. The City of Jackson's basic financial statements comprise three components: 
1 )government-wide financial statements, 2)fund financial statements, and 3 )notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Jackson's finances, in a manner similar to a private­
sector bUsiness. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Jackson's assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between the two reported as net position.' Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Jackson is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Jackson that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Jackson include general 
government, public safety, public works, human & cultural services, employee benefits, and interest on 
long term debt. The business-type activities of the City of Jackson include water/sewer, transportation 
and sanitation. 

The government-wide financial statements include the City of Jackson itself (known as the primary 
government), and a legally separate redevelopment authority and Capital City Convention Center 
Commission for which the City of Jackson is financially accountable. Financial information for these 
component units are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary 
government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report. 



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Jackson, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Jackson can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Jackson maintains seventeen (17) individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Federal Grant Fund, Debt Service 
Fund, Improvement Fund, 1998 General Obligation Bond Fund, 2003 General Obligation Bond Fund, 
2006 General Obligation Bond Fund, 2009 General Obligation Bond Fund, and Capitol Street 2-Way, all 
of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other eight (8) governmental funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major gov­
ernmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Jackson adopts an annual budget for all of its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has 
been provided to demonstrate compliance with the budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-25 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City of Jackson uses enterprise funds to account for its Water/Sewage Disposal 
System Fund, Madison Sewage Disposal System Funds, Transportation Fund and Sanitation Funds. 
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among 
the City of Jackson's various functions. The City of Jackson uses an I nternal Service Fund to account for 
its Employee Group Health Benefit Fund. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the 
Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund and Sanitation Fund, both of which are considered to be major 
funds of the City of Jackson. Data from the other two (2) proprietary funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major proprietary funds is provided 
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The Internal Service Fund is presented in 
the Proprietary Fund financial statements as governmental activities. 

The basic proprietary fu nd financial statements can be found on pages 26-30 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for 
others and therefore are not available to support City programs. The function of the City's principal trust 
fund is discussed in Note 6.A.2. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net position and 
are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. The purpose of the City's Agency 
Funds is to collect and remit to the related organizations the proceeds of a special sales tax received from 
the State. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-32 of this report. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 33-81 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Jackson's progress in funding 
its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required 
supplementary information can be found on page 82 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and non­
major proprietary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on 
pensions and other post-employment benefits. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules 
can be fou nd on pages 83-104 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. I n the case of the City of Jackson, assets exceeded liabilities by $410 million at the close of 
September 30,2013. 

By far the largest portion of the City of Jackson's net position (68.4 percent) reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Jackson uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Jackson's 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

city of Jackson's Net Position 
(amounts expressed in thousands) 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

2013 2012 
150,448 $ 147,~8 

299,768 291,238 

450,216 439,206 

Business-type 
Activities 

2013 2012 
$ 180,091 $ 91,789 

374,219 358,491 

554,310 450.280 

$ 

. Total 
2013 2012 
330,539 $ 239,757 
673,987 649,729 

1,004,526 889,486 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 69 2,737 2,806 

Long-term liabilities outstand i1g 
Otrer Liabiities 

Total Liabilities 

197,035 
36,795 

233,810 

180,507 
97,438 

277,945 

276,476 
17,327 

293,803 

174,841 
17,951 

192, 792 

473,511 
54,122 

527,633 

355,348 
115,389 

470,737 

Deferred InflONs of Resources 69,630 69,630 

Net postion: 
Invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position $ 

179,234 
13,446 

(45,855) 
146,825 

187,510 
15,041 

(41,290) 
$ 161,261 

101.011 

159,496 
$ 260,507 

184,185 

73,303 
$ 257,488 $ 

280,245 
13,446 

113,641 
407,332 $ 

371,695 
15,041 
32,013 

418}49 

The City of Jackson's total net position decreased by $11.4 million during the current fiscal year, 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

City of Jackson's Changes in Net Position 
(amounts expressed In thousands) 

Revenues: 
Program revenLeS 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contrbutions 
Captal grants ard contrirutions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
otrer 

Governmental 
Activities 

2013 2012 

$ 15,821 $ 
12,261 
11,291 

72,437 
32,718 

8,245 
829 

16,954 
10,114 

1,970 

74,856 
32,701 

8,218 
843 

$ 

BUSiness-type 
Actlvfties 

2013 2012 

56,040 $ 
582 

4,675 

265 

60,561 
631 

2,844 

501 

$ 

Total 
2013 

71,861 $ 
12,843 
15,966 

72,437 
32,718 
8,245 
1,094 

2012 

77,515 
10,745 
4,814 

74,856 
32,701 
8,218 
1,344 

Total revenues 153,602 145,656 61,562 64,537 215,164 210,193 

Expenses: 
General government 
Public safety 
Publicworks 
Human and cultural services 
Employee benefits 
Interest on long-term debt 
WaterlSeNer 
Nonmajor 
Sanitation 

40,602 
64,780 
24,662 
14,311 

7,860 
8,2211 

29,456 
57,055 
24,721 
13,756 
8,685 
7,448 

48,891 
7,636 

11.699 

55,347 
7,044 

11,894 

40,602 
64,780 
24,662 
14,311 
7,860 
8,230 

48,891 
7,636 
11,6~ 

29,456 
57,055 
24,721 
13,756 
8,685 
7,448 

55,347 
7,044 

11,894 

Total expenses 160,445 141,121 68,226 74,285 228,671 215,406 

Increase in net position before transfers 
Transfers 

(6,843) 
(9,585) 

4,535 
(5,000) 

(6,664) 
9,585 

(9,748) 
5,000 

(13,507) (5,213) 

Increase in net position 
Net position - October 1,2012 

Prior year adjustment 
Net pos itio n • Seplember 30, 2013 

(16,428) 

161,261 

1,992 
$ 146,825 $ 

(465) 

161,726 

161,261 

2,921 

257,488 

98 
$ 260,507 

(4,748) 

262,236 

$ 257,488 $ 

(13,507) 

418,749 

2,000 
407,332 $ 

(5,213) 

423,962 

418,749 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City of Jackson's net position by $14.4 
million. 

In FY 2007, the City issued $65 million in General Obligation Bonds on behalf of the Capital City 
Convention Center Commission to construct the Convention Center. A special sales tax levy was 
established to pay the debt service for the bonds. The bonds couldn't be issued as revenue bonds 
because of the uncertainty of the sales tax collections; therefore, the bonds were issued as GO Bonds of 
the City with full, faith and credit of the City. The asset (the Convention Center facility) is the property of 
the Capital City Convention Commission and recorded on the books of the Commission, but the liability 
(the bonds to construct the Convention Center) is on the books of the City. 

In prior years, the City had not presented the asset resulting from the 1997 contribution of bond proceeds 
to fund the actuarial accrued liability for the MRS plan. In 2007, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, the City calculated its net penSion 
obligation. In adopting GASS Statement l'Jo, 27, the City has increased net position - beginning of year 
in the government wide financial statements of governmental activities by $25.6 million to recognize the 
net pension asset calculated under GASB Statement No. 27. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS I 
Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Jackson uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. I 
Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Jackson's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in I 
assessing the City of Jackson's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Jackson's net position by $3 I 
million. This increase is primarily in the Water Sewer fund. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities I 
60 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

Water/Sewer Trans portation Sanitation 

I 
Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities 

(f) 
c 
.Q 50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

o 

-Expenses 

_Program 
Revenues 

Capital 
Grants & 

Contributions 
8% 

Operating 

I 

I 


Contributions_----:::iIIrl~ 
Unrestricted 
Investment 
Earnings 

0% 

Grants and 

1% 

I 

I 


8 I 



l 

l 

L 


l 

l 
l 
l 

CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $54.1 million, an increase of $4.4 million in comparison with the prior year. 
Forty-seven (47) percent of this total amount is $26.5 million which is available for spending at the 
government's discretion (unassigned). Of the remaining fund balance, $2,283,393 is nonspendable and 
is not in spendable form, $5,589,932 is restricted and has limitations imposed on its use by external 
parties, $19,639,967 is committed for specific purposes imposed by the City Council, and $49,140 is 
assigned for various purposes by the Director of Administration. Additional information on governmental 
fund balance can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the Financial Statements including information on the 
specific purpose for amounts restricted, committed, and assigned. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Jackson. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $26.5 million, while total fund balance reached $32.9 
million. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund 
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. 

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City of Jackson's general fund decreased by 
$1,039,491. The increase in fund balance for the federal grant fund $592,842 is for a variety of restricted 
purposes. The debt service fund has a total fund balance increase of $495,249 which is partially revenue 
from property taxes and the payment of debt. The increase in fund balance for the improvement fund 
$1,877,345 is to liquidate contracts and purchase orders. The reduction in fund balance for the 1998 GO 
Bond ($186,987) and the increase in fund balance for the 2003 GO Bond $37,831 is the natural spend 
down of bond proceeds. The increase in fund balance for the 2006 GO Bond $1,034 is for the 
construction of the Capital City Convention Center. The 2009 GO Bond had a fund balance decrease of 
($1,813,794) due to indebtedness incurred during the year. The Capitol Street 2-Way is a new fund 
balance; therefore, it does not have a comparison to the prior year. 

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $2.8 million, all of which is reserved for the payment of 
debt service. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund at the end of the year amounted to 
$154.6 million. The increase in net position for the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund was $1.8 
million. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget expenditures were a $4.8 million 
increase and can be briefly summarized as follows: 

• 	 $1.0 million increase in capital outlay 
• 	 $1.8 million increase in contract services and charges 
• 	 $1.5 million decrease in personnel services 
• 	 $3.5 million increase in supplies and materials 

Significant budgetary expenditure variances between the final amended budget and actual results are as 
follows: 

• 	 Actual personnel services for all city departments was $4.0 million less than the final budget. 
• 	 Actual capital outlay for all city departments was $1.4 million less than the final budget. 
• 	 Actual contractual services and charges throughout all city departments was $3.2 million less 

than the final budget. 
• 	 Actual supplies and materials for all city departments was $3.7 million less than the final 

budget. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City of Jackson's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type 
activities as of September 30, 2013, amounts to $674 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, machinery and 
equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges. The total increase in the City of Jackson's investment in 
capital assets for the current fiscal year was 3.7% (a 2.9% change for governmental activities and a 4.4% 
increase in business activities). 

iJI./Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: .. 
The increase in total net position was the continued expenditure of prior bond issue proceeds 
for expansion and replacement of infrastructure. 

City of Jackson's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

(amounls expressed in thousands) 

Land 
Bulding & systems 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

2!m 21m 
14,443 $ 14,500 
54,390 55,880 
15,170 11,965 

117,200 114,907 
98,566 93,986 

Business-type 
Activities 

2!1~3 211~ 2 
$ 1,838 $ 1,838 

37,667 40,375 
16,460 16,373 

136,172 141,365 
182,082 158,540 

$ 

Total 
2!1~3 

16,281 $ 
92,057 
31,630 

253,372 
280,648 

211~2 
16,338 
96,255 
28,338 

256,272 
252,526 

Total $ 299,769 $ 291,238 $ 374,219 $ 358,491 $ 673,988 $ 649,729 

Additional information on the City of Jackson's capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 53-56 of 
this report. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson had total bonded debt 
outstanding of $380 million, Of this amount, $141 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and 
credit of the City. The remainder of the City of Jackson's debt represents bonds secured solely by 
specified revenue sources (I.e., revenue bonds). 

_,..<... 
;. 

City of Jackson's Outstanding Debt 

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Other Loans 
(amounts expressed in thousands) 

Governm ental Busi ness-type 
Activities Activities Total 

201:1 20U ::!!I~~ 21m 21113 2!1~ 2 

eneral obigation bonds $ 135,465 $ 131,290 $ $ $ 135,465 $ 131,290 
Revenue bonds 239,265 154,430 239,265 154,430 

ax increment bonds 5,622 6,102 5,622 6,102 
Special obligation bonds 
Loans, notes and leases 37,456 27,883 22,517 15,647 59,973 43,530 

Total $ 178,543 $ 165,275 $ 261,782 $ 170,077 $ 440,325 $ 335,352 

The City of Jackson's total debt increased by $105 million during the current fiscal year. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


The bond ratings services from Standard & Poor's and Moody's establish that bonds marketed by the City 
have favorable investment qualities. Presently, the city has the following ratings: 

Moody's Standard & Poor's 
Revenue Aa3 A+ 

L 
 General Obligation Bonds A1 A+ 

Urban Renewal Revenue Bonds Aa3 A 

l 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 15 percent 
and 20 percent of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Jackson under 

l 
the 15% rule is $100 million in excess of the City of Jackson's outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information on the City of Jackson's long-term debt can be found in Note 4 on pages 59-69 of 
this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

l 
L 

Major revenues sources are expected to remain basically at eXisting levels. 

Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Jackson's budget for the 2013 fiscal year. 

l During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund increased $.2 million. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Jackson's finances for all 
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided 
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of 
Administration, Office of the Director, P.O. Box 17, Jackson, MS, 39205-0017. 
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(t' City of Jackson 

Statement of Net Position 
As of September 30, 2013 

~; Primarl: Government ComEonent Units .. Capital City 

"­

Jackson Convention 

~. Governmental Business-Type Redevelopment Center 
Activities Activities Total Authority Commission 

ASSETS 

• Cash and cash equivalents .5 56,701,722 $ 5,442,484 S 62,144,206 $ 1,498,470 $ 3,094,975

L Accounts receivable, net 82,759 33,429,291 33,512,050 

L 
Other receivable 75,561,942 5,344,764 80,906,706 4,170,547 1,238,707 

Intergovernmental receivable 2,436,611 4,367,990 6,804,601 

Internal balances 4,067,463 (4,067,463) 

L 

Inventories 2,283,393 1,567,929 3,851,322 46,074 

~. Prepaid Expenses 1,903 19,623 

Net pension asset 9,314,358 9,314,358 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 33,208,402 33,208,402 294,256 1,815,627& 

L. Investments 100,797,819 100,797,819 500,000 

l 
Capital assets: 

Land 14,443,131 1,837,999 16,281,130 4,538,425 5,792,683 

Buildings 54,389,841 37,667,271 92,057,112 29,531,367 68,231,265 

L 
Automotive and equipment 15,169,819 16,460,039 31,629,858 148,118 4,623,492 

Infrastructure 117,199,964 136,171,941 253,371,905 

Construction in Progress 98,565,717 182,082,132 280,647,849 

Property held for development 1,913,270 
~ Total assets 450,216,720 554,310,598 1,004,527,318 42,096,356 85,362,446L DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred amount on refunding 69,116 69,116 


l Total deferred outflows of resources 69,116 69,116 


LIABILITIES 
,. Liabilities:

L Accounts Payable 8,590,025 9,089,970 17,679,995 328,995 555,032 

Accrued interest payable 777,167 539,750 1,316,917 146,732 

Unearned revenue 234,108

l " '. Other liabilities 5,269,461 4,300,811 9,570,272 22,682 163,518 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Net other postemployment benefits 22,158,371 3,396,629 25,555,000t Due within one year 17,946,658 11,822,722 29,769,380 530,467 

Due in more than one year 179,088,333 264,653,354 443,741,687 11,383,073 
;:" Total liabilities 233,830,015 293,803,236 527,633,251 12,411,949 952,658

L DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Resources received before time requirements 69,630,198 69,630,198 
r 

L NET POSITION 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 179,234,070 101,011,290 280,245,360 26,844,151 78,647,440 

Restricted for: 
~': Debt service 2,826,592 2,826,592 8,190.. 
L 

Capital projects 8,087,748 8,087,748 196,873 

Other purposes 2,215,143 2,215,143 

" Capital City Convention Center 316,661 316,661 2,315,627 

Unrestricted (45,854,59°1 159,496,072 113,641,482 2,635,193 3,446,721 
Total net position $ 146,825,624 $ 260,507,362 $ 407,332,986 $ 29,684,407 $ 84,409,788 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. L 
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City of Jackson 

Statement of Activities 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 

Net (Expenses) Revennes and 

Program Revenues in Net Position 
Operating Capital Primary Government Component Unit 

Capital City 
Jackson Convention 

Charges (or Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Redevelopment Center 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Authority Commission 

Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 40,602,366 $ 14,203,812 $ 5,495,750 $ 987,035 $ (19,915,769) $ $ (19,915,769) $ $ 
Public safety 64,780,373 823,136 2,164,976 128,907 (61,663,354) (61,663,354) 
Public works 24,661,412 199,691 10,175,363 (14,286,358) (14,286,358) 
Human and cultural services 14,311,147 594,552 4,599,858 (9,116,737) (9,116,737) 
Employee benefits 7,859,559 (7,859,559) (7,859,559) 
Interest on long-term debt 8,229,932 (8,229,932) (8,229,932) 
Total governmental activities 160,444,789 15,821,191 11,291,305 (121,071,709) (121,071,709) 

Business-type activities: 
Water/Sewer 48,891,553 44,052,148 68,628 1,481,704 (3,289,073) (3,289,073) 
Transportation 7,553,699 676,999 480,000 3,154,366 (3,242,334) (3,242,334) 
Madison Sewage 82,034 108 (81,926) (81,926) 
Sanitation 11,698,635 11,3\0,872 33,316 39,225 (315,222) (315,222) 

Total business-type activities 68,225,921 56,040,019 582,052 4,675,295 (6,928,555) (6,928,555) 
Total primary government $ 228,670,710 . $ 71,861,210 $ 12,842,636 $ 15,966,600 $ (121,071,709) $ (6,928,555) $ (128;000,264) $ $ 

Component units: 
Jackson Redevelopment Authority $ 2,990,829 $ 1,319,358 $ 459,241 $ 465,000 $ $ $ $ (747,230) $ 
Capital City Convention Center Commission 9,644,414 2,094,815 150,000 (7,399,599) 

Total component units $ 12,635,243 $ 3,414,1 73 $ 609,241 $ $ (747,230) $ (7,399,599) 
General revenues: 

Property taxes 72,437,081 72,437,081 

Sales taxes 32,718,158 32,718,158 4,147,810 
Franchise taxes 8,244,729 8,244,729 

Unrestricted investment earnings 144,701 249,137 393,838 153,339 9,326 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 107,822 15,245 \23,067 
Miscellaneous 576,747 576,747 

Transfers (9,584,840) 

Total general revenues and transfers 114,493,620 153,339 
Change in net position (\3,506,644) (593,891) (1,649,693) 

Net position - beginning ofyear as previously reported 161,261,325 257,488,219 418,749,544 30,278,298 86,059,481 

Prior period adjustment 1,991,610 98,476 2,090,086 

Net position beginning of year as adjusted 163,252,935 257,586,695 420,839,630 30,278,298 86,059,481 

Nel position - ending $ 146,825,624 $ 260,507,362 $ 407,332,986 $ 29,684,407 $ 84,409,788 

The notes to the financialstalemenls are an integral part of this statement. 
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CHy of Jackson 
Balance Sheet 

Governlllcniallrunds 

General Fund Federal Grant Debt Service 

As of Sepiember :10,1013 

Improvement 1998 GO 
Fund Iloud 

2003 GO 
Bond 

200liGO 
Bond 

2009 (;0 
Bond 

Capilol 
Street 2-way 

Nonmajor 
Govcmmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other receivable 
Intergovernmental receivable 
Deferred cbarges 
Special assessment receivable 
Due from olher funds 
Inventories 

$ 33,164,677 
61,156,112 

29,462 

4,270,963 
2,283,393 

$ 2,110,413 
3,500 

1,197,644 

$ 3,014,340 
3,562,712 

97,069 

$ 3,986,280 

79,811 
549 

$ 178,236 $ 2,547,958 
500,153 
942,602 

$ 316,661 $ 2,509,134 $ 2,213,803 

187,092 

$ 4,940,428 
8,282,886 

$ 54,981,930 
73,505,363 

2,436,611 
549 

97,069 

Totul assets $ 178,236 $ 3,990,713 $ 316,661 $ 2,509.134 $ 13,223,314 $ 137,575,878 

UAIUUTJES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Contracts and Retainnge Payable 
Due to other funds 
Other liabilities 

Totnlliabilities 

$ 5,478,397 

4,624,069 

10,102,466 

$ 539,110 

203,500 
66,070 

808,680 

$ 187,748 

187,748 

$ 376,364 
40,128 

380,984 

797,476 

$ '$ 
759,627 

759,627 

$ $ 82,157 $ 
149,446 

149,446 

$ 493,746 

198,338 

691.084 

$ 7,157,522 
949,201 
203,500 

5,269,461 

13,579.684 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OR RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue-deferred revenue 
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 57,875,779 

374,086 
3,659,781 8.007,198 

374,086 
69,542,758 

Total deferred inflows of resources 57,875,779 374,086 3.659,781 8,007,198 69,916,844 

fund Balances 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 

Conunitled 
Assigned 

Unassigned 
TOlal fund halances 

2.283,393 
491,691 

3,585.220 
49,140 

26,516,918 
32,926,362 

2.128.791 

2,128,791 

2,826.592 

2,826,592 

3,269,164 

3,269,164 

178.236 3,231,086 316,661 

316,661 

2,426,977 

2,426,977 

2,251,449 

2,251,449 

2,254,777 
2,269,255 

2.283,393 
7.701,851 

17,528,048 
49,140 

26,516,918 
54,079,350 

Tota1liahillies, deferred intlows of 
resources and fund balances 

$ 100,904,607 1,557 $ 6,674,121 $ 4,066,640 $ 178,236 $ 3,990,713 $ 316.661 $ 2.509,134 $ 2,400,895 $ 13,223,314 $ 137,575,878 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of Ihis statement 
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City of Jackson 


Reconciliation of Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

To the Statement of Net Position 


September 30, 2013 


Amount reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 54,079,350 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 299,768,472 
therefore are not reported in the funds 

I 
-., 

Net pension assets recorded in governmental activities that are not a financial 
resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 9,314,358 

Internal service ftmd is used to account for the group benefit plan. I
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are 

included in governmental activities in the statement of net position 1,318,872 
 I 

Receivable recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide 
statements but not on the fund statements 2,056,957 

Revenues that were earned but unavailable to the city and recorded as unearned 
in the fund statements 189,577 

Net other postemployment benefit recorded in governmental activities that are 
not a financial resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds (22,158,371) I 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 


Bonds and loans payable, net of refunding gains, premium and discounts (167,926,187) 

Deferred bond issuance costs 68,567 
 I
Accrued interest on long-term debt (777,167) 

Capital leases (18,166,906) 

Compensated absences (4,380,299) 
 I 
Claims payable (2,077,732) 

Workers' Compensation Benefits (4,483,867) 


Net position of governmental activities $ 146,825,624 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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City of .lack.vn 


Statement of Revenues, ExpendilUl'cs, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Govermnental Funds 

For the Year Knded SClltember 30, 1013 

REVENUES 
General property laxes 
Licenses and penllils 
Intergovernmental 
Fines and forfeilmes 

assessments 
fees. rentitls and concessions 

Interesl 
Olher 

General Fund 

$ 56,969,881 
2,291,103 

37,100,428 
3,922,722 

3,900,056 
77,521 

14,833,080 

Federal Grant 

$ 

7,700,060 

3,900 
230,281 

Debt Service 

$ 3,747,054 

105,279 

2,908 

11,038 
3,349,293 

Improvement 
Fund 

$ 1,058,472 

428,921 

7,640 

1998 GO 
8muJ 

$ 

3,144 

$ 

2003 GO 
Bond 

7,166,4'63 

10,956 

1006 GO 
Bond 

$ 

1,034 

2009 GO 
Bond 

$ 

200,000 

13,117 

Capitol 
Street l-way 

$ 

2,137,562 

975 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 8,250,160 

696,096 

251,734 
15,378 
10,714 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 70,025,567 
2,291,103 

55,534,809 
3,922,722 

2,908 
4,151,790 

144,703 
18,423,368 

Total revenues 

EXI'ENDlTURRS 
Current: 

General govenmJel1t 
Public safety 
Public works 
Human and Cultural services 
Employee benefits 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest and service charges 

Capital outlay: 
General govemment 
Public works 
Public safety 

Human and Cultural services 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over (Imder) expenditures 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 
Transfers OUI 

Proceeds from capitalized leases 
Issuance of debt 
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow 
Prem.ium Oil GO bond issuance 
Bond Issuance Cost 
Sale of Bon'.s 
Sale ofcapilal assets 

Total olber financing sources (uses) 

119,094,791 

24,956,351 
52,415,561 
11,410,033 
3,917,212 
1,709,807 

5,429,081 
5,276,080 
9,540,155 

4,156,194 

274,804 
(17,492,945) 
12,129,816 

(204,757) 

97,397 
(5,195,685) 

7,934,241 

4,319,468 
148,749 

7,841 
3,563,640 

28,760 

5,437 

49,455 

57,994 
8,181,344 

(247,103) 

1,149,183 
(312,159) 

2,925 
839,949 

7,215,572 

1,309,348 

2,779,628 
5,032,227 

9,121,203 

(1,905,631) 

2,322,300 

(69,891,032) 
5,738,416 
(708,804) 

64,940,000 

2,400,880 

__1_,42~,033 

80,048 

2,013,'129 

(598,444) 

2,475,789 

2,475,789 

3,144 

190,131 

190,131 

(186,987) 

7,177,419 

7,139,588 

37,831 

1,034 

1,034 

213,117 

2,026,911 

(1,813,794} 

2,138,537 

349,839 

1,788,698 

462,751 

462,751 

9,224,082 

52,535 
21,921 
94,593 

6,272,017 
6,070,314 

104,374 

(3,734,92Il 

3,715,446 
(8,940,133) 

14,135 
11,098,377 

7,500 
5,&95,325 

154,496,970 

30,717,750 
52,586,231 
23,232,365 
13,752,869 
7,780,121 

2,779,628 
5,060,987 

5,434,518 
5,276,080 
9,693,984 

685,566 
157,000,099 

(2,503,129) 

10,400,273 
(26,745,237) 
12,143,951 
11,098,377 

(69,891,032) 
5,738,416 
(913,561 ) 

Nel change ill fund balances (1,039,491) 592,846 495,249 1,877,345 (186,987) 37,831 1,034 (1,813,794) 2,251,449 2,160,398 4,375,880 

Fund balances at beginning ofyear 33,965,853 1,535,945 2,331,343 1,391,819 365,223 3,193,255 315,627 4,240,771 2,363,634 49,703,470 

Fund balances al end of year $ 2,128,791 $ 2,826,592 $ 3,231,086 $ 316,661 $ 4,524,032 $ 54,079,350 

The nOles to Ihe fInancial slatements are all integral part of tbis slatement. 
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City of Jackson 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues 


Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

To the Statement of Activities 


For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 
ofactivities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded 
depreciation in the current period 

The issuance oflong-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to 
Governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal oflong-term debt consumes the 
current fmancial resources of the governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, 
discounts and similar items when debt is fIrst issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred 
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences 
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items 

Activities from debt related transactions 

New capital lease proceeds reported in the fund statements 

Retirement ofprior leases 

Long term debt proceeds recorded in the fund statements 

Premium on debt issuance 

Bond issuance costs 

Amortization of deferred bond issuance cost 

Payment to escrow agent 


Decrease in net pension asset reported on the statement of activities that do not require current 
fmancial resources and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds 

Increase in net other postemployment benefits liability reported on the statement ofactivities that 
do not require current financial resources and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds 

Expenses reported on the statement of activities that do not require current fmancial resources 
and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds 

Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide statements but are not 
recognized on the fund statements 

Internal service fund net activity not reported on the governmental fund statement 

Change in the net position of governmental activities 

The notes to tl1e financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 4,375,880 I 

8,530,245 

I 

I 


68,680,656 

(12,143,951) 

11,034,898 


(79,843,377) 

(5,738,416) 


(324,700) 

(342,832) 
 I(462,683) 

d(6,470,728) 

(4,295,615) 

230,094 

(1,002,474) I 

I 


$ (16,427,311) 

I 
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l 	 City of Jackson 

General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

Variance with 
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget­

Ori;lnal Final Amounts l!ositive!negativel 
Revenues: 

General property taxes 
Current realty taxes $ 34,566,429 $ 34,566,429 $ 33,445,178 $ (1,121,251) 
Current personal taxes 14,063,813 14,063,813 14,294,210 230,397 
Ad valorem taxes on automobiles 6,338,249 6,338,249 6,992,611 654,362 
Delinquent taxes 450,000 450,000 1,275,705 825,705 
Delinquent personal taxes 50,000 50,000 88,362 38,362 
Interest on delinquent taxes 590,000 590,000 773.397 183,397

L Community improvement 177,000 177,000 100,418 {76,582} 
Total general property taxes 56,235,491 56,235,491 56,969,881 734!390 

Licenses and permits 
Privilege licenses 460,000 460,000 426.895 (33,105) 
Building permits 825,000 825,000 823,873 (1,127) 
Air conditioning and duct permits 60,000 60,000 36,334 (23,666) 
Plumbing permits 60,000 60,000 28,934 (31,066) 
Electric permits 165,000 165,000 126,269 (38,731) 
Gas Permits 55,000 55,000 33,237 (21,763) 
Historic preservation application 1,000 1,000 1,196 196 
Landscape permits 220 220 

~... Dance hall and other recreational fees 8,000 8,000 5,637 (2,363)
I. 	 Landfill charges 1,Q95,869 1,095,869 658,455 (437,414) 

Taxicab license fees 2,000 2,000 1,159 (841) 
Sign permits 40,400 40,400 59,730 19,330 
Zoning permits 25,000 25,000 21,843 (3,157) 
Combustible and flammable liquid permits 6,950 6,950 7,580 630 
Fireworks Display Permit 200 200 400 200 
Aircraft registration 5,000 5,000 6,563 1,563 
Transit Merchants-Peddlers License 5,000 5,000 4,250 (750) 
Adult entertainment-and License 30,000 30,000 14,132 (15,868) 
Special event fee 5,000 5,000 11,810 6,810 
Maintenance fees 7,000 7,000 11,196 4,196 
Fire inspection permit 8,000 8,000 "7,190 (810) 
Annual vehicle inspecton 4,000 4,000 4,200 200 

Total licenses and permits 	 2,868
1
419 2,868,419 21291,103 {577,316l 
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I 
City of Jackson 


General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, ExpendJtures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 


For the Year Ended September 30,2013 


Variance with 
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-

OrlSinal Flna) Amounts £!osltlve!negative) 
Revenues (Continued): 

Intergovernmental Revenues: 
State Grants and Shared Revenues: 

Alcohol permits $ 262,000 $ 262,000 $ 269,900 $ 7,900 

Gasoline Tax 29,000 29,000 25,615 (3,385) 

Municipal revolving fund 95,633 95,633 90,809 (4,824) 

State reimb training academy 121,557 121,557 

State fire protection 868,204 868,204 924,776 56,572 

Sales tax 31,736,136 31,736,136 32,034,088 297,952 

Bus & truck privilege tax 465,664 465,664 417,631 (48,033) 

Wireless radio cOlIlmunica.tion program 150,000 300,000 42,307 (257,693) 

Historic Preservation 4,784 4,784 

Homestead exemption 1,435,000 1,435,000 1,614,Q43 179,043 


Total state grants shared revenues 35,0411637 35,1911637 35,5451510 353,873 

Federal and State Grants and Shared Revenues: 


HITDAGrant 20,000 20,000 (20,000) 

COPS- Universal Hire 1,108,177 1,108,177 881,810 (226,367) 

MOOT Summer Youth reimbursement 28,216 28,216 (4,464) (32,680) 

Smith Robertson Museum 7,600 7,600 

MOOT Litter Pick Up 10,000 10,000 18,321 8,321 


FEMAIMEMA Disaster 162,000 162,000 3,714 (158,286) 

Other police grants 116,135 116,135 55,644 !60,491~ 


Total federal and state shared revenues 1,444,528 1,4441528 962,625 {481,903) 
County Revenues: 


Pro rata road tax 521,890 521,890 592,293 70,403 


Hinds County 911 Funds 63,395 {63,3952 

Total county revenue 521,890 585,285 592,293 7,008 

Total intergovernmental revenues 37,008,055 37,221,450 37,100,428 (121,022) 
Fines and Forfeitures: 


Court & misdemeador fines 960,000 960,000 849,194 (110,806) 

Vchicle parking fines 163,000 163,000 n5,752 (27,248) 

Moving traffic violations 1,580,000 1,580,000 1,332,775 (247,225). 

City court costs 22,000 22,000 17,600 (4,400) 

Bad check fee and Warrant fee 177,400 177,400 182,820 5,420 

Animal control citations 2,000 2,000 1,529 (471) 

Municipal court computer 22,000 22,000 19,857 (2,143) 

Municipal court drivers impr fee 40,000 40,000 41,200 1,200 

Expungement fee 7,400 7,400 7,300 (100) 

Jackson collection fee 146,000 146,000 156,723 10,723 

Miscellaneous Court Docket fee 145,000 145,000 143,786 (1,214) 

Dropped charge fee 6,000 6,000 4,900 (1,100) 

Cash bond - clearing account 25,000 25,000 (4,320) (29,320) 

Rearraignmeot fee 20,000 20,000 27,000 7,000 

Daily storage fee-vehicle 28,660 28,660 26,169 (2,491) 

Administrative fee - del cases 410,000 410,000 404,754 (5,246) 

Contempt fee 150,000 150,000 176,607 26,607 

Computerized Crime prevention 31,000 31,000 24,203 (6,797) 

Municipal Court Enhancement fee 150,000 175,895 199,062 23,167 

Jackson Enhancement fee 99,427 99,427 

Wrecker fees 85,000 85,000 76,384 (8,616~ 


Total fines and forfeitures 4,170,460 4,196,355 3,922,722 {273,633) 
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L 

City of Jackson 


General Fund 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 


For the Year Ended September 30,2013 


Variance with 
Budget Amount Actual Final Budget-

Original Final 

Revenues (Continued): 

Admissions, Fees, Rentals and Concessions: 

Parking meters 

Municipal AuditOlium: 

Rentals 

Concessions 

Local record fee 
Pistol Range rent 
Outdoor adversting 
Fire Water flow test fee 

Fire Reports 
Accident report fee 

Background check fee 

Bail bondsman applicant photo 

Bail bondsman mug shot fee 
Bail bondsman ID card 
Fingerprinting 

Verification ofrecords 

Fire sprinkler plans review 
Rents & RoyaUties 
Telecommunication Franchise Agreement 
Tower Rentals 
Arts Center: 

Admissions, rents and royalties 

Community room rent 
Concessions 

Planetarium: 
Admissions,Discovety Shop, etc, 

Senior Centers Reservation Fee 
Smith Robertson Museum: 

Gift shop 

Donations 
Admissions, rental 
Total admissions and rentals 

Interest: 

Earned on investments 
Total interest earned 

Amounts 2ositlve(neGativei 

179,268 $ (732) 

63,268 (4,532) 

2,270 70 

5,454 454 

2,833 1,833 

12,967 967 

2,250 (250) 

8,580 (920) 

86,510 (13,490) 

11,745 (255) 

105 (145) 

45 (255) 

675 (25) 

16,220 220 

22,699 (7,301) 
5,575 1,500 

1l,090 90 
664,514 397,514 

2,740,851 89,851 

3,627 (2,373) 

14,195 5,195 

584 284 

30,333 (16,667) 

5,095 (105) 

: 663 (87) 

3,762 (638) 

4,878 (3221 

180,000 $ 

67,800 

2,200 
5,000 

1,000 

12,000 
2,500 
9,500 

100,000 

12,000 

250 

300 

700 
16,000 
30,000 

4,075 
11,000 

267,000 
2,651,000 

6,000 

9,000 

300 

47,000 

5,200 

750 
4,400 

5,200 

180,000 $ 

67,800 
2,200 

5,000 

1,000 
12,000 

2,500 

9,500 
100,000 

12,000 

250 
,300 

700 
16,000 

30,000 
4,075· 

11,000 

267,000 
2,651,000 

6,000 

9,000 

300 

47,000 

5,200 

750 
4,400 

5,200 

3,450,175 3,450,175 3,9001056 449,881 

204,800 2041800 77,521 {127,2791 
204,800 204,800 77,521 1127,279l 

RECEIVED 


JUN 2 3 2014 
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,.;j{• 

City of Jackson 

General Fund 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

Budg:et Amount Actual 
Ori&inal Final Amounts 

Revenues (Continued): 
Other Revenues: 

Public utility 4,610,814 $ 4,610,814 $ 4,221,553 
Franchise cable television 1,623,000 1,623,000 1,589,645 
Water Sewer Franchise Fee 830,597 830,597 830,597 
Nuclear power plant 1,594,985 1,594,985 1,602,934 
Small animal control 3,500 3,500 9,695 
Police-sale of weapons 17 
Parking fee-City employees 10,000 10,000 12,180 
Police 353,300 353,300 462,984 

Public Safety Communications 40,000 40,000 2,667 
Indirect cost 2,608,590 2,608,590 2,583,552 
Street index books 1,000 1,000 60 
Sale ofland 10,000 10,091 3,857 
Care and maintenance of public buildings 3,938 
Downtown Jackson Partners· 155,874 155,874 135,117 
Rabies vaccination 1,091 
Plumbing exam 75 
Electrical exam 100 100 751 
Penalty on demo/grass/weeds 150,000 150,000 83,806 
Cemeteries-openings!closings 11,000 11,000 10,900 
Site plan review planning 13,000 13,000 15,612 
Construction plan review 3,000 3,000 
Building & Permit mise 100,000 100,000 107,053 
Cafeteria plan-flexible spending 150,000 150,000 134,744 
Administrative fee-payroll deductions 13,000 13,000 14,048 
Sale of maps, plans, and specifications 3,000 3,000 829 
Traffic 1,000 9,113 4,305 
Legal/City ClerkIFinance and Management 18,786 18,786 6,664 
Fire Museum donations 1,000 1,000 580 
Fire-ArsonlIntemal Affairs donations 630 . 910 
Fire Department 2,700 2,700 4,997 
Grants & Donations 65,000 130,462 47,622 
I.D. Badge fee-city employee 600 600 690 
Abtract fees 6,000 6,000 8,640 
Settlement of insurance claim 82,000 2,082,689 2,054,710 
Proceeds from assets and forfeitures 52,000 153,531 167,099 
Hinds County· Outside Jail 198,206 280,013 
PEG Revenue 209,044 209,044 149,489 
Other 18,478 279,656 

Total other revenues 12,722,890 15,116,090 14,833,080 
Total revenues 116,6601290 119,292,780 119,094,791 

Variance with 

Final Budget-


I!0sltlve!n egativ e! 


$ (389,261) 
(33,355) 

7,949 
6,195 

17 
2,180 

109,684 

(37,333) 
(25,038) 

(940) 
(6,234) 
3,938 

(20,757) 

1,091 
75 

651 
(66,194) 

(100) 
2,612 

(3,000) 
7,053 

(15,256) 
1,048 

(2,171) 
(4,808) 

(12,122) 
(420) 
280 

2,297 
(82,840) 

90 
2,640 

(27,979) 
13,568 
81,807 

(59,555) 
261,178 

{283,0IOl 
{197,989} 
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l 
City of Jackson 


General Fund 


Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 


For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Variance with 
BudGet Amount Actual Final Budget­

Ori~inal Final Amounts I!0sitive~ne;ative) 

L 
Expenditures: 

Current Operations: 


General Govemment 

Administartion and Intra-govermnental


L Personnel services $ 11,428,687 $ 11,106,370 $ 10,334,718 $ 771,652 

Supplies 1,080,354 1,525,403 947,676 577,727 

Other services and charges 8,804,983 9,790,387 8,308,776 1,481,611 

Capital outlay 2,513,568 2,838,460 3,112,971 ~274,511} 


Total Department of Adminstration 23,827,592 25,260,620 22,704,141 2,556,479 

Personnel 

Personnel services 794,136 779,136 684,822 94,314 
Supplies 14,557 13,657 6,276 7,381 
Other services and charges 152,695 175,995 155,462 20,533 
Capital Outlay 1,734 1,734 327 1,407 

l 
Total Department of Personnel 963,122 970,522 846,887 123,635 

Planning 
Personnel services 2,633,099 2,635,768 2,559,016 76,752 
Supplies 104,632 145,535 101,115 44,420 
Other services and charges 4,077,326 4,487,115 4,172,794 314,321 
Capital Outlay 5,388 5,012 1,478 3,534 

Total Department of Planning 61820,445 7,273,430 6,834,403 439,027 

Total General Government 31,611,159 33,504,572 30,385,431 31119,141 
Department of Human and Cultural Services 
Health and Welfare 

Personnel supplies 1,227,291 1,239,243 1,207,804 31,439 
Supplies 33,725 37,704 33,014 4,690 
Other services and chargers 1,837,231 1,846,184 675,501 1,170,683 
Capital outlay 2721065 313,078 282,042 31,036 

Total Health and Welfare 3,370,312 3,436,209 2,1981361 1,237,848 
Culture and Recreation 

Personnel services 575,796 539,937 495,Q93 44,844 
Supplies 96,933 104,258 80,114 24,144 
Other services and charges 376,816 398,908 1,425,686 (1,026,778) 
Capital outlay 10,770 21275 8!495 

Total Culture and Recreation 1,049,545 1,0531873 21003,168 {949,2951 
Total Department of Human and Cultural Services 4,419,857 4,490,082 4,2011529 288,553 

Department of Public Safety 
Personnel services 48,788,401 47,783,331 45,530,939 2,252,392 
Supplies 3,000,015 3,902,175 3,164,653 737,522 
Other services and charges 3,841,154 4,414,839 3,719,969 694,870 
Capital outlay 8,856 486 873,545 9,540,156 {666,611}1 81

Total Department of Public Safety 64,486,056 64,973,890 61,955,717 3,018,173 
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I 
City of Jackson 

General Fund 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Variance with 
Budeet Amount Actual Final Budget­

Ori&inal Final Amounts I?osltive~negative~ 

Expenditures (Continued): 
Department of Public Works 


Personnel services $ 7,967,215 $ 7,809,315 $ 7,070,463 $ 738,852 

Supplies 1,946,376 3,999,586 1,744,651 2,254,935 

Other services and charges 3,086,722 2,960,985 2,594,919 366,066 

Capital outlay 740,359 1,317,824 5t276,080 (3,958,256l 


Total Department of Public Works 13,740,672 16,087,710 16,686,113 ~598,403l 


Current Operations 

Employee Benefits 


Supplies 65,000 105,000 94,554 10,446 
Other services and charges 1,8811403 1,819,403 1,615,253 204,150 

Total Employee Benefits 1,946,403 1,924,403 1,709,807 214,596 

Total expenditures 116,204,147 120,98°1657 114,938,597 6,042,060 

Excess(deficiency) ofrevenues over expenditures 456,143 (1,687,877) 4,156,194 5,844,071 


Other Financing Sources(Uses) . 
Transfers in 849,239 999,410 274,804 724,606 
Tranfers out (17,631,377) (17,985,931) (17,492,945) (492,986) 
Proceeds from long tenn debt 6,113,000 6,145,955 12,129,816 (5,983,861) 
Sale ofcapital assets 170,000 170,000 97,397 72,603 
Bond Issuance Cost (204,757} 204,757 


Total other fmancing sources(uses) (10,499,138! pO,670,566~ {5,195,685l (5,474,881 l 

Net change in fund balance (10,042,995) (12,358,443) (1,039,491) 11,318,952 


Fund balances at beginning of year 33,965,853 33,965,853 33,9651853 
Fund balances at end ofyear $ 23,922,858 $ 21,607,410 $ 32,926,362 $ 11,318,952 

The notes to the financial statements are an ingra1 part of this statement. 
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City of Jackson 

Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 


Budget Amount 

Variance with 
Final Budget ­

f,~ 
Ori~inal Final Aetuals Amounts eositive(negative)II. 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental $15,764,556 $ 17,428,712 $ 7,700,060 $ (9,728,652) 
ji,'..f~ Interest 3,900 3,900 

L 
Other 230,281 23°1281 

Total revenues 15,764,556 17,428,712 7,9341241 (9,494,471) 

EXPENDITURES 

L Current Operations: 

Personnel Services 4,482,023 3,566,563 3,398,652 167,911 

Supplies 869,284 965,265 684,160 281,105 
••j ~ Other Services and Charges 10,578,390 12,079,439 3,956,886 8,122,553.. 

Capital Outlay 1,169,631 1,728,551 112,886 1,615,665 

,tt Debt Service: 

L Interest and service charges 28,760 (28,760) 

L 
Total expenditures 17,099,328 18,3392818 82181,344 10,158,474 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,334,772) (911,106) (247,103) (664,003) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 


,z· : Transfers in:
L 
General Fund 1,219,661 1,256,050 1,149,183 (106,867) 

Transfers out: f· 
Enterrprise Fund (312,159) (312,159)II. 
Sale of capital assets 21925 2,925 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 1,219,661 1,256,050 839,949 (416,101)';"
L 

' 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other fmancing 

~ : sources over expenditures and other uses (115,111) 344,944 592,846 247,902 

it Fund balances at beginning of year 1,535,945 1,535,945 1,535,945 

i·· ' .. 
Fund balances at end of year $ 1,420,834 $ 1,880,889 $ 2,128,791 $ 247,902
~; 

l The notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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L 
City of Jackson 

l 
 Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 


As of September 30, 2013 


L Water/Sewage Nonmajor 

L 
Disposal Enterprise Internal 
System Sanitation Funds Totals Service Fund 

A.ssets 
c Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,272,261 $ 1,116,806 $ 53,417 $ 5,442,484 $ 1,719,792 

Accounts receivable, less allowances 26,917,007 6,512,284 33,429,291 82,759 
~ 

Intergovernmental receivables 1,572,632 2,795,358 4,367,990Ii. 

l 
Other receivables 5,344,764 5,344,764 


Restricted Assets 


Cash and cash equivalents 16,559,338 16,559,338 

Inventories 1,567,929 1,5671929 

l Total Current Assets 56,233,931 7,629,090 2,848,775 66,711,796 1,802,551 

Noncurrent Assets: 

e

L Restricted Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 16,649,064 16,649,064 

~. Investments 100,797 819 100,797,819
¥l' 1
iii Total Noncurrent Assets 117,446,883 117,446,883 

l Capital Assets: 

l 
Property, plant and equipment, at cost 


Land 1,387,999 450,000 1,837,999 


Buildings 117,830,080 57,301 187,903 118,075,284 


Water plant, distribution system and equipment 258,742,877 943,632 259,686,509 


Automotive and other equipment 1418251667 3,016,697 11,184,243 29
1
026,607 


~ 
392,786,623 3,073,998 12,765,778 408,626,399L 

Less: accumulated depreciation {207,985,035) (1,975,3942 {6,528,720) (216,489, 1492 

L 
184,801,588 1,098,604 6,237,058 192,137,250 

!,' 

Construction in Progress 179,644,018 2,4381114 182,082,132 

Net property, plant and equipment 364,445,606 1,098,604 8,675,172 374,219,382 

L Total assets $ 538,126,420 $ 8,727,694 $ 11,523,947 $ 558,378,061 $ 1,802,551 

LThe notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

L 
lr

" 
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dCity of Jackson 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

As of September 30, 2013 


Water/Sewage Nonmajor 
Disposal Enterprise Internal 
System Sanitation Funds Totals Service Fund 

Liabilities and Fund Equity 

Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets: 

Accounts/claims payable $ 3,861,865 $ 847,685 $ 193,072 $ 4,902,622 $ 1,121,407 I 
Due to other funds 4,067,463 4,067,463 


Compensated absences 257,387 23,179 9,006 289,572 ,
I 
Note payable 2,727,269 2,727,269 

Retainage payable 4,187,348 4,187,348 

Customer deposits 4,300,811 4,300,811 

Current portion of Long-Term Debt: ­
Lease obligations 1,120,649 206,639 219,587 1,546,875 I 
State Department ofEnvironmental Quality 1,654,006 1,654,006 

Total Current Liabilities Payable 

from Unrestricted Assets 

Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets: 

Revenue bonds 

Accrued interest payable 

Total Current Liabilites Payable 

from Restricted Assets 

18,109,335 

5,605,000 

539,750 

6,144,750 

1,0771503 4,489!128 23,675,966 

5,605,000 

539,750 

6!144,750 

1,121,407 

I 
I~ 

i 
~ 

Total Current Liabilities 

Post Employment Benefits accrual 

Long-Term Debt 

(less amounts classified as current liabilities): 

Compensated absences 

Revenue bonds 

(net of unamortized discount/premium) 

Lease obligations 

State Department of Environmental Quality 

Total Long-Term Debt 

24,254,085 

2,976,682 

206,225 

247,812,579 

2,006,232 

13,999;190 

264,024,226 

1,077,503 

370,541 

44,919 

213,757 

258,676 

. 4,489,128 

49,406 

370,452 

370,452 

29,820,716 

3,396,629 

251,144 

247,812,579 

2,590,441 

13,999,190 

264,653,354 

1,121,407 

~:)' 

d 
I.;. 

I 
Total Liabilities 

Net Position 

291,254,993 1,706,720 41908,986 297,870,699 1,121,407 -Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Unrestricted 

92,247,949 

154,623,478 

678,208 

6,3421766 

8,085,133 

~I,470,I72l 

101,011,290 

159,496,072 681,144 I
.. 

Total Net Position 246,871,427 7,0201974 6,614,961 260,507,362 681,144 

TotalliabiUties and net position $ 538,126,420 $ 8,727,694 $ 11,523,947 $ 558,378,061 $ 1,802,551 I 
The notes in the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. 
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l City ofJackson 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended September 30,2013

L 
Water/Sewage Nonmajor 

Disposal Enterprise Internal

L Slstem Sanitation Funds Total Service Fund 

Operating Revenues: 

l Sales to customers $ 44,052,148 $11,310,872 $ 676,999 $ 56,040,019 $ 

Contributions 4,838,542 

Contributions - City Match 2,931,695
i

L Other revenues 68,628 33,316 480,108 582,052 468,758 

Total Operating Revenues 44,120,776 11,3441188 11157,107 56,622,071 8,238,995 

loperating Expenses: 

Personnel services 10,438,837 1,158,092 221,643 11,818,572 

L
Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Depreciationl Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

4,712,482 

21,021,583 

8,807,942 

44,980,844 

{860,068l 

324,838 

9,893,952 

321,753 

11,698,635 

{354,4472 

854,221 

5,738,794 

821,075 

7,635,733 

~6,478,626l 

5,891,541 

36,654,329 

9,950,770 

64,315,212 

{7,693,141 l 

14,347,908 

14,347,908 

{6,108,913l 

t 

~ Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Lmterest revenue 245,826 3,192 119 249,137 3,114 

mterest and service charges on long-term 

debt and capitalized lease obligations (3,503,063) (3,503,063) 
z,_ 

Gain (Joss) on sale of capital assets 15,245 15,245 

Amoltization of bond issuance cost {407,646i {407,646l 

L Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (3 649,638) 3,192 119 {3,646,327) 3,1141

Income (loss) before contributions 

L and transfers {4,509,706l (351,255l {6,478 5072 ~11,339,468) (6,105,7992 z

'i, Capital contributions from grants 1,481,704 39,225 3,154,366 4,675,295 

Transfers In: 

L General Fund 

Special Revenue Fund 

1£• Enterprise Fund •Capital Projects Fund 

Transfers Out: 

L1:, General Fund 

Enterprise Fund 

L Special Revenue Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

8,933,503 

(252,630) 

(92,098) 

(1,775,540) 

{2I 026,671 2 

312,159 

(15,544) 

4,409,563 

92,098 

4,409,563 

312,159 

92,098 

8,933,503 

. (268,174) 

(92,098) 

(1,775,540) 

(2,026,671 2 

6,760,123 

Total Transfers In (Out) 4,786,564 296,615 4,501,661 9,584,840 6,760,123 
:' 

L Change in Net Position 1,758,562 (I5,415l 1,177,520 2,920,667 654,324 

Total net position - beginning, as previously reported 245,014,389 7,036,389 5,437,441 257,488,219 26,820 
,. 
~i Prior pedod adjustment 98,476 98,476 

.. Total net position - beginning, as restated 245,112,865 7,036,389 51437,441 257,586,695 26,820 

,. ' Total net position - ending $ 246,871,427 $ 7,020,974 $ 6,614,961 $ 260,507,362 $ 681,144 

B . 28 
.. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthi8 statement. 
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City of Jackson 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 


For the Year Ended September 30,2013 
 I 
Nonmajor I

Water/Sewer Enterprise Internal Service 
Dis~osal S~stem Sanitation Funds Total Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities I 
Receipts from customers and users $ 35,428,433 $ 10,697,284 $ 676,999 $ 46,802,716 $ 7,770,237 


Receipts from other revenue 68,628 33,316 (1,656,716) (1,554,772) 
 461,351 I 
Payments to suppliers (26,370,733) (10,221,626) (5,577,713) (42,170,072) (13,635,013) . 

Payments to employees !9,829,577} {1,08417782 ~2171992l ,11,1321347l 
Net Cash provided by (used for) 

Operating Activities (703,249) (575,804) (6,775,422) (8,054,475) (5,403,425) I 
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Transfers In 8,933,503 312,159 4,501,661 13,747,323 6.760,1231 

Transfers Out 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activites 

(4, 146,939} 

41786,564 

(151544) 

296,615 4,501,661 

(4,162,483 ) 

9,584,840 6,76°1123 I 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related I 
Financing Activities 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

(23,912,868) 

15,245 

(538,797) (758,270) (25,209,935) 

15,245 
-tj 

Proceeds from capital debt 

Principal paid on capital debt 

Proceeds from capital contributions 

99,540,043 

(7,372,929) 

1,481,704 

(323,514) 

39,225 

76,540 

(212,094) 

3,154,366 

99,616,583 

(7,908,537) 

4,675,295 
I 

Proceeds from capital debt - premium and discount 

Interest paid on capital debt 

14,143,535 

(6,544,7472 
14,143,535 

C6,544,747} -­
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related 


financing activities 77 349,983 {823,086) 2,260,542 78,787,439
1 -I 
Cash Flow Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities: 

Purchase of investment securities (98,764,533) (98,764,533) . , 

Interest on investments 245,826 3,192 119 249,137 3,114 

Net Cash provided by investing activities (98,518,7072 3,192 119 (98,515,396) 3,114 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (l7,085,409) (1,099,083) (13,100) (18,197,592) 1,359,812 I 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 54,566,072 21215,889 66,517 56z848,478 359,980 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 37,480,663 $ 1,1161806 $ 53,417 $ 38,650,886 $ 1,719,792 I 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

I 
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L City of Jackson 
Statement of Cash Flows 

l 
 Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30,2013 


"" Nonmajor 
Water/Sewer Enterprise Internal Service 

Dis~osal S~stem Sanitation Funds Total Fund 
L 

t . 

La.econclliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:LOperating income (loss) $ {860!068} $ (354,447) $ (6,478,626) $ {7!693,141) $ (6,J08,913i 
Prior period adjustment 98,476 98,476 

~. Depreciation Expense 

II. (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net 

8,807,942 

(3,057,637) 

321,753 

(613,588) 

821,075 9,950,770 

(3,671,225) (7,407) 

(Increase)decrease in inventories l (Increase) decrease in other receivable 

275,449 

(5,566,078) (2,131,481 ) 

275,449 

(7,697,559) 

'. (Increase) decrease in deferred charges 162,041 162,041 

(Increase) decrease in due to other funds 1,138,519 1,138,519 

LIncrease (decrease) in accounts payable and retainage 

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 

(1,086,998) 

(18,345) 

(2,836) (128,560) (1,218,394) 

(18,345) 

712,895 

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 8,140 (2,584) 283 5,839 
~.. Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 36,007 36,007 

Increase (decrease) in other Iiabilties 497,822 75,898 3,368 577,088 

f Total adjustments 156,819 !221 ,357l {296,7962 (361,334) 705,488 

ilaNet cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (703,249) $ (575,804) $ (6,775,422) $ (8,054,475) $ (5,403,425) 

l Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing 

Activities: 

Borrowing under capital lease $ 1,989,445 $ $ 76,540 
\'

it
Recap of cash and cash equivalents: 

l 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,272,261 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 33,208,402 

$ 1,116,806 $ 53,417 $ 5,442,484 

33,208!402 

$ 1,719,792 

$ 37,480,663 $ 1,116,806 $ 53!417 $ 382650,886 $ 1,719,792 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 


FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


ITrust Funds Agency Funds 

Assets I 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 441,372 $ 12,242 

Investment at fair value: 


Certificate of deposit 32,270 
 I 
Total assets $ 473 2642 $ 12,242 

d 
II 

Liabilities and Net Position I 
Liabilities: 

Payables to others $ $ 12,242 

Total liabilities $ 122242 

Net Position: 
Held in trust 473!642 

Total net position 473 2642 

Total,liabilities and net position $ 473!642 

The notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

I 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 


l 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

l 

Trust Funds 

Additions: 
Interest $ 1,449 
Other additions 209z274 

Total additions $ 210,723 

Deductions: 
General government 
Trust funds $ 1661338 

Total deductions 1661338 

L 
 Change in Net Position 44,385 


Net position at beginning ofyear 429,257 

Net position at end ofyear $ 473 1642 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

L 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2Q13 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) is incorporated under the Laws of the State of Mississippi. The 
City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with a full-time Mayor elected from the City at 
large and seven part-time Council members (City Council) elected from wards. The City's major 
operations include police and fire protection, parks and recreation. public works, public transit system, 
urban development and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates a water 
and sewer system. 

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GAS B) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the 
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30. 1989 
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has the option to apply 
FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City 
has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the 
City is discussed below. 

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed potential component units for 
which the City mayor may not be financially accountable and as such, be included within the City's 
financial statements. The component units discussed below are included because of the significance of 
their operational or financial relationships with the City. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Using the criteria above, management has determined that the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA) 
and the Capital City Convention Center Commission should be reported as discretely presented 
component units of the City. The discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns 
in the government-wide statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the primary government. 
The following is a summary of the City's discretely presented component units. . 

The Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA) was established in 1968 under Section 43-35-1 through 235 
of the MiSSissippi Code of 1942, as annotated. In 1970. ~IRA became the Parking Authority for the City 
under the same statute. The Mayor of the City makes appointments to a seven-member Board of 
Commissioners for staggered five-year terms to oversee the operations of JRA. Members may be 
removed from office for inefficiency. neglect of duty or misconduct in office. The City Council appropriates 
the administrative operating budget and must review and approve any amendments or budgetary 
adjustments. The City Council is responsible for designation of those urban renewal projects undertaken 
by JRA. The City makes annual contributions necessary to pay a portion of JRA's urban renewal bonds 
and has agreed to make payment of stlbstantially all of the outstanding bonds. JRA operates on a 
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type. 
Complete financial statements for JRA may be obtained at its administrative office located at 218 South 
President Street, Jackson. Mississippi 39201. 

The Capital City Convention Center Commission. a non-profit corporation, was authorized to be created 
by House Bill 1832 during the 2004 Regular Session of the Mississippi State Legislature. The entity is 
governed by nine commissioners. The Mayor of the City appoints hotel/motel members for initial terms of 
one and three years, respectively, restaurant members for initial terms of two and four y(?ars, respectively. 
The Mayor appoints. two members representing the business community for initial terms of one and five 
years. respectively. The Mayor appoints two members at large for initial terms of two and three years, 
respectively. One member is appointed by the Governor of Mississippi for an initial term of four years. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (Continued): 

A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued): 

The City issued $65,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds for the development of the proposed 
Convention Center. The Capital City Convention Center Commission has jurisdiction and authority over 
all matters relating to the acquisition, construction, furnishing, equipping, erection, operation. 
maintenance, and promotion of a convention center. The Commission submits its budget and certain 
other planned actions to the City for comment prior to initiation. The Commission operates on a 
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type. 
Complete financial statements for the Capital City Convention Center Commission may be obtained at 
P. O. Box 3563. Jackson, Mississippi 39207. . 

Related Organizations 

The following four agencies are non-profit corporations established within the City of Jackson. The Mayor 
appoints the board members of each respective agency as confirmed by the City Council. Each agency is 
fiscally independent from the City of Jackson, issues its debt, approves its budgets, and sets its rates and 
charges. The primary government has no authority to remove board members, deSignate management, 
or approve or modify rates. The City of Jackson is not obligated in any manner for the debt issues of 
these agencies. Financial statements for these agencies can be obtained at the following addresses: 

Airport Authority Jackson Housing Authority 
100 International Drive 2747 Livingston Road 
Jackson, MS 39208 Jackson, MS 39213 

Jackson Public School District Metro Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau 
662 'South President Street 921 North President Street 

Jackson, MS 39201 Jackson, MS 39202 

Joint Ventures 

The Jackson/Hinds Library System (the System) operates under a joint agreement between the City and 
Hinds County and is funded equally by the City and the County. The joint agreement was effective 
October 1, 1986. All buildings used by the System within the City of Jackson are owned and maintained 
by the City and, as such, have been included in the capital assets of governmental activities. The 
Jackson/Hinds Library System's finanCial statements· may be obtained by writing to 300 North State Street, 
Jackson, MS 39201. 

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS 

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and 
fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The City's police and fire 
protection, parks and recreation, public works. and general administrative services are classified as 
governmental activities. The City's water/sewer, sanitation, and public transit services are classified as 
business-type activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net position, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns (a) are presented on the consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on the full accrual, 
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt 
and obligations. The City's net position is reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net of related 
debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The City first utilizes restricted resources to 
finance qualifying activities. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2013 
 RECEIVEO 

JUN 2 3 2014 
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

B. 	 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS 
(Continued): 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the City's 
functions and business-type activities (police, fire, public works, etc.). The statement of activities 
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to applicants who use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Operating 
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital 
grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 

The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (police, fire, 
public works, etc.) or a business-type activity. Taxes and other items I')ot properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. The net costs (by function or business-type 
activities) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or gas tax, intergovernmental 
revenues, interest income, etc.). . 

The City does not allocate indirect cost. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund to 
the other operating funds that is eliminated like a reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense in 
the General Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance, personnel, 
purchasing, legal, technology management, etc.). 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the changes in the 
City's net position resulting from the current year's activities. Separate financial statements are provided 
for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and 
expenditures/expenses. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
City's Proprietary Funds and of the City's Internal Service Funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services. Operating expenses for Proprietary Funds and Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales 
and services, direct administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

~ .•. 

C. 	 MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fUnd and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Agency funds are used to report resources in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal 
liabilities). So, agency funds cannot be said to have a measurement focus, however, they do use the 
accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items 
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 


Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30,2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued): 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City 
receives cash. 

The CitY reports,the following major government funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
transactions of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Federal Grant Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of various federal grant programs. I 
Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the subsequent 
disbursement of such resources to pay principal and interest 6n long-term debt of the City (other than debt 
of the Enterprise Funds). Bond ordinances require the City to account for debt service transactions in 
separate funds, restrict the flow of cash between such funds, and comply with various other covenants. For 
financial statement reporting, the various debt service funds have been combined. 

Improvement Fund - This fund is used,to account for revenues that are legally restricted for improvements 
to City facilities. The revenues are provided by external grantors. 

1998 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $35,000,000 
issued to finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, construction of a youth detention 
center, and repairing buildings. 

2003 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $20,000,000 
issued to finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, repairing and the construction of 
municipal buildings, infrastructures, and other related improvements. 

2006 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $65,000,000 
issued to finance the acquisition, construction, equipping, and furnishing of a convention center in the City 
to be known as the Capital City Convention Center and other authorized costs. 

2009 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of 
$26,210,000 issued to pay the costs of constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, 
parkways and public parking facilities. 

Capitol Straet 2-Way - This fund is used to account for revenues restricted for improvements to Capitol 

Street. 


The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund ~ This fund accounts for activities associated with the 

provision of water, sewerage and water pollution control services to individuals, organizations and 

other governmental units within and around the City. 


Sanitation Fund - This fund accounts for activities associated with the City's sanitation and ;.•.. 
recycling service. II 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30,2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued): 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal SelVice Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other 
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and 
therefore are not available to support City programs. The City has three trust funds, the 
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund, and the 
Mausoleum Trust Fund. The function of the City's principal employee benefit trust fund, the 
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, is discussed in NOTE 6.A.2. The function of the 
Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund is to account for contributions from the public sector which is 
held in trust for fire and police allowable claims. The function of the Mausoleum Trust Fund is to 
maintain and upkeep the Henry Mausoleum. 

The purpose of the City's Agency Funds is to collect and remit to the related organizations the 
property taxes collected and proceeds of a special sales tax received from the State. The reporting 
focus is on net position and changes in net position and is reported using accounting principles 
similar to proprietary funds. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business­
type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No. 
34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of 
either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. 
The nonmajor funds are combin~d in a column in the fund financial statements. 

The City's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fundS financial statements. Because the 
. principal users of the internal services are the City's governmental activities, the financial statements of 
the internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental activities column when presented in the 
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is reported in the 
appropriate fun'ctional activity (police, fire, public works, etc.). 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWSIINFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposit accounts, petty cash, and certificates of deposit with a 
maturity date generally within 90 days of the date acquired by the City. Collateral as further discussed in 
Note 4.A, is pledged by the various financial institutions to secure City funds. 

2. Receivables 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated 
portion that is expected to be uncollectible. 

3. Investments 

Investments are recorded at fair value with all investment income, including changes in the fair value of 
investments, reported as revenue in the financial statements. Income from short-term interest bearing 
securities is recognized as earned. Statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Government obligations, 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30,2013 


Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWSIINFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): 

3. Investments (Continued) 

U.S. Government agency obligations, State of Mississippi obligations, and obligations of a corporation of 
the U.S. Government. 

Securities traded in a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at 
current exchange rates. Short-term investments are reported at fair value when published prices are 
available, or at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. For individual 'investments 
where no readily ascertainable fair value exists, the City of Jackson, in consultation with its investment 
advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values. 

4. Restricted Assets' I
Certain proceeds of the City's Proprietary Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for 
their payment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in 
separate bank accounts and trust accounts and their use is limited by 'applicable bond covenants. 
Restricted amounts in governmental activities include amounts set aside by law for state tort claims and I 
amounts accumulated for general obligation bond debt service. ' 

5. Inventories 

Inventories are priced at cost using the weighted average method. Inventories are accounted for using 
the consumption method and are not charged out until used. Inventories consist of major stores of 
materials and supplies held at central locations. The user departments and other funds of the City are I 
charged for the cost value of the items, as they are withdrawn from inventory. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair 
market value at the date received. The City's classes of capital assets and their capitalization levels are: 
land - cost or fair market value, buildings - $50,000, land improvements - $25,000, machinery and 'I"f: 

equipment - $1,000, infrastructure - $100,000, and construction in progress - based on the project's class. 
The cost of normal maintenance and repair that do not add to the value of capital assets or materially 
extend their respective lives are not capitalized. Interest expenditures within governmental activities are 
not capitalized. 

Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated u~ing the straight-line method 
over the following estimated useful lives: I 

Assets 
Buildings 
Land improvements 
Heavy machinery and I 
equipment 
Computer equipment 3 
Vehicles 3-10 
Infrastructure 8-50 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30,2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED· OUTFLOWSIINFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): 

6. Capital Assets (Continued): 

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets constructed with the proceeds of tax-exempt debt. The 
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of 
the borrowing until completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same 
period. 

The City has a collection of artwork presented for public exhibition and education that is being preserved 
for future generations. The proceeds from the sales of any pieces of the collection are used to purchase 
other acquisitions. The collection is not capitalized or depreciated as part of capital assets. 

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic 
signals, etc. 

7. Compensated Absences 

. The City accrues accumulated unpaid personal leave and associated employee-related cost when earned 
(or estimated to be earned) by employees up to 240 hours. For the Proprietary Funds and the 
government-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following year. 
In accordance with GMP, for the governmental funds, all of the compensated absences are considered 
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item between the fund level 
and government-wide· presentation. The compensated absences liability is liquidated by the following 
funds: general fund, special revenue, transportation, sanitation & water/sewer. .. 

8. Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums and Issuance Costs 

In the governmental funds, bond discounts, bond .premiums and issuance costs are treated as period 
costs in· the year of issue. Bond premiums and discounts are shown as an "Other Fh)ancing 
Sources/Uses" . 

In the proprietary funds and government-wide financial statements, bond discounts, bond premiums and 
issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the terms of the bonds outstanding method, which 
approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and premiums are presented as a reduction 
and increase, respectively, of the face amount of the revenue bond payable. Bond issuance costs, 
excluding any prepaid bond issuance, are reported as· expenses in the year of the debt issuance. Gains 
(losses) on refundings are reported as deferred outflowslinflows of resources. 

9. Interfund Activity 

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are 
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near fair market rates are treated as 
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefiting fund. and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund 
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as 
part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. . 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): I 
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWSIINFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): I 
10. Revenues 

Substantially all governmental fund. revenues are accrued. Property taxes are recognized at the levy date. 
All property taxes are billed, collected and recognized as revenue within the same period for which they 
are levied. Subsidies a'nd grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from I
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses re.sult from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the enterprise fund and of the governmenfs internal service funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds I 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
In, applying GASBS No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the 
recipient recognizes receivables and revenues when the applicable eligibility requirements,including time 
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as 
advances by the provided and deferred revenue by the recipient. 

11. Expenditures 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the 
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased. 

12. Reserves and DeSignations 

Portions of fund equity are segregated for future use and therefore, are not available for 
future appropriations or expenditure .. City has a municipal bond debt service reserve insurance policy for 
the proprietary funds in lieu of cash. Amounts reserved for state tort claims represent amounts required 
by state law to be segregated for these purposes. The unreserved designated fund balance of the Capital 
Projects Funds is appropriated for expenditures in future years. 

13. Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, 
less deferred inflows of resources. Net investments in capital assets, net of. related debt consists of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings 
used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net investments in capital assets 
are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through external ,···· restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. ~I· 
14. Fund Balance 

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the 
specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five ­
components - nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. I· 
Nonspendable - This component includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWSIINFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): 

14. Fund Balance (Continued) 

Restricted - This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them either externally by 
third-parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments) or by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, 
levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes 
a legally enforceable requirement (compelled by external parties) that those resources be used only for 
the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. 

Committed - Amounts formally deSignated by City Council through equally binding ordinances or 
resolutions for a specific purpose that cannot be used for another purpose unless the City Council formally 
changes the use. 

Assigned - This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for 
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The authority for assigning fund balance is 
expressed by the City Council, Mayor or their deSignee as established in the City's Fund Balance Policy. 

Unassigned - This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, committed or assigned 
to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive 
unassigned fund balance amount. Other governmental funds besides the general fund can only report a 
negative unassigned fund balance amount. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) as they are 
needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it is the 
City's policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed. 

15. Fund Balance/Net Position Policy 

The City has adopted a fund balance / net position policy that is tailored to the needs of the City to ensure 
against unanticipated events that would adversely affect the financial condition of the City and will not 
jeopardize the continuation of necessary public services. This policy will ensure the. City maintains 
adequate fund balance 1 net position and reserves in the City's various operating funds to provide the 
capacity to: (1) provide sufficient cash flow for daily financial needs, (2) secure and maintain investment 
grade bond ratings, (3) offset significant economic downturns and revenue shortfalls, and (4) provide 
funds for unforeseen expenditures related to emergencies. 

The City will maintain reservations of Fund Balance I Net Position in the General Fund and Proprietary 
funds of the City. The City shall retain the minimum requirement for each fund listed below. 

General Fund - There shall be a reservation (unassigned) of fund balance equal to 7.5% of the adopted 
General Fund operating revenues. For the purposes of the calculation, the current fiscal year. budget shall 
be the budget as originally adopted by resolution on or before September 15th for the subsequent fiscal 
year. The reserve shall be in addition to all other reserves or designations of the fund balance, including 
but not limited to reserves for encumbrances, donations, advances to other funds, designations for 
compensated absences, and insurance. 

Enterprise Fund - The City maintains a Sanitation Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, and Transportation 
Fund. Under the Water Sewer Bond Ordinance, the following Fund Balance/Reserves are required: 1/12 
of O&IVI budget for Operation & Maintenance; 1/12 of actual debt service; and, 2/12 of O&M budgetfor 
Contingent Fund. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): 

15. Fund Balance/Net Position Polley (Continued) 

The total Required Fund Balance/Reserve for 2012 is $14,261,103 and this amount is on deposit at 
September 30,2013. . 

Replenishment of Reserve Deficits - If, at the end of any fiscal year, the actual amount of unassigned fund 

.' 
atbalance or unassigned net position falls below the required fund levels set forth herein. the Mayor shall 

prepare and submit a plan for expenditure or expense reductions and / or revenue increases to the City 
Council. As a part of the annual budget review, the City Council shall review and, if necessary, amend the ~•.' 
plan submitted by the Mayor 'for restoring the amounts of unassigned fund balance or unassigned net 
position to the required levels. 

16. Pension Ex.penses 

The City funds pension expenses as required by applicable statute. Two plans, funded from both City and 
employee contributions are described in NOTE 6.F. 

17. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

18. Current Year Adoption of New Standards and Restatement of Net Position 

The City adopted the following recently issued GASB Standards in the preparation of this Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 

GASB Statement No. 63 - Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 

Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 


GASB Statement No. 65 - Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities 

The net effect to the city-wide Statement of Net Position for the prior period from the adoption of GASB 65 
is as follows: 

Primary Government Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Total Net Position, September 30,2012 as 
previously reported $ 161.261,325 $ 257,488,219 

Bond issuance costs not expensed as of 
September 3D, 2012 (1,065,867) (1,052,058) 

Net Acljustment to reconcile unamortized 
bond discount and premium 1.150,534 

Net Adjustment to reconcile long-term 
debt 

Total Net Position, September 30.2012 as 
restated $ 163,252,935 $ 257,586.695 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWSIINFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): 

19. Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources 

The statement of financial position will often report a separate section for deferred outflows and (or) 
deferred inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time. 

All of the primary government's deferred outflows of resources on the statement of net position are a 
result of deferrals concerning bonded debt. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. Deferred amount on refunding of debt is 
reported in the deferred inflows or deferred outflow sections of the statement of position. 

The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources: property taxes and Federal and 
State financial assistance. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available. 

20. New Accounting Pronouncements 

During the fiscal year 2013 the City implemented the following GASB pronouncements: 

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements. This Statement addresses how to account for and report service concession 
arrangements (SCAs). It improves financial reporting by establishing recognition, measurement and SCA 
disclosure reqUirements for both transferors and governmental operators. The requirements of Statement 
60 are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. 

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. This Statement Includes amendments to GASB 
Statement No. 14 and GASB Statement No. 34 that better address user needs and reporting entity issues 
that arose after the issuance of those Statements. Statement 61 modifies reqUirements for inclusion of 
component units, amends the criteria for reporting components and clarifies the reporting of equity 
interests in legally separate organizations. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods 
beginning after June 15, 2012. . 

In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement 
incorporates generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments issued from all 
sources that do not conflict with, or contradict GASB pronouncements, into one. This Statement 
supersedes GASB Statement No. 20 and eliminates the election in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 20 that 
allowed enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB Statements 
and Interpretations that do not conflict with GASB pronouncements. The requirements of this Statement 
are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. 

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Statement calls for deferred outflOWS of resources 
to be reported separately from assets, and for deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately 
from liabilities. The net difference between these elements are described as net position, rather than as 
net assets. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 
2011. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS AND RESOURCES, AND NET 
POSITION OR EQUITY (Continued): 

20. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 

In April 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, Elements of Financial Statements. This Statement 
specifies that recognition of deferred outflows and deferred inflows should be limited to those instances 
specifically identified in authoritative GASB pronouncements. Consequently, guidance was needed to 
determine which balances being reported as assets and liabilities should actually be reported as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, according to the definitions in Concepts Statement 
4. Based on those definitions, statement 65 reclassifies certain items currently being reported as assets 
and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition, this 
Statement recognizes certain items currently being reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of 
resources and inflows of resources. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods 
beginning after December 15,2012. 

The City will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements in future years: 

In April 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and 
Related Insurance Issues. This Statement amends Statement No. 10 by removing the provision that limits 
fund-based reporting of a state and local government's risk financing activities to the general fund and the 
internal service fund type. As a result, governments would base their decisions about governmental fund 
type usage for risk financing activities on the definitions in Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. 

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68: The objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. This Statement results from a comprehensive 
review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with 
regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod 
equity, and creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 
25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution 
Plans, and No.' 50•. Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through 
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The 
requirements of Statements 25 and 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered 
through trusts covered by the scope of this 'Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide 
postemployment benefits other than pensions. This Statement is effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15. 2013. 

The impact of these pronouncements on the City's financial statements has not been determined. 
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September 30, 2013 

Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements 

A. 	 Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net position 

The governmental fund balance sheet. includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including 
bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." 
The details of this $197,742 difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Bonds payable 	 $ 160,376 
Less: Issuance premium 	 7,859 
Less: Issuance discount (to be amortized as interest expense) (310) 

Deferred bond issuance cost (69) 
Accrued interest payable 777 
Capital leases payable 18,167 
Claims and judgments 2;078 
Compensated absences 4,380 
Workers' Compensation Benefits 4.484 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance -- total governmental funds to arrive at 
net position -- governmental activities 	 $ 197,742 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "Internal service funds are used to account for the 
group benefit plan. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental 
activities in the statement of net position." The details of this $681 difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Net position of the internal service funds $ 681 

Net adjustment to increase fund balance ­ total governmental funds to arrive at 
net position ­ governmental activities $ 681 

B. 	 Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities 

The governmental fund statem,ent of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net 
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element 
of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives ,and 
reported as depreciation expense." The details of this $8,530 difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Capital outlay 	 $ 14,907 
Depreciation expense 	 (6,377) 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental 
funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities 	 $ 8,530 

~:-. 
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements I 
(Continued): 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) I
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long­
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, 
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities." The details of this $67,685 difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Principal repayments: 
General obligation debt $ 64,570 
Limited obligation debt 480 
Other debt 2,635 •.. 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental 
activities $ 67,685 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The activities from debt related transactions include new 
capital lease proceeds reported in the fund statements and retirement of prior lease." The details of this 
$1,109 difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Debt issued or incurred: 

Capital lease financing 

Principal repayments: 


Payment on capital lease 


Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental 
activities 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement of activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds." The details of this ($4,495) difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Compensated absences 

Workers' compensation benefits 

Claims and judgments 

Accrued interest 


Amortization of bond premium 
Amortization of bond discounts 

. Amortization of deferred costs 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental 
activities 
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L 	 Note 2 - Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements 

(Continued): 


B. 	 Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund baJances and the government-wide statement of activities 
(Continued): 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the 
government-wide statements but are not recognized on the fund statements." The details of this $1,005 
difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Property taxes receivable $ 1,005

L Special assessments receivable (3) 

l 
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental 
funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 1,002 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Internal service funds are used by management to 
charge the costs of fleet management and management information systems to individual funds. The net 

l revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities." The details 
of this $1,346 difference are as follows (in thousands): 

Change in net position of the internal service funds 	 $ 1,346 

L 
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental 
activities $ 1,346 

L 
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Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance and AccolJntability 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements. 

1. 	 The Finance Division of the Department of Administration prepares estimates of available 
revenue. 

2. 	 Department directors submit proposed expenditure buqgets to the Finance Division of the 
Department of Administration by June 1 each year. 

3. 	 The Finance Division of the Department of Administration reviews the expenditure budgets, 
and the necessary revisions are communicated to department directors. 

4. 	 Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared by July 
1, and presented to the Mayor. 

5. 	 The Mayor submits the proposed budget to the City Council by August 1. The final 
budget is approved by September 15 and must be published in a local newspaper on or before 
September 30. 

6. 	 The budget is formally amended in September each year or any time that budget revisions 
through funds reallocation are necessary or a budget deficit is indicated. 

7. 	 The City prepares annual budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service 
Fund, Capital Projects Funds (with the exception of the 1986 Industrial Park, the 1992 Special 
Assessment and the 1996 Metro Station Funds), Enterprise Funds, Internal Service Fund and 
Trust Funds (with the exception of the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund). Budgets for the 
Enterprise Funds are prepared on a GAAP basis but exclude depreciation and bad debt 
expense and include debt retirement payments. The General Fund, Debt Service Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Internal Service Fund and Trust Funds are 
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Budget and actual comparisons are presented in the 
accompanying financial statements for all governmental type funds for which a budget is 
adopted. 

During the fiscal year, several adjustments are normally required to the adopted budget. The 
approved budget may be amended as required in accordance with the following protocol: 

a. 	 Revenues are reviewed at least quarterly, and the projections are adjusted if warranted. 
These adjustments to expected revenues, if material, can precipitate adjustments to the 
expenditure budget. 

b. 	 Adjustments to transfer approved expenditure budgets from one department to another or 
to transfer from one category to another within a department must be approved by the 
City Council. 

c. 	 All new appropriations must be approved by the City Council and are normally submitted 
by the Mayor's Office. 

The legal level of control for all buqgets adopted is at the category level by funds with the 
exception of the General Fund, which is appropriated at the category level by department. 
Administrative control for all budgets is maintained through the establishment of more detailed 
line-item budgets. 

I 

I 


i 


I 


I 


I,·,·'
" 

I 


48 



L 
CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 

l September 30,2013 

L .Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued): 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (Continued): 

l 

, 
The Finance Division of the Department of Administration exercises budgetary monitoring 
throughout the fiscal year. An adopted budget may not exceed its appropriated level without 
City Council approval. The Finance Division of the Department of Administration advises the 

l 
Mayor whenever a requested expenditure will exceed budgeted amounts. The City Council 
may approve expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts in various funds or departments as 
appropriate, as long as total annual expenditures do not exceed available resources. 
Adjustments in expenditure rates, if necessary, are implemented by the City Council as 
required, so that the total expenditures and resources will remain in balance throughout the 
year. 

L 8. Budgeted expenditure or expense amounts as originally adopted were amended by the City 
Council in September 2013 as provided by law, as follows (in thousands): 

Originally Budget as Increase 
(Decrease} 

General Fund $ 132,933 $ 138,064 $ 5,131

l Specia' Revenue Funds 42,449 45,769 3,320 

Debt Service Fund 11,583 82,338 70,755 

Capital Projects Funds 17,950 43,203 25,253

L Enterprise Funds 221,909 345,583 123,674 

Internal Service Fund 15 174 

$ 228,133 

9. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end in all funds. 

B. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY 

The City has no deficit fund equity by individual fund as of September 30, 2013. 

i 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

1. Policies and Practices 

The collateral for public entitles' deposits in financial institutions are now held in the name of the State 
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 
27-105-5, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are protected through a 
collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. FinanCial institutions holding deposits of public funds 
must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, 
securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public 
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 

2. Deposits - Primary government I 
At year end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $ 95,352,608 and the bank balances totaled 
$78,922,136. Ofthe bank balances, $250,000 was insured by federal deposit insurance and $76,162,162 
was covered by pooled and/or pledged collateral, as allowed by the Mississippi Code. 

3. 	 Investments - Primary Government 

As of September 30, 2013, the City had investments consisting of U.S. Agencies at a total fair value of 
$100,797,819 with a total Portfolio Weighted Average maturity of less than one year. 

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. As a means of limiting its exposure to losses from rising interest rates, the City's 
investment policy limits investment maturities in its portfolio to no more than 12 months for U.S. Treasury 
obligations for all investments except bond funds. With respect to bond funds, the City can invest in I 
obligations of U.S. federal agencies for no more than 18 months. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the 
City wi" not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 'that are in the 
possessions of an outside party. Consistent with the City's investment policy, all investments above are 
held by a counterparty and are not insured but are backed by the U. S. government. 

Following is a list of the City's eligible investments, which in accordance with State statute are limited to 
the investment of funds in excess of sums required for immediate expenditure or current obligations: 

" Certificates of deposit with municipal depositories approved annually by the State Treasurer Io 	 Money market mutual funds where portfolios consist entirely of U. S. governmental and/or 

federal agency securities 


" 	 Bonds or direct obligations of the: 

- United States of America 

- State of MiSSissippi 

- County or Municipality of Mississippi 

- School Districts 


State statute allows the investment of funds received from the sale of bonds, notes, or certificates of 
indebtedness which are not immediately required for disbursement for the purpose issued, in direct 

_~J 
obligations issued by or guaranteed in full by the United States of America, or in certificates of deposit 
with approved municipal depositories. 
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L Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

l 
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued): 

. 4. Cash and Investments - Component Units 

l The component unit's policy is to invest available funds in the following types of investments: 1) direct 
obligations of the U. S. of America, including such instruments as treasury bills, treasury notes and 
treasury bonds; 2) obligations of U. S. Government agencies that are deliverable on the Federal Reserve 
System; 3} Repurchase agreements in U. S. Government securities made with dealers that report to and 
are regulated by the Federal Reserve Sank; 4) deposits with financial institutions which are insured or are 
fully collateralized by qualifying securities. 

The collateral for public entities' deposits In financial institutions is held in the name of the State Treasurer 
under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5, 
Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are protected through a collateral 
pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions .holding deposits of public funds must 

l pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, 

L 
securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public 
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of September 30,2013 
all of the component unit's cash deposits in excess of the amounts covered by the FDIC were covered 
under the collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. . 

l 
Investments are reflected at cost, which approximates fair value. These investments were uninsured, 
unregistered, and held by the counterparty brokerage firm. At September 30, 2013, investments of the 
component unit consisted of the following (n thousands): 

Capital City Convention Center Commission 

Certificate of deposit: 
L $Unrestricted ___,..;,5.;,..;00;..,. 

l B. RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at September 30,2013, for the primary government's individual major funds and nonmajor, 
internal service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible 
accounts, are as follows (in thousands): 

Nonmajor 

L 
Water 2003 and Capitol 

Debt and Federal GO Other Street 
General Service Sewer Sanitation Im~rovement Grant Bond Funds 2-Way' 

Receivables: 

L Accounts receivable $ $ $ 26,917 $ 6,512 $ - $ - $ $ 83 $ $ 33,512 

Intergovernmental 29 1,573 80 1,198 943 2,795 187 6,805 

Other 61,156 3,563 5,345 4 500 8,159 78,851 

Gross receivables $61,185 $ 3,563 $ 33,835 $ 6,512 $ 80 $ 1,202 $ 1,443 $ 11,037 $ 187 $ 119,168 

Receivables of Water and Sewer are reported net of uncollectible amounts. 
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September 30,2013 I 
Note 4':"" Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): I 
B. RECEIVABLES (Continued): 

1. Property taxes 

Property taxes on real and personal property" exclusive of automobiles, attach as an 
enforceable lien on the levy date or January 1 for the preceding calendar year. Hinds, Rankin and I 
Madison Counties bill and collect the real, personal and auto ad valorem taxes for the City of Jackson, 
Jackson Municipal Separate School District and the Jackson/Hinds Library System. Automobile taxes are 
remitted monthly and real and personal taxes are remitted on a weekly basis to the City of Jackson. Hinds 
County remits directly to the Jackson Municipal Separate School District taxes collected for all school 
funds except the Bond and Interest Fund in accordance with State law. Hinds County also remits to the 
City a pro rata share of road and bridge taxes collected by the County. 

The taxes are due on or before February 1; however, installment payments can be made one-half of 
balance due on February 1 and one-fourth each on May 1 and August 1. 

Tax millage levies for 2012 were collected in the current fiscal year and statutory maximum millage rates 
were as follows: 

Fund Levy (in mills) Purpose Maximum I
General Fund 46.61 General None 
Parks and Recreation Fund 2.00 Recreation 2.00 mills 
Debt Service Fund 3.04 Debt retirement None 
Disability and Relief Fund 4.89 Retirement . None 

Total City of Jackson 56.54 

Jackson/Hinds Library System Public library None~ 

Jackson Municipal Separate 
School District: 

District Supplement Levy 62.58 Public schools None 
Special Debt Retirement Levy 2,36 public schools None 
Special Debt Retirement Bond 3,72 Public schools None 
Special Debt Retirement 8.83 Public schools None 

77.49 

Total mills 135.52 

The City levies an assessment for the Landscape Improvement fund which consists of nine cents of the 
gross square footage of land and building of property owners located in the downtown development 
district. 

The City is permitted to levy taxes based on a percentage of up to 100% of fair value of property at the 
millage indicated ,above. At the present time, the City levies taxes based on 10% of fair value for 
homeowner-occupied real property, 15% of fair value for all other real and personal property, and 30% of 
fair value for all motor vehicles and property owned by public service corporations. The City may levy 
taxes as necessary to meet bonded debt retirement. Limitations are imposed on the amount of bonded 
debt that may be issued based upon assessed valuation of properties. 

Annual tax increases for all purposes except payment of general obligation bonds and interest are limited 
by State law to 10% of the preceding year's receipts plus new construction. 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

B. RECEIVABLES (Continued): 

1. Property taxes (Continued): 

The State I(:!vies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.5% of collections to the City monthly. 
Intergovernmental revenue of the General Fund includes $29,902,372 of sales tax revenue. 

In accordance with the Local and Private Act, since January 1, 2005 the City has levied, assessed and is 
collecting: (a) tax of 1% of the gross proceeds of sales of restaurants and of sales of food and beverages 
in the hotels and motels, within the City; (b) a tax of 3% of the gross proceeds of sales of hotel and motel 
rooms and lodging within the City; and (c) a tax of 3% of gross proceeds of sales at the Convention Center 
by caterers. The tax is primarily to be used for debt service payments on bonds issued for the 
construction of a convention center. 

Governmental funds reported deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer 
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end 
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds 
were as follows: 

Unearned 
Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) $ 1,364,067 
Interest on delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) 773,397 
Special assessments not yet due (debt service fund) 97,069 
Current year tax assessments (all funds) 67,308,225 
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements 374,086 

Total unearned revenue for governmental funds $ 69,916.844 
, 

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

1. Primary government capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows 
(thousands): 

Balance Balance 
September 30, September 30, 

Governmental Activities: 2012 Additions Deletions 2013 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 14,500 $ - $ 57 $ 14,443 

Construction in progress 93,986 10,261 5,681 98,566 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 108.486 10,261 5,738 113,009 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 81,480 81,480 

Infrastructure 214,246 5,711 219,957 

Automotive and equipment 70,639 6;236 1,563 75,312 
Totar capital assets being depreciated 366,365 11,947 __ 1,563 376.749 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (25,600) (1,490) (27,090) 

Infrastructure (99,336) (3,416) (102,756) 

Automotive and equipment (58,675) (3,031) 1',563 (60,143) 

Total accumulated depreciation P83,613) (7,939) 1,563 (189,969) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 182,752 4,008 186,760 

Total governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ 291.238 $ 141269 $ 5,738 $ 2991769 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): I 
C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued): 

Balance Balance 
September 3O, September 30, 

Business-Type Activities: 2012 Additions Deletions 2013 
Capital assets not being depreciated: I 

Land $ 1,838 $ - $ $ 1,838 
Construction in progress 1581539 23,543 182,082 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 160,377 23 1543 1831920 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 1181075 118 1075 
Infrastructure 259 1686 259,686 
Automotive and equipment 27 138 136 247 29,0271 21

Total capital assets be.ing depreciated 4041899 2,136 247 406,788 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (77,699) (2,708) (80,407) 
Infrastructure (118,321) (5,193) (123,514) I
Automotive and equipment (10,765) (2I050) 247 (12,568) 

Total accumulated depreciation (206,785) (9,951) 247 (216,489) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 198,114 (7,815) 190,299 

Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 358,491 $ 15?28 $ $ 374,219 

2. Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows (in thousands): 

Governmental Activities: 

General government $ 1,587 

Public Works 2,541 

Human & Cultural 1,429 

Public Safety 2,382 


Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 7939 

Business-Type Activities: 

Water/Sewer $ 8,810 
Sanitation 320 
Madison Sewage 13 
Transportation B08 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 9951 
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L Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued): 

3. Construction work in progress at September 30, 2013 for the governmental activities of the primary 
government is composed of the following: 

L 
Remaining 

_~pent-to-date Commitment 

L 
l Improvement Fund $ 13,607,390 $ 11,670 

Community Development Block Grant 1,620,818 110,883 
1982 Industrial Park Bond 49,993 
1998 G 0 Public Improvement Construction Bond 19,113,056 52,317 
2003 G 0 Public Improvement Construction Bond 28,118,302 2,979,398 
2007 Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bond 2,077,735 
2008 G 0 Street Construction Bond 20,536,585 1,600,182 
2009 American Recovery Reinvestment Act 3,904,250 896,714 
2012 G 0 Capital Project 99,569 49,068 
Thalia Mara Hall 458.578 
Capitol Street 2-Way Project 349.839 5,432,378 
Economic Development Initiative ­

Economic Development 3,579,620 236,862 
Traffic Repair and Replacement 1,794,030 385,789 
Drainage - Repair and Replacement 943,224 13,971 
Resurfacing - Repair and Replacement 2,211,960 1,388,540 
Parks - Repair and Replacement 100,768 

Total 	 $ 98,565,717 $ 13,157,772 

4. 	 Construction work in progress at September 30, 2013 for primary government enterprise funds 
is composed of the following: 

Remaining 
Spent-to-date Commitment 

Water/Sewer Construction $182,082,132 $28.066,068 
Fund 

Total 	 ~1&2 082 132 $28,066068 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): I 
C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

5. A summary of changes in capital assets for component units is as follows (in thousands): 

Activity for the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
September 30, September 30, 

Business-Type Activities: 2012 Additions Deletions 2013 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 4,538 $ - $ - $ 4,538 I 
Property held for development 1,913 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,451 6,451 

Other capital assets: 

Land improvements 29 29 

Buildings 51,423 3 (70) 51,356 

Equipment and furniture 1,442 24 1,466 

Total other capital assets 52,894 27 (70) 52,851 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements (29) (29) 

Buildings (20,559) (1,266) (21,825) 

Equipment and furniture (1,292) 
Total capital assets being depreciated (21 ,880) (1,291 ) 

Total other capital assets, net 31,014 (1,264) (70) 29,680 

Total capital assets, net $ 37,465 $ \1,264i $ $ 36,131\7°i 
Depreciation expense was charged to activities as follows (in thousands): 

Urban renewal projects $ 844 I 
Parking facilities 447 


Total $ 1,291 


IActivity for the Capital City Convention Center Commission for the year ended September 3D, 2013, was 
as follows (in thousands): 

Balance Balance ••••• 
September 30, September 30,BusIness-Type Activities: •

2012 Additions Deletions Transfers 2013 

Capital assets not being depreCiated: i; 
Land $ 5,792 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,792 

Building and improvements 79,962 34 79,996 
Equipment 4,503 121 4,624 

90,257 155 90,412 I 
Less accumulated depreciation (9,267) (2,497) (11,764) 

Total capital assets, net $ 78,648(2,342) $ - $ - $_--.;..;:;,:,;;.;;:;,.. I 

-
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

.D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS: 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances as of September 30, 2013. follows (in 
thousands): 

Interfund [nterfUild 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 4,270 $ 

Federal Grant 203 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 4,067 

Total $ 4,270 

Summary of transfer in/transfer out within primary government (in thousands): 

Transfer Transfer 
In Out 

General Fund $ 275 $ 17,493 

Debt Service Fund 2,322 

Proprietary Fund 9,245 4,162 

Federal Grant Fund 1,149 312 

Capitol Street 2-Way 463 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,715 8,940 

Internal Service Fund 6,760 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 4,502 

Improvement Fund 2,476 

Total $ 30,907 $ 30,907 

I nterfund transfers at September 30, 2013 consist of the following (in thousands): 

$ 463 From Capital Project Major Fund (Capitol Street 2-Way) to the Proprietary Funds (Water/Sewer) to subsidize 
operations. 

312 From Major Governmental Fund (Federal Grants) to Nonmajor Proprietary (Sanitation Fund) to subsidize 
operations. 

8,933 From the Nonmajor Governmental Fund (2012 G 0 Note) to the Proprietary Fund (Water Sewer) to subsidize 
operations. 

1,313 From the Proprietary Funds (Water/Sewer) to the Major Government (Improvement Fund) to subsidize 
operations. 

1,149 From the General Fund to the Nonmajor Governmental Fund (Federal Grant Fund) to subsidize operations. 

3,701 From the General Fund to the Nonmajor Govemmental Funds (Parks and Recreation) to subsidize operations. 

14 From the General Fund to the NonmaJor Governmental Funds (State Grant) to subSidize operations. 

6,760 From the General Fund to the Internal Service Fund to subSidize operations. 

4,410 From the General Fund to the Nonmajor Proprietary Funds (Transportation) to subsidize operations. 

1 From the Nonmajor Governmental Funds (Parks and Recreation) to the General Fund to subsidize operations. 

269 From the Proprietary Funds (Water/Sewer) to the General Fund to subsidize operations. 

5 From the Nonmajor Governmental Funds (State Grant) to the General Fund to subsidize operations. 

295 From the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund for debt service payment. 

2,027 From the Proprietary Funds (Water/Sewer) to the Debt Service Fund for debt service payment. 

1,163 From the General Fund to the Major Governmental (Improvement Fund) to subsidize operations. 

92 From the Proprietary Fund (Water/Sewer) to the Nonmajor Proprietary Fund to subsidize operations. 

$ ===3;,;0,..,,90=7= 
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E. CAPITAL LEASES: 

The City leases property with varying terms and options. Most leases contain a clause that states that the 
lease shall terminate in the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated. However, if renewal 
is reasonably assured, leases are considered noncancellable leases for financial reporting purposes. 

The City has financed through lease agreements the acquisition of the data processing division computer 
system, word-processing systems for the legal division, computerized records management system and a 
computer-aided dispatch system for the fire and. police departments, and various copying and duplicating 
equipment. In addition, tractors have been acquired for both the Water Maintenance and the Engineering 
Maintenance divisions; golf carts have been acquired for the City's golf courses and riding lawn mowers 
have been acquired for park maintenance. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for 
accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of future minimum lease 
payments as of the date of their inception. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are 
disclosed in the following note. At September 30, 2013, there were assets under capital lease totaling 
$22,136,312 for: machinery and equipment. Future minimum lease payments for capital leases are 
disclosed in Note 4.G.B. 

The City has reported the proceeds of capital leases related to its Proprietary Funds as inflows of cash 
since the City receives cash advances from the lessors and purchases the related assets. 

F. OPERATING LEASES: 

The City is obligated under certain noncancellable leases for land and buildings with terms remaining 
more than one year that are classified as operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to property 
rights; therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the City's account groups. Total I 
lease expenditures for the rental of all land and buildings under operating leases for the year ended 
September 30,2013, amounted to $824.100. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum 
lease payments required under the noncancellable land and building operating leases as of September I30. 2013, (in thousands of dollars): 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2014 $ 188 

2015 188 

2016 123 

2017 and thereafter 2,237 

Total $ 2.924 


The total rental expenditures for all operating leases of the City for the year ended September 30, 2013 
totaled to $1.577.704. There were no subleases or contingent rentals associated with the operating 
leases. 

I 
j 
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L Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

l G. LONG-TERM DEBT: 

1. General Obligation Bonds 

L The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 

l 
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and proprietary 
activities. These bonds therefore are reported in the proprietary funds if they are to be repaid from 
proprietary revenues. 

The City issued $20 million of general obligation bonds in January 2003 to provide funds for the costs of: 
(A) erecting, repairing, improving, and equipping municipal buildings, (B) improving streets, (C) traffic 
signals, (D) drainage improvements. 

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $20,960,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an average 
interest rate of 4.26 percent to advance refund $20,710,000 of outstanding General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 1998 with an average interest rate of 5.05. The net proceeds of $21,904,652 (after payment of 
$343,777 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U. S. 
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to 
provide for all future debt service payments for the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998. As a result, 

t the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those ... bonds has been removed from the government-wide statement of net position. A portion ($7,490,000) of 
the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 was not refunded. 

l 

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the old debt of $1,401,036. This difference is being charged to operations through the year 
2017. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 
12 years by $816,595 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old 
and new debt service payments) of $861,719. 

On November 8, 2006, the City issued $65,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds to provide funds (a) to 
purchase the City Bond to provide funds to the City in order to finance the acquisition, construction, 
equipping, and furnishing of a convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention 
Center and for other authorized purposes under the Act (the "Construction Project"), and (b) to pay the 

L 
, Costs of Issuance of the Series 2006 Bonds and the City Bond, including the cost of the premium for the 

Bond Insurance Policy. 

On January 1, 2009 the City issued $26,210,000 General Obligation Street Resurfacing Bond. The Bonds 
are being issued to provide funds to (a) purchase the City Bond to provide funds to the City to pay the 
costs of constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways and public 
parking facilities, and purchasing land therefore; and constructing bridges and CUlverts and (b) pay the 
Costs of Issuance of the Bonds and the City Bond. 

L On September 1,2010 the City issued $23,665,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series A & B. 
The bonds were issued to provide funds to the City in order to refund, defease and/or restructure certain 
outstanding maturities on the $5,490,000 General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 1998, the 

L $35,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998, the $20,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2003, the $20,960,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, the $5,155,000 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2008, and the $26,210,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009, 
and to pay the costs of issuance. 

i 
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INote 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED): 

The average interest rate on the 2010 General Obligation Refunding Bond is 4.17%. The net proceeds of 
$25,128,292 resulted in an economic loss to the City in the amount of ($2,116,552). The 1998 General 
Obligation Bond $5,490,000, the 1998 General Obligation Bond $35,000,000, and the 2008 General 
Obligation Bond $5,155,000 are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds have been 
removed from the government-wide statement of net position. A portion of the 2003 .General Obligation 
Bond $20,000,000, 2005 General Refunding Bond $20,960,000, and the 2009 General Obligation Bond 
$26,210,000 were not refunded. 

On April 1,2012 the City issued $11.500,000 in General Obligation Note, Series 2012. The note was 
issued to provide (a) erecting municipal buildings; (b) establishing sanitary, storm, drainage or sewage 
and repairing, improving and extending the same; (c) constructing bridges; and (d) constructing, improving 
or paving streets, sidewalks. driveways, parkways, walkways or public parking facilities and purchasing 
land. 

On February 21 .. 2013 the City issued $64,940,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013. 
The proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds will be used by the City for the purposes of (a) refunding, 
defeasing and/or restructuring all or a portion of the outstanding maturities of the 2006 City Bond and (b) 
paying certain costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds and the City Bond. The 2006 Bank Bonds were 
issued to provide funds to purchase the 2006 City Bond. The proceeds of the 2006 City Bond were used 
by the City to finance construction and equipping of the Capital City Convention Center (the "Convention 
Center"). 

At September 30, 2013, the City had $2,145,000 general obligation bonds considered to be defeased and 
outstanding. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. These 
bonds generally are issued as serial bonds in denominations of $5,000 with principal maturing annually 
and interest due at various semi-annual dates. General obligation bonds currently outstanding at 
September 30,2013, were as follows (in thousands): 

Final 
Date of Interest Maturity 
Obligation Ral~ Date I§sued Outstanding 

General Q~lIgation Bongs; 

MS Development Bank GO Bonds, Series 2003 01/05/03 2.00-5.25% 03/01123 20,000 $ 12,395 

General Obligation Bonds, Refunding 2005 08/04/05 3.00-5.00% 10/01/17 20,960 9,615 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 11/08/06 3.60-5.00% 03/01/36 65,000 3,805 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 01/01/09 4.00-5.80% 01/01/24 26,210. 21,045 

IGeneral Obligation Refunding Series 201 OA 09/01/10 3.00-5.00% 09/01/24 16,655 16,655 

General Obligation Refunding Series 2010B 09/01/10 4.370% 09/01124 7,010 7,010 

General Obligation Refunding Series 2013 02/21/13 3.00-5.00% 03/01/36 64,940 64,9~Q 

Total General Obligation Bonds m j35465 

Final 
Date of Interest Maturity 
Obligation Bille !;lale Issyed Outsillnding 

Ge!J~ral Obligation Nol~ll: 

General Obligation Notes Payable Series 2012 04/01/12 1.71 09/01/24 11,500 $ 9,200 

Total General Obligation Notes $ 92QO 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 

2. Revenue Bonds 

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $27,180,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds with 
an average interest rate of 4.32 percent to advance refund $25,800,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 with an average interest rate of 5.21. The net proceeds of 
$27,758,429 (after payment of $496,236 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) were 
used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with 
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments for the Water/Sewer System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1999. As a result, the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 bonds are 
considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Water/Sewer 
Proprietary Fund. A portion ($5,085,000) of the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 was 
not refunded. The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount of the old debt of $2,785,028. This difference is being charged to operations through the 
year 2024. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the 
next 19 years by $1,057,504 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the 
old debt and the new debt service payments) of $1,383,192. . 

On September 1, 2011, the City issued $46,720,000 and $2,565,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue· 
Refunding Bonds to advance refund $42,355,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2002, $1,140,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding, Series 2004, and $2,790,000 
of outstanding Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding, Series 2005. The purpose for issuing the Tax-Exempt 
Bonds is (a) to fund the 2011A Purchase Account, in order to provide funds for the purchase of the Tax­
Exempt City Bond (which amounts are to provide financing for the refunding, defeasance and/or 
restructuring of a portion of the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Act), (b) to pay the premium for the Bond 
Insurance Policy and the Surety Bond for the Tax-Exempt Bonds, and (c) to fund the 2011A Bond 
Issuance Expense Account to pay the Costs of Issuance in connection with the Tax-Exempt Bonds and 
the Tax-Exempt City Bond. The purpose for issuing the Taxable Bonds is (a) to fund the 2011B Purchase 
Account, in order to provide funds for the purchase of the Taxable City Bond (which amounts are to 
provide financing for the refunding and/or restructuring of a portion of the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Act), 
(b) to pay the premium for the Bond Insurance Policy and the Surety Bond for the Taxable Bonds, and (c) 
to fund the 2011B Bond Issuance Expense Account to pay the Costs of Issuance in connection with the 
Taxable Bonds and the Taxable City Bond. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its debt 
service payments over the next 23 years by $3,838,070 and to obtain an economic gain (difference 
between the present values of the old debt and the new debt service payments) of $144,146. 

On September 1, 2012, the City issued $63,045,000 and $19,180,000 in Water/Sewer Revenue 
Refunding Bonds to advance refund $76,120,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue 
Refunding, Series 2004. The purpose for issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds is (a) amount will provide 
financing for the refunding, defeasance and/or restructuring of the Series 2004 Bonds and the 2004 City 
Bonds, (b) as to the Taxable Bonds, td purchase the Taxable City Bond, which amount will provide 
financing for the refunding, defeasance and/or restructuring of the Series 2004 Bonds and 2004 City 
Bonds, (c) to pay premium for the Surety Bond and the Policy and (d) to fund the costs of issuance in 
connection with the Series 2012 Bonds and the Series 2012 City Bonds. The City completed the advance 
refunding to reduce its debt service payments over the next 22 years by $3,067,182 and to obtain an 
economic gain (difference between the present values of the old debt and the new debt service payments) 
of $3,062,988. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): I 
G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 

On June 1, 2013, the City issued $89,990,000 in Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds with an average interest 
rate of 6.07. The Series 2013 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Act for the purpose of providing 
funds to purchase the Series 2013 City Bond. This amount will provide financing for improvement and 
repair of the system in accordance with the Performance Contract, pay the premium for the Surety Bond 
and the Policy, and a fund the costs of issuance in connection with the Series 2013 Bonds and the Series 
2013 City Bond. 

Revenue bonds outstanding, at September 30, 2013, were as follows (in thousands): 

Final 
Date of Interest Maturity 

Revenue Bonds: ObllgatioQ Rate Oat!:! Issued Oytstanding 
Enterprise Funds: 

Water/Sewer Reven~e Refunding 2005 07/01/05 3.00-5.00% 09/01/24 . 27,180 $ 21,445 

Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2011A 09/01/11 2.5()"5.00% 09/01/34 46,720 45,150 

Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2011 B 09/01/11 4.070-5.40% 09/01/34 2,565 2,495 

Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2012A 09/01/12 3.50-5.00% 09/01/34 63,045 63,045 

Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 20128 09101/12 1.0()"2.375% 09/01/20 19,180 17,140 

Water/Sewer Revenue 2013 06/01113 5.00-6.875% 06/01/39 89,990 8~!.99Q 

$ 239265 i 
At September 30, 2013, the City had $133,720,000 of revenue bonds considered to be defeased and 
outstanding. 

, .~.".. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30,2013 


Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 

3. Tax Increment Limited Obligation Bonds 

The City.issued $2.270 million of tax increment limited obligation bonds in December 2007 to provide 
funds for the costs of constructing certain infrastructure improvements, site development and or site 
preparation in connection with the development and construction of a redevelopment project located within 
the City. The City entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Hinds County, Mississippi, to 
provide the pleqge of certain ad valorem tax revenues for the payment of the principal and interest on the 
bonds. As a result, the bonds are not a general obligation of the City. 

On April 23,2009, the City issued $407,000 of tax increment limited obligation bonds to provide funds for 
infrastructure improvements, including site utilities such as electrical, water, sanitary sewer and natural 
gas lines; installation of storm drainage and site work; construction of entrances with curb and gutter, 
sidewalks; landscaping of rights-of-way; installation of fencing and entry gates; capitalized interest; related 
engineering costs and expenses; TIF plan preparation fees; other incidental costs; and related 
professional fees. 

On June 16, 2009, the City issued $375,000 of tax increment limited obligation bonds to provide funds for 
the purpose of constructing various infrastructure improvements in connection with a tax increment 
finance project including, but not limited to, installation and/or relocation of utilities such as water, sanitary 
sewer, construction of drainage improvements, construction of roadways with curb and gutter, asphalt 
overlay, landscaping of rights-of-way, related engineering fee, attorney's fees, TIF plan preparation fees, 
capitalized interest and other related costs. 

On June 19, 2009, the City issued $1,600,000 of tax increment limited 'obligation bonds to provide funds 
f9r infrastructure improvements supporting the project including, installation of site utilities such as water, 
sanitary sewer, and natural gas lines; landscaping of rights-of-way; capitalized interest; engineering; TtF 
Plan preparation fees; other incidental costs; and related professional fees for the project. 

On December 30, 2010, the City issued $2,800,000 of tax increment limited obligation bonds to provide 
funds for the renovation and related construction of properties generally known as the King Edward Hotel 
and Garage and the Standard Life Building and related properties located in a portion of the City Block 
bounded by Mill, Capitol, Roach, and Pearl Street. 

Limited obligation bonds outstanding at September 30, 2013, are as follows (in thousands): 

Final 

Limited ObligatiQD Bonds; 
General Long-Term Deb!: 
Tax Increment Financing 

Bonds,2007 
Tax Increment Financing 

Bonds,2009 
Tax Increment Financing 

Bonds, 2009 
Tax Increment Financing 

Bonds, 2009 
'Tax Increment Financing 

Bonds,2010 

Date of 
Obligation 

12/28/2007 

4/23/2009 

6/16/2009 

6/19/2009 

12/30/2010 

Interest 
Rate 

4.47% 

4.20% 

3.83% 

4.75% 

4.75-5.50% 

Maturity 
Date 

3/1/2020 

4/1/2024 

7/1/2015 

7/112022 

3/112030 

Issued 

2,270 

407 

375 

1,600 

2,800 

Outstanditlg 

$ 1,520 

329 

134 

1,213 

2.426 

Total Limited Obligation Bonds ~ 

63 

l 



I 
CITY OF JACKSON 
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INote 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 

4. Section 108 Loan 

On July 1, 2008, the City entered into a loan guaranty assistance In an amount not to exceed the I$10,000,000 under Section 108 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 for the purpose 
. of providing assistance for the Capital City Center Revitalization Project and for development of a 
revolving business loan program. Under the Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance between the City 
and HUD, HUD authorized the City to loan up to $10,000,000 under the 108 Program to TCI MS 
Investment, Inc. for special economic development activities under 24 CFR 570.703(1)(1) and 570.203(b) 
and, in particular, for "site assemblage" costs for the Revitalization Project. Upon repayment of the TCI 
Loan, the City is authorized to use funds under the 1098 program for the Business Loan Pool. 

The Revitalization Project is to consist of development of two (2) hotels, commercial and retail space, a 
parking garage and residential facilities to help revitalize the City's CBD while providing job creation for 
persons of low alld moderate income through construction activities and then through the new businesses 
opened as part of the Revitalization Project. The Business Loan Pool is to be used to provide loan to for­
profit and non-profit businesses and organizations which meet the eligibility requirements of 24 CFR '·" 570.703, the national objective requirements of 570.208 and, if applicable, the public benefit standards of "I570.209(b). 

As required by the Guaranty Agreement, the City also entered into an agreement with Regions Bank to 
serve as custodian of original loan and security documents for the loan to TCI. 

5. Jackson Redevelopment Authority 

Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes 

Urban renewal bonds and notes are 
September 30,2013, were as follows (in 

issued to pr
thousands): 

Date of 
Obligation 

ovide 

Int

funds 

erest 
Rate 

for various rehabilitation 

Final 
Maturity 
~ Issued 

Urban Renewal Bonds: 
Enterprise Funds: 

Urban Renewal Central 

Business District, 1998-A 


Urban Renewal Bond, Series, 2011-A 

Urban Renewal Bond. Series, 2011-B 

Note Payable. Series 2012 

Total Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes 

09/01/98 4.50-6.375% 09/01/23 2.825 

06/01/11 3.25% 06/01/31 7,165 

06/01/11 5.15% 06/01/23 2.745 

10/01/13 5.25% 10/26/19 2,500 

projects at 

Oytstanding 

$ 60 

I6,739 

2,615 

2.500 I 
$ j j eM 
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L Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

,. 
I G. LONG·TERM DEBT (Continued): 

L 
6. 	 A summary of long-term debt transactions for the primary government and for the component unit for 

the year ended September 3D, 2013, was as follows (in thousands): 

L 	 Due 

l 
Within 

Beginning Ending One 
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Reductions Adjustments Balance 

Bonds and loans payable: 

General obligation bonds $ 131,290 $ 68,745 $ 64,570 $ - $ 135,465 $ 5,325 
Limited obligation bonds 6,102 480 5,622 504 

~;, General Obligation Note 402 11,098 2,300 9,200 2,300.. State revolving loan MDA 383 40 	 342 42 
Miss, Development Bank Loan 3,040 294 2,747 294 
Section 108 Loan 7,000 7,0001\... 	 Less deferred amounts: 

For issuance discount (491) 325 143 	 (310) 

L On refunding 1,066 	 (1,066) 

For issuance premium 	 1,316 7,859 

Total bonds payable 152,229 85,906 69,143 (1,066} 167,926 8,465 

Capital leases 17,058 12,144 11,035 18,167 4,981 

~ Claims and judgments 2,069 435 426 2,078 590.. 
Workers' Compensation Benefits 4,476 1,623 1,615 4,484 1,650 

Compensated absenceS 4,676 1,611 1,9015 2,261 

28,279 15,812 14,982 29,109 9,482L Total Governmental Activity $ 180,508 $ 101,718 $ 84,125 $ \1,0661 $ 197,035 $ 17,947 

Business-type activities: 

l Bonds and loans payable: 

Revenue bonds $ 154,430 $ 89,990 $ 5,155 $ - $ 239,265 $ . 5,605 

Miss, Development Bank Loan 2,727 2,727 2,727 

L Less deferred amounts: 

l 
For issuance discount . (572) (675) . 49 (1,168) (2,464) 

For issuance premiums 5,855 11,004 457 214 16,617 

On refunding {1,054} 1,052 

Total bonds payable 158,659 103,046 5,661 	 256,145 8,332 

Capital leases 3,068 2,066 996 4,137 1,547 

State Revolving Loan (DEQ) 12,577 4,833 1,757 15,653 1,654

l Compensated absences 535 241 235 541 289 

16,180 2,988 20,331 3,490 

Total Business-type activities $ 174,841 110,186 $ 8,649 $ 98 $ 276,476 $ 1,822 

l Component Unit - Jackson Redevelopment Authority 

Urban Renewal bonds $ 10,015 $ 2,500 $ (465) $ - $ 12,980 $ 530
i, 
r 	 Less deferred amounts: 

~ On refunding (150) 	 {163} 

Total Component Unit $ 9,865 $ 2,500 $ '452~ $ - $ 12,817 $ 530 

i-
,, Total Long-Term Debt $ 365,214 $ 214,404 $ 92,323 $ (968) $ 486,328 $ 30,299 

t 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 

7. The City's legal debt margin for the issuance of general obligation bonds was $94,547,714 at 
September 30, 2013. 

8. Annual Maturities Requirements 

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debts outstanding, net of unamortized bond discount of 
$570,985 for the component unit as of September 30,2013, including interest, by source of retirement are 
as follows (in thousands): . 

Debt Service Fund (Special Tax Levy) 
General Obligation Bonds 

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total 

2014 $ 5,938 $ 5,325 $ 11,263 

2015 5,662 5,990 11,652 

2016 5,358 6,360 11,718 

2017 5,040 6,755 11,795 

2018 4,764 4,480 9,244 


2019 -2023 18,000 45,505 63,505 

2024 -2028 8,829 23,585 32,414 

2029 -2033 5,391 21,190 26,581 

2034 -2038 988 16,275 17,263· 


Total $ 59,970 $ 1351465 $ 195,435 

State Revolving Loan MDA 

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total 


2014 $ 9 $ 42 $ 51 

2015 8 43 51 

2016 7 44 51 

2017 6 46 52 
 I 
2018 5 47 52 


2019 -2023 120 124 . 


I
Total $ 39 $ 342 

General Obligation Note I 
Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total 

2014 $ 157 $ 2,300 $ 2,457 
2015 118 2,300 2,418 

I 
2016 79 2,300 2,379 
2017 39 2,300 2,339 11 
Total $ 393 $ 9!200 $ 91593 
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l Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 

MS Develo~ment Bank Loan 
Fiscal Year Interest" Principal Total

L 

L 

2014 $ 31 $ 269 
2015 31 269 
2016 31 269 
2017 31 269 
2018 31 269 

2019 -2023 130 1,368 
2024 -2028 8 34 

$ 300 
300 
300 
300 
300 

1,498 
42 

l Total $ 2.747 $ 3,040 

Limited 
Obligation Bonds 

Fiscal Year Interest Princi~al Total 

2014 $ 217 $ 504 

2015 193 538 

2016 168 496 

2017 143 527 

2018 117 554 

2019 - 2023 520 1,922 

2024 - 2028 550 637 

2029 - 2033 31 444 

2034 - 2038 

$ 11,984 

12,383 

. 12,382 

12,465 

9,915 

65.947 

33,601 

27,056 

17!263 

Total $ 1,939 $ 5,622 $ 202,996 

l 

General Fund (General Fund Revenues) 


Obligation Under Capital 

l 
Fiscal Year Interest Prjnci~al Total 

2014 $ 367 $ 4,981 $ 5,348 

l 
2015 264 3,725 3,989 

2016 200 2,317 2.517 
2017 155 1,369 1,524 
2018 128 1,256 1,384 

2019 - 2023 294 3,364 3,658 

l 2024 -2028 45 1,155 1,200 

2029 - 2033 
Total $ 18,167 $ 19,620 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): I 
G. LONGMTERM DEBT (Continued): a 
Enterprise Funds M Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund (Water/Sewer Revenue) 

Revenue Bonds 

Fiscal Year Interest Principal ­
2014 $ 11,576 $ 5,605 t 
2015 11,850 5,750 
2016 11,676 5,930 
2017 11,441 7,720 
2018 11,168 7,990 ~ 
2019 -2023 50,751 45,045 
2024 - 2028 39,265 47,485 
2029 -2033 25,523 58,930 I
2034 -2038 11,877 34,680 
2034 -2037 2.139 20,130 

Total $ 187266 $ 239,265 I 
Obligations Under 


Capital Lease 
 I 
Fiscal Year Interest Principal 

2014 $ 54 $ 1,547 I 
2015 32 1,557 
2016 11 1,033 
2017 I2018 
2019 -2023 

Total $ 97 :& 4,137 I 
State Revolving Loan j

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total 

2014 $ 307 $ 1,825 $ 20,906 
2015 245 1,316 20,750 I 
2016 202 1,083 19,740 

2017 165 1,081 20,407 

2018 128 1,119 20,405 
 I 

2019 - 2023 273 8,462 104,531 

2024 - 2028 41 768 87,559 

2029 -2033 84,453 

2034 - 2038 46,557 
 I 
2039 -2043 22,269 

Total $ 1,361 $ 15,654 $ 447,577 I 
68 I 



CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 


L 

l 


L 


L 


September 30,2013 

Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): 

G. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued): 


Jackson Redevelopment Authority (Urban Renewal Project Revenues) 


Jackson Redevelopment Authority' 
Notes Payable, Urban Renewal 

Notes and Bonds 
Interest Principal 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 -2023 
2024 -2028 
2029 2032 

Unamortized refunding 
cost and discounts . 

$ 547 
527 
507 
487 
465 

1,414 
666 
145 

4,758 

$ 531 
492 
515 
528 
556 

5,613 
·2,225 

1,590 
12,050 

(136) 

$ 1,078 
1,019 
1,022 
1,015 
1,021 
7,027 
2,891 
1,735 

16,808 

Total $ 4758 $ 1,914 $ 16,808 

The City has unconditionally and irrevocably agreed to grant and contribute to the Jackson 
Redevelopment Authority from the General Fund of the City sums sufficient to pay the principal of and 
interest on the bonds issued by the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for urban renewal purposes, as the 
same shall mature and become due. Principal and interest maturities for 2013 were paid by contributions 
from the General Fund of $570,985. 

There are a number of requirements contained in various revenue bond ordinances. The City is in 
compliance with all significant requirements. 

9. Annual Maturities Requirements 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding for the City and the component unit as of 
September 30,2013, including interest of $570,985 for the component unit are as fo'liows (in thousands): 

Jackson 
City of Redevelopment 
Jackson Authority 

2014 $ 41,046 $ 1,078 
2015 39,891 1,019 
2016 37,369 1,022 
2017 37,087 1,015 
2018 32,056 1,021 
2019 and thereafter 495,753 11,653 

Total $ 683.202 $ 16808 
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Note 4 - Detailed notes on all funds (Continued): I 
G. LONG·TERM DEBT (Continued): 

10. Interest Rate Swap 

On March 31, 2004, the City and the Mississippi Development Bank (collectively "the City") executed a 
confirmation with RFPC, LLC (a subsidiary of Rice Financial Products Company) (the "2004 Swap 
Counterparty"), in connection with. the execution of an Interest Rate Swap Agreement (the "2004 Swap 
Agreemenf') in order to reduce the debt service costs associated with certain outstanding obligations of 
the City. The swap was done in conjunction with the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation 
Bonds Series 2002 (Jackson, Mississippi Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project) issued to fund 
certain water and sewer improvements for the City. The notional amount of the swap is $49,105,000. The 
City received a savings pre-payment of $287,315 from the 2004 Swap Counterparty. 

Under the 2004 Swap Agreement the City receives a fixed rate from the 2004 Swap Counterparty, and in 
return pays a fixed rate less an Adjustment Factor. The Adjustment Factor exposes the City to changes in 
the ratio between the tax-exempt BMA Index and LlBOR. Payments on the swap are exchanged Isemiannually. The swap became effective on April 1, 2005 and will terminate on April 1, 2024. An early 
termination of the swap transaction may result in the City making or receiving a termination payment 
based on the prevailing market interest rates at the time of such termination. As of September 30, 2013, 
the mark to market value of the transaction was ($5,821,173) for the City, which is not recorded, in the I 
financial statements. In fiscal year 2011, the City refunded the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2002. 

Risks Associated with the 2004 Swap Agreement 

Credit Risk - The City's swap relies on the performance of the 2004 Swap Counterparty. The City is 
exposed to the risk that the 2004 Swap Counterparty is unable to fulfill its obligations to the City. The I 
obligations of the 2004 Swap Counterparty to the City are guaranteed by a third party guarantor that 
maintains credit ratings of AaalAAAlAAA by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch, 
respectively. I 
Basis Risk - The City pays fixed rates on the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds 
Series 2002 (Jackson, Mississippi Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project). 

Interest Rate Risk - The City is exposed to changes in relationships between tax-exempt and taxable 
interest rates that may be affected by changes in the marginal tax rate, the elimination of tax preferences 
or other major changes to current tax law including, but not limited to, implementation of a flat tax or value­
added tax. 

Termination Risk - The 2004 Swap Agreement does not contain any extraordinary termination events or 
triggers that would expose the City to significant termination risk. If the 2004 Swap Counterparty fails to 
meet its obligations to the City, these obligations will be met by a third party guarantor that maintains credit 
ratings of Aaa/AAAlAAA by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch, respectively. If the 
third party guarantor suffers a loss of creditworthiness, the 2004 Swap Counterparty shall find an 
acceptable replacement guarantor. If such replacement guarantor is not available or if the City fails to 
meet its obligations to the 2004 Swap Counterparty, the termination provisions in the 2004 Swap 
Agreement will apply. The City may be liable for a payment equal to the fair market value of the swap if a 
termination occurs prior to April 1. 2024 and that fair market value is negative. 
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L Note 5 - GASB 54 Fund Balance Presentation - Classification Total 

Details of nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances for the year 
ended September 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Nonmajor Total 
FederaJ Improvement 1998 GO 2003 GO 2006 GO Go,"'ernmental . Capitol Street Governmental 

General Fund Grant Debt Soffit. Fund Bond Bond Bond 2009 GO Bond Funds 2·Way Funds

LND BAL~"'CES: 
NONSPENDABLE: 

l .
General government $ 2,283,393 $ $ $ $ $ 2,283,393 


RESTRICTED FOR: 

l General governme!l( 430,635 135,407 566,042 

Public safety 491,691 44,196 7,451 543,338 

Public works 465,037 465,037 

L Human and CulturaJ services 1,188,923 1,188,923 

Debt service reserve 2,826,592 2,826,592 

i COMMITTED TO: 

L 
• General government 2,538,918 15,332 2,554,250 

Public safety 1,046,302 1.046,302 

Public works 3,253,832 178,236 3,231,086 316,661 2,426,977 2,111,919 2,251,449 13,770,160 

Human and Cultural services 2,216,708 2,216,708 

t: 
 Employee benefi.. 52,547 52,547 


lit ASSIGNED TO: 

Ge:leral government 49,140 49,140 

~ UNASSIGNED: 

General government 26,482,663 26,482,663 

Public safety 34,255 34,255 

Tmal fund balances $ 32,926,362 $2,128,791 $2,826,592 $ 3,269,164 $ 178,236 $3,231.086 $316,661 $ 2,426,977 4,524,032 $ 2,251,449 $ 54,079,350 
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Note 6 - Other Information 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT I 
1. Workers Compensation Benefits 

The City maintains a self-funded workers compensation plan accounted for in the General Fund. ICommercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from excess losses greater than $1,000,000 per 
individual claim for police and fire employees. Commercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from 
excess losses greater than $400,000 per individual claim for all other employees. Benefits paid to 
employees during fiscal year 2013 were $1,615,254. 

Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined based on observed patterns of claims 
payments and case reserves development. liabilities are based on the ultimate costs of settiing claims, 
including inflation and other factors, and includes prOVisions for estimated claims adjustment expenses. 

2. Unemployment Benefits 

The City also maintains an Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund (Employee Benefit Trust Fund) 
established pursuant to state law. In addition to funding all valid claims, the City 1s required to maintain 
the balance in the fund at not less than 2% of the first $7,000 paid each employee during the preceding 
year. As of September 30, 2013, the required amounts were funded. Claims totaled $166,340 during 
fiscal year 2013. Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are based on patterns of claims payments. 

3. Group Benefits 

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees' Group Benefit Fund (Internal Service. Fund) to account for 
the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of Jackson and employees to be used 
to fund future liabilities and current payment of employer medical claims and related administration 
expenditures of the City's group benefit plan. Revenues totaled $8,238,995 and employee benefit costs 
were $14,347,908 during fiscal year 2013. Claims incurred but not reported at September 30,2013, in the 
Employees' Group Benefit Fund are provided for in the fund balance of that fund based PTimarlly upon an 
actuarls estimate. 

4, TortLiability 

In compliance with the Tort Claims Act, Chapter 46 of ntle 11 and as amended by the 1993 Legislature, 
Section '11-46-17(3) requires all municipalities from and after October 1,1993, to obtain such policies of 
insurance, establish self-insurance reserves, or provide a combination of insurance and reserves 
necessary to cover all risks of claims and suits for which the City of Jackson may be liable under the Tort 
Claims Act. . 

In order to assure compliance with the Tort Claims Act, House Bill 417 established th,e Mississippi Tort 
Claims Board. Municipalities are required to submit plans of insurance, self-insurance and or reserves to 
the Tort Claims Board for approval. 

Municipalities may comply with the requirements of the Tort Claims Act by one of the following methods: 
(1) Purchase of liability insurance, (2) Pooling of two cr more municipalities or other political subdivision to 
purchase liability insurance cr to self insure, (3) Seif-insure with the establishment of a self-insurance 
reserve fund. 
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Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued): 

4. Tort Liability (Continued): 

The City of Jackson is in compliance by using method number three as indicated above. The 2013 fiscal 
year budget had the monies necessary to establish the reserve fund at the required funding level. 
Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined. 

For the past three years, the settlement amount for claims against the City has not exceeded the amount 
of insurance coverage maintained by the City.· . 

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in the liabilities for claims for years ended 
September 30, 2013 and 2012: 

Unemployment Workers' 
Employee Tort Benefits Compensation 

. Benefit Fund Claims Benefits 
2013: 

Beginning Balance 
$ 411,234 $ 2,068,822 $ $ 4,476.073 

Current Year Claims/Changes in Estimates 14,347.908 434.636 166,340 1.623.048 
Claims Payments 14.354.901 425.726 166.340 1 ,615,254 
Ending Balance $ 404 241 $ 21°77.732 $ $ 4,483.8671

2012: 
Beginning Balance 

$ 284.190 $ 2,067.197 $ $ 4,933,746 
Current Year Claims/Changes In Estimates 14,722,224 561.529 127,976 1,230,129 
Claims Payments 14,595,180 559,904 127,976 1,687.802 
Ending Balance $ 411,234 $ 21°68,822 $ $ 4,476,071... 

5. Other Risks 

The City of Jackson is expose.d to various other risks of loss related to theft cif, damage to and 
destructions of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial 
insurance policy covering employee dishonesty up to $100,000 per employee with a $1,000 deductible. 
The City carries casualty insurance in the amount of $300,000,000 with a $5,000 deductible to protect 
against damage to property caused by natural disaster or other casualties. Amounts of settlements have 
not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years. 

B. COMMITMENTS 

During fiscal year 1993, the City entered into a revolving loan agreement with the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) for loans to the Jackson Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund. The City 
has pledged sales tax reimbursements from the State of MiSSissippi to repay the DEQ loans. The 
outstanding balance of the revolving loans at September 30, 2013, was $15,653,196. 

RECEIVED 

JUri 2 3 201~ 
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Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

C. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

Effective November 19, 2013, the water and sewer rates will increase. The sewer rate will increase 108% 
and the water rate will increase 29%. The increase will allow more efficiency for the operation and 
maintenance of the water sewer system which will result in a substantial public benefit to the citizens of 
the City. 

Senate Bill 2839 as passed by the 2011 Regular Session of the Mississippi Legislature authorized the City 
of Jackson to impose a Special Sales Tax of 1% on any person engaging in business in the City. The tax 
applies to those activities taxed at a rate of 7% or more under the Mississippi Sales Tax Law. The Mayor 
and the City Council of Jackson adopted, by resolution, their intent to levy the tax as the result of the city­
wide election held Tuesday, January 14, 2014. This tax will be effective March 1,2014. 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 30, 2014, which represents the date the 
comprehensive annual financial report were available to be issued. Subsequent events after that date 
have not been evaluated. 

D. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

litigation 

The City is defendant in a number of legal actions seeking actual and punitive damages. Contingencies 
totaling $871,000 for which it is probable a loss has been incurred and are subject to reasonable 
estimation are recognized in the financial statements in the governmental funds. The City is vigorously 
defending all matters of litigation and believes there will be no material adverse financial effect. 

The City of Jackson is the subject of an enforcement action by the Unfted States Environmental Protection 
Agency. The City shall pay the sum of $437,916 as a civil penalty to be paid in four (4) installments of 
$109,479. The City shall pay to the United States Environmental Protection Agency sixty percent (60%) 
and forty percent (40%) to the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality of each installment of the 
civil penalty plus any interest due. This civil penalty is for violations of the Clean Water Act. 

Over the last two years, the City of Jackson has been unable to obtain a viable financing plan for the 
Capital City Revitalization Project. Subsequent to September 30,2013, the City began negotiating a deed 
in lieu of foreclosure for the land that is securing the loan under the section 108 loan. As a result, an 
amendment to the City's Consolidated Plan was not necessary. Upon receipt of the deed in lieu of 
foreclosure and the acquisition of all other lands necessary for the convention center project, Jackson 
Redevelopment Authority (JRA) will issue an RFP for a new hotel developer. 

As of September 30, 201.3, the City has resolved all claims, legal relationships and other"issues with TCI 
MS Investment, Inc. The City will begin making payments to Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
August 2018 which is based upon the promissory note signed in 2008. 

Federal Grants 

The City participates in a number of state and federally funded grant programs, principal of which are 
Community Development Block Grant, Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation and 
Department of Justice grants. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate 
grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, 
the City may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of September 3D, 2013, the City has 
disallowed expenditures resulting from audits performed by the following grantor agency: U. S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Community Development Block Grant for the amount of 
$1,939,952.41. 
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September 30,2013 

Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

D. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued): . 

Federal Grants (Continued) 

A settlement has been reached with the grantor to reimburse the Community Development Block Grant 
line of credit with non-federal funds over a three-year period in the following fiscal years: 

1st payment December 2014 $ 646,650.81 
2nd payment December 2015 646,650.80 
3rd payment December 2016 646,650.80 

Total 

E. 	 JOINT VENTURES 

The following provides the summary finanCial information of the Jackson/Hinds Library System as of 
September 30, ?013 (in thousands): 

Jackson/Hinds Library System 

Total assets $1.579 
Total liabilities $ 280 
Total fund equity. $1.299 
Total revenues $ 4.442 (1) 
Total expenditures $ 4 341 
Net increase (decrease) in fund balance $ 101. 

Total debt 

(1) 	 The percentage share of the joint venture applicable to the City of Jackson is 
fifty percent (50%). 

F. 	 EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 

The City of Jackson participates in· two retirement systems administered by the Public Employees' 
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Both systems are defined benefit plans and include a multi­
employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi-employer penSion plan as described below: 

Public Employees' Retirement System 

1. Plan Description and Provisions 

Substantially all City of Jackson full-time employees participate in PERS, a multi-employer, cost­
sharing, defined benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
Benefit prOVisions are established by Section 21-29-201 of the Mississippi Code of 1942 as 
annotated, and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, 
PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 
1-800-444-PERS. 

2. Description of Funding Policy 

PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covered salary and the City of 
Jackson is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 15.75% of 
annual cOvered payroll. The contribution reqUirements of PERS members are established and may 
be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. 
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F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued): 

Annual Pension Cost. For 2013, the City's annual pension cost of $10,793,745 for PERS was equal 
to the City's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of 
the June 30,2013, actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. PERS's unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed 
basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30,2013 was 21 years. 

Three~Year Trend Information for PERS 
(Dollar amounts in Thousands) 

Fiscal Annual Percentage 
Year Pension OfAPC 

Funding Cost (APC) Contributed 
9/30/11 9,628 100% 
9/30/12 7,079 100% 
9/30/13 7,397 100% 

Disability and Relief~ Municipal Retirement Systems Pension Plan 

1. Plan Description 

The City of Jackson contributes to the Municipal Retirement Systems and Fire and Police Disability 
and Relief Fund (MRS), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by 
the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi. The City's uniformed police officers and 
firefighters employed prior to April 1, 1976, participate in MRS. Firefighters and police officers 
employed subsequent to April 1, 1976, are members of the Public. Employees' Retirement System 
of the State as previously described. MRS provides retirement and disability benefits and death 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by Sections 21-29, 
Articles 1, 3, 5 and 7, Mississippi ,Code Ann. (1972) and annual local and private legislation. 
Legislation may be amended only by the State of Mississippi' Legislature. At June 30, 2013, the 
date of the most recent actuarial verification, there were 1 participating municipal employees and 
630 retired participants and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for MRS. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System, 
PERS' Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by cal!.ing (601) 359-3589 or 
1.-800-444-PERS. . 

2. Basis of Accounting 

MRS uses the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized 
. as revenue in the period in which employee services are performed, investment income is 
recognized when earned. Expenses, including benefits and refunds paid, are recognized when 
incurred. Investments for MRS are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or 
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. 
Corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities from 
issuers of similar credit rating. Mortgage securities are valued on the basis of future principal and 
interest payments and counted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. Short-term 
investments are reported at market value when published prices are available, or at cost plus 
accrued interest, which approximates market or fair value. For individual investments where no 
readily ascertainable market value exists, the Public Employees' Retirement System, in consultation 
with their investment advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values. 

76 

I 

I 


I 

I 


•d· 

I 

I 


II 

I 




l 
CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2013 

t 
L Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

l F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued): 

3. Funding Status and Progress 

The actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to (i) help users assess the plan's funding 
status on a going-concern basis, and (ii) assess progress being made in accumulating sufficient 
assets to pay benefits when due. For the years ending September 3D, 1994, and prior, the actuarial 
value of assets was equal to book value: Beginning with the September 3D, 1995, actuarial 
valuation, the actuarial value of assets will be determined on a market related basis that recognizes 
20% of the previously unrecognized and unanticipated gains and losses (both realized and 
unrealized). AllOcation of the actuarial present value of projected benefits between past and future 
service was based on service using the entry age actuarial cost method. Assumptions, including 
projected pay increases, were the same as used to determine the system's annual required 
contribution between entry age and assumed exit age. Entry age was established by subtracting 
credited service from current age on the valuation date. 

As of June 3D, 2013,. the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 48.3% funded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $122 million and the actuarial value of assets was $58.7 
million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $62.8 million. The covered 
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $41,000, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 154,840%. 

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset 

L 

L 

The net pension obligation or asset represents the cUmulative difference since the effective date of 
the statement between City's annual pension cost calculated pursuant to GASB 27 and the 
employer's ccmtribution to the plan, including the pension liability or asset at transition. For 
purposes of transition, funding deficiencies which occurred prior to October 1, 1987 are not required 
to be considered but to do so is acceptable. However, information on fiscal years prior to October 1, 
1987 is not available althol..lgh considerable funding deficiencies occurred to that point. As a result 
of the transition rules under GASB Statement No. 27, the net pension obligation is considerably less 
than if the calculation were made considering all applicable years of the plan. Consequently, 
although the City has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $62,760 as of June 30, 2013, the City 
has recorded a net pension asset of $9,314 in the accompanying government wide statements in 
the governmental activities. 

The City's annual pension cost and net pension asset for the current year calculated pursuant to 
GASB 27 is as follows (in thousands): 

Annual required pension contribution $ (6,158) 

Interest on net pension asset 1,263 

Adjustments to annual required contribution (1 ,576) 

Annual pension cost (6,471 ) 

Contributions made 

Decrease in net pension asset (6,471 ) 

Net pension asset beginning of year 15,785 

Net pension asset end of year $ 9,314 
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Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): I 
F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued): I 

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued): 

As the result of the issuance of $49,790 of general obligation bonds in 1997, the City's contribution Ito the plan has been limited since that date to matching contributions on employee withholdings. 

Since 2001, the City's unfunded actuarial accrued liability related to MRS has grown considerably 

and the annual required contribution for fiscal 2013 is projected to be approximately $6,158. The 

City's plans are to continue the present contribution level to the plan through fiscal 2013. At that 
 I 
point the 1997 general obligation bonds will have been retired and tax millage presently used for 

bond payments amounting to approximately $6.0 million will be diverted toward making annual 

contributions to the plan. Projections of cash flow for the plan indicate contributions of 

approximately $ 6.7 million in 2013 and growing to approximately $9.8 million through 2022 will be 
 I 

. necessary to meet the City's obligations under the plan. To account for the receipt of revenues, 

property tax levies, and payments of bond principal and interest related to the bonds issued to 

provide reductions in the accrued actual liability related to pensions of retired and disabled police 
 j
and fireman, all contributions are paid from in the Disability and Relief Fund (Non-Major Fund). 

In 1997, the City issued $49,790,000 of General Obligation Bonds and contributed the proceeds to 

the MRS plan to provide for a similar reduction in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. As a 
 I 
result of this contribution, the City has not recognized a net pension obligation (NPO) in its financial 

statements. 


IThe entry age actuarial accrued liability. was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the 

system (but not used for funding purposes) as of June 30, 2013. Significant actuarial assumptions 

used in determining the entry age actuarial accrued liability include: (a) a rate of return on the 

investment of present and future assets of 8% per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary' 
 d 
increases of 4.5% to 6.0% per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation and 

seniority/merit. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread th~ 


effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The 

unfunded liability is being amortized over a closed 30 year period with 21 years remaining as of 
 I 
June 30, 2013. At June 3D, .2013, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was determined as 
follows: I

Actuarial Accrued Liability (In Thousands) 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently 

rec~ving benefits $121,171 
 I 

Active members 332 

Vested terminated members not yet 

receiving benefits 
 I 

Total actuarial accrued liability 121,503 

Actuarial Value of Assets 58,743 dUnfunded actuarial accrued liability $ 62760 

During the year ended June 30,2013 the plan experienced an estimated net change of $(2,508) in 
the Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
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Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued): 

5. Funding Policy 

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information foflowing the 
notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial 
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing oVer time relative to the actuarial accrued liability 
for benefits. 

The funding policy for MRS provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined 
rates that are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. In developing the 
annual required contribution shown below, the normal cost arid actuarial accrued liability are 
determined using the entry age actuarial cost method. Unfunded ,actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized on an open basis as a level dollar amount over a period of 40 years. The City's active 
MRS members contribute ten percent of their base salaries to the plan. This difference has 
historically resulted in the actual contribution being less than the annual required contribution. 

6. Contributions Required and Contributions Made: 

Three-Year Trend Information for MRS 
(In Thousands) 

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net Pension 
Year Pension OfAPC Asset 
Funding Cost (APC} Contributed (NPO) 
9/30/11 (6,081) 108.8% 14,201 
9/30/12 (6,382) 124.8% 15,785 
9/30/13 (6,471) 9,314 

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Effective for the 2009 fiscal year, the City adopted GASS Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASS Statement No. 45 
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other: postemployment benefits 
(OPES) expenses/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information. This Statement requires recognition of the cost of other postempJoyment 
benefits during the periods when employees render their services and disclosure about actuarially accrued 
liabilities related to past services and the status and progress offunding the benefits. The requirements of 
GASS statement No. 45 were implemented prospectively beginning October 1, 2007. 

Plan Description 

The City's OPES plan provides post employment healthcare coverage, including dental benefits to eligible 
individuals. Eligible individuals include all regular, full-time employees of the City, as well as permanent 
part-time employees who work at least 20 hours per week, and their spouses and dependent children, 
Employees must have earned at least 25 years of service with the City in order to be eligible for retiree 
healthcare coverage. Coverage continues at the eIection of the retiree until age 65. Retirees must pay 
the required monthly premium for either Single or family coverage, as applicable. As of September 30, 
2013, 158 retirees are eligible to receive benefits under the plan. The plan was established Ulider 
authority of the City Council and may be amended or abolished by council action. 
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Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued): i 
Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Obligation IThe City's annual OPES cost (expense) was calculated based on the annual required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASS 
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to 
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over the actuarial amortization I
period. The ARC was calculated as part of the actuarial valuation performed by an outside actuary 
consultant. The following 'table shows the components of the government's annual 0 PES cost for the 
year and the amount actually contributed to the plan during the year: 

Annual Required Contribution 

Interest on net OPES obligation 

Adjustment to ARC 

Annual OPES cost (expense) 

Less: Contributions made 

In«rease in net OPES obligation 

Net OPES obligation beginning 

Net OPES obligation end of year 

Governmental 

Activities 


$6,951,425 

678,928 

(1,543.412) 

6,086,941 

(1 ,772,323) 

4,314,618 

17,862,756 

$22.177.374 

Business-type 
Activities 

$1,065,575 

104,072 

(236,588) 

933,059 

(271,677) 

661,382 

2,716,244 

$3.377626 

Trend Information for OPES Plan: 

Fiscal Annual Percentage of 
Year OPES Annual OPES 

Ending Cost Cost Contrjbuted 

9/30/11 $5,253,000 13% 
9/30/12 $6,979,000 27% 
9/30/13 $7,060,000 30% 

I 
Total I 

OPEB Plan 

$8,017,000 t 
783,000 I 

(1,780,000) 


7,020,000 
 I 
(2,044,000) i 

4,976,000 

I
20,579,000 

$25.555,000 I 

I 


Net 

OPES 


Obligation 


15,470,000 

20,579,000 

25,555,000 
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Note 6 - Other Information (Continued): 

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued): 

Funding status and funding progress 

l 

The City funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of September 30,2013, the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 
$45,498,000 with no valued assets, resulting in an unfLJnded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of the same 
amount. The covered payroll was not available and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was N/A. 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend: Amounts determined 

L regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision and actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future, 

Although, the actuarial accrued liability for the OPES plan has increased, the City has not provided funding 
for the plan. . 

Actuarial methods and assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan 
members, The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce 
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 

, consistent with the long-term perspective pf the calculations. 

In the September 30,2013 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. It is amortized 
as a level percent of payroll over a 15 year open period and a level-dollar payment. The actuarial 

l assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of retum (net of administrative expenses) and an 
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate trend rate of 
5 percent after ten years. Soth rates include a 2.75 percent inflation assumption. Currently there are no 
assets set aside that are legally held exclusively for OPES. . 
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L CITY OF JACKSON 


Required Supplementary Information 

Employees' Retirement Systems 

Schedule of Funding Progress 


September 3D, 2013 


DISABILITY AND RELIEF - MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEMS PENSION PLAN 


L (Dollar amounts in Thousands) 

L 
Actuarial 
Accrued UAAL as a 

Actuarial Liability Percentage 
Actuarial Value of (AAL) - Unfunded Funded Of Covered 
Valuation Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) Payroll (c) [(b-a)/c] 

L 9/30/2011 65,786 127,461 61,675 51.6 99 62,299.0 

9/30/2012 60,512 124,010 63,498 48.8 42 151,185.7 

L 6/30/2013 58,743 121,503 62,760 48.3 41 154,839.6 

L 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

for the OPEB PLAN 

(Dollar amounts in Thousands) 

Actuarial 
Accrued UAAL as a 

Actuarial Liability Percentage 

Actuarial Value of (AAL) - Unfunded Funded Of Covered 

Valuation Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll 

Date (a) (b) , (b-a) (alb) Payroll (c) [(b-a)Jc]

L 10/1/2009 36,875 36,875 0.00% 66,782 55.2 

l 10/1/2010 36,875 36,875 0.00% 66,782 55.2 

5/1/2012 45,498 45,498 0.00% N/A N/A 

L 
L 
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N onmaj or Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Parks and Recreation Fund 
To account for the operation and maintenance of all City-ovvned parks. Financing is provided by 
a 2-Mill annual property tax levy, admissions, fees and concessions. Appropriations are made 
from General Fund sources to the extent that such tax levy and other revenues are not sufficient 
to fmance expenditures. 

State Grant Fund 
To account for proceeds of state grants or loans other than those grants or loans for Enterprise 
Fund or Capital Projects Fund items. 

Disability and Relief Fund 

l 
To account for the receipt of revenues, property tax levies, and payments of bond principal and 
interest related to bonds issued to provide reductions in the accrued actual liability related to 
pensions of retired and disabled police and fireman employed prior to Aprill, 1976. 

Capital Projects Funds 

Industrial Park Bond Fund, 1982-A 
To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of$3,000,000 to establish an industrial park. 

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond 
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the 
River Hills project. 

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond 
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the 
Paul Moak project. 

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond 
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the 
Fondren project. 

2012 General Obligation Note 
The note was issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to City buildings and the 
purchasing of land. 
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I City of Jackson 

CombIning Balance Sbeet 


Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

As of September 30, 2013 
 ~ 

S2ecla1 Revenue 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Other Receivable 


Total Current Asset 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Other Liabilities 

TotiU liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OR RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue-propetty taxes 

Total deferred inflows of resources 


FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

Committed 


Total Fund Balance 


Totalliabilties, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balances 

Parks and 
Recreation State Grant 

$ 

$ 

2,416,693 
22344,266 

4,760,959 

$ 

$ 

1391848 

139,848 

$ 13,328 
198,338 

$ 

Disability and 

Relief 


$ 532,965 

51674!613 


$ 6,207,578 

$ 480,418 

211,666 

2,332,585 
2,332!585 

480,418 

5,674,613 
5!674,613 

$ 

2,216,708 
2,216,708 

4,760,959 $ 

139,848 

1392848 

139,848 $ 

522547 
52,547 

61207,578 

~ 

Total 

$ 2,949,658 ~ 
8,158!727 

$ 11,108,385 . d 

$ 493,746 
1981338 

I 
!~,j

692!084 

8,007,198 ., 

8,0071198 ~ 

j
139,848 

2,269,255 
21409!103 

~I$ 11,108,385 

.,~.j 


i 

j 

~. 

:ft~ 

j 

::~ 


~ 
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CaI!ital Projects 

2009 Tax Total Nonmajor 
1982 Industrial 2009 Tax 2009 Tax Increment Governmental 

Park Bond Increment Bond Increment Bond Bond 2012 GO Note Total Funds 

$ 36,310 $ 231 $ 160 $ 123 $ 2,075,095 $ 2,111,919 $ 	 5,061,577 
8,158,727 

$ 36,310 $ 231 $ 160 	 $ 2,075,095 $ 2,111,919 $ 13,220,304 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 	 493,746 
198,338 

692,084 

81°°71198 
8,007,198 

36,310 231 160 123 2,075,095 2,111,919 2,251,767 
2,269,255 

160 123 2,075,095 2,111,919 4,521,022 

$ 36,310 $ 231 $ 160 $ 123 $ 2,075,095 $ 2,111,919 =$====13::f,2=2=0~,3=04= 

L 

l 


L 
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City of Jackson 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 


Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 


Special Revenue 

Parks and 
Recreation State Grant 

Disability and 
Relief Total 

I 
REVENUES 
General property taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions 
Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 

$ 2,353,726 
212,464 
251,045 

8,333 
3,880 

2,829,448 

$ 
314,264 

164 

314,428 

$ 5,896,434 
169,368 

689 
1,249 
3,824 

6,071,564 

$ 8,250,160 
696,096 
251,734 

9,746 
7,704 

9,215,440 

~ 

I 
EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations: 
Personnel Services 
Supplies 
Other Services and Charges 
Capital Outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevemies over expenditures 

4,151,558 
679,895 

1,289,873 
343 2255 

6,464,581 

p,635!1332 

26,452 
198,695 
104,374 
329,521 

{15,0931 

6,070,314 

6,070,314 

1,250 

4,151,558 
706,347 ,I 

7,558,882 I 
447,629 

, 12,864,416 

p,648,976) d 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Transfers in: 
General Fund 3,701,044 14,402 3,715,446 ~ 

Issuance oflong term debt 14,135 14,135 
Transfers out: 
General Fund (5,530) (1,100) (6,630) Ie;" 

Sale of capital assets 7,500 7,500 ' 
Total other financing sources 3,717,149 13,302 3,730,451 

Net change in fund balances 82,016 (1,791) 1,250 81,475 at 
Fund balances at beginning of year 2,134,692 141,639 51,297 2,327,628 

Fund balances at end of year $ 2,216,708 $ 139,848 $ 52,547 $ 2,409,103 d 
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L 


Capital Projects 

L 2009 Tax Total Nonmajor 
1982 Industrial 2009 Tax 2009 Tax Increment Governmental 

Park Bond Increment Bond Increment Bond Bond 2012 GO Note Total Funds 

l $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 8,250,160 
696,096 
251,734 

L 147 5,485 5,632 15,378 
7,704 

147 5,485 5,632 9,221,072 

L 
< 4,151,558 

706,347L 94,593 94,593 7,653,475 
447,629 

94,593 94,593 12,9591°°9

l 147 (89,108) (88,9612 Pl737,9372 

l 3,715,446 
11,098,377 11,098,377 11,112,512 

i' 
L (6,630) 

71500 
2,164,874 2,164,874 5,895,325 

L 147 2,075,766 2,075,913 2,157,388 
36,163 231 160 123 (671) 361°06 2,363,634 

l $ 36) 10 $ 231 $ 160 $ 123 $ 2,075,095 $ 2,111,919 ,:;$=====4:!:,5=:2=1!:::,O::22= 

L 

,

L 
,eL 

L 

L 
..i A 
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I 
City of Jackson ~ 

Parks and Recreation Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance.Budget and Actual 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 
 d 
BUdget Amount 

Variance with 
Final Budget ­ I 

OriJIinal Final Actual Amounts l!0sitive~nelativel 
REVENUES 

General property taxes $ 2,335,515 $ 2,335,515 $ 2,353,726 $ 18,211 I 
Intergovernmental 212,464 212,464 

Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions 477,546 577,546 251,045 (326,501 ) , 
Interest 8,333 8,333 -Other 185,000 185,000 6,890 ~178,1102 


Total revenues 2,998,061 3,098,061 2,832,458 (265,603) "
d 
EXPENDITURES 

II 
Current Operations: 

Personnel Services 4,718,955 4,715,329 4,151,558 563,771 

Supplies 887,487 1,065,871 679,895 385,976 

Other Services and Charges 1,477,616 2,387,755 1,289,873 1,097,882 

Capital Outlay 462,251 625,809 343,255 282,554 " 
Total expenditures 7,546,309 8,794,764 6,464,581 2,330,183 I 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over expenditures (4,548,248) (5,696,703) (3,632,123) 2,064,580 

"I
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in: 

General Fund 3,701,044 3,701,044 3,701,044 ~ 
Issuance oflong term debt 14,135 14,135 

Operating Transfers (Out): 

Water/Sewer (5,530) (5,530) I 
Sale of capital assets 7,500 7,500 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,701,044 3,701,044 3,717,149 16,105 d 
Net change in fund balances (847,204) (1,995,659) 85,026 2,080,685 I,
Fund balances at beginning of year 2,134,692 2,134,692 2,134,692 

Fund balances at end ofyear $ 1,287,488 $ 139,033 $ 2,219,718 $ 2,080,685 I 
,:;~1 :I 
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City of Jackson 

State Grants Special Revenue Fund 


L 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 

I Budget Amount

L 

L
Variance with 

I 
Final Budget ­

Original Final Actual Amount posi tive( negative) 

REVENUES 

, Intergovernmental· $ 450,000 $ 687,932 $ 314,264 (373,668) 

.. Interest 164 164 

Total revenues 450,000 687,932 314,428 {373,504l 

l EXPENDITURES 

14,600 14,600 14,600 

Supplies 26,452 (26,452) 

Other Services and Charges 382,040 510,545 198,695 311,850 

Capital Outlay 55,400 164,827 104,374 60,453 

, Total expenditures 452,040 689,972 329,521 360,451

LExcess (deficiency) ohevenues over expenditures (2,040) (2,040) (15,093) {13,053) 

'; OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in: 

General Fund 14,402 14,402 

L

(1,100)L ::::~~:::: Fund {1, lOOl 
Total other fmancing sources (uses) 13,302 13,302 

t Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end of year $ 

(2,040) 

141,639 

139!599 $ 

(2,040) 

141,639 

139,599 $ 

(1,791) 

141,639 

139,848 $ 

249 

249 
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I 
City of Jackson 


Disability and Relief Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 


Budget Amount 

REVENUES 

Ori~inal Final Actual Amount 

Variance with 
Final Budget ­

1!0sitive(negative) 

General property taxes 

Intergovernmental 

Admissions, fees; rentals and concessions 

Interest 

Other 

Total revenues 

$ 5,713,618 

189,832 

4,200 

5,907,650 

$ 5,713,618 

189,832 

4,200 

5,907,650 

$ 5,896,434 

169,368 

689 

1,249 

3,824 

6,071,564 

$ 182,816 

(20,464) 

689 

1,249 

. (3762 
163,914 

EXPENlUTURES 

Current Operations: 

Other Services and Charges 

Total expenditures 

5,907,650 

5,907,650 

5,907,650 

5,907,650 

6,070,314 

6,070,314 
11 62,6641 
{162,6641 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,250 (1,250) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in ftmd balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 51,297 51,297 

1,250 

51,297 

(1,250) 

Fund balances at end of year $ 51,297 $ 51,297· $ 52,547 $ {1,2501 
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City of Jackson 


Debt Service Fund 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 


For the Year Ended September 30,2013 


Budgeted Amounts 

l 
Variance with 
Final Budget-

L 
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative) 

REVENUES 

General property taxes 

l 
Current realty taxes $ 2,274,645 $ 2,274,645 $ 2,307,401 $ 32,756 

Current personal taxes 915,576 915,576 950,647 35,071 

Delinquent taxes 75,000 75,000 63,907 (11,093) 

Automobile ad valorem taxes 361,803 361,803 425,099 63,296 

Homestead exemption 92,600 92,600 105,279 12,679 

' Interest 1,000 1,888 11,038 9,150•
L Special assessments 2,908 2,908 

Other revenues 3,696,544 

" Total revenues 7,417,168 

LEXPENIHTURES 

General obligation bonds 

L Principal 1,192,000 479,628 2,779,628 (2,300,000) 

Interest 6,408,488 5,113,311 5,018,667 94,644 

Bank service charge 15,425 15,425 13,560 1,865 

l Refunding bond issuance cost 705,819 708,804 (2,985) 

Other services and charges 1,845,535 1,309,348 536,187 

Total expenditures 7,615,913 8,159,718 9,830,007 (1,670,289)l Deticiency of revenues over (under) expenditures (198,745) (1,098,938) (2,614,435) 1,515,497 

OTHER FINANCING SOeRCES (USES) 

i Transfers in 2,322,300 2,322,300•Sale of bonds 64,940,000 64,940,000 

Premium on sale of bonds 5,738,416 5,738,416 

L Payment to refunded bond escrow {69,891,033) (69,891,032) 


Total other financing sources (uses) 3,109,683 3,109,684 ' 1 


LNet change in fund balances (198,745) 2,010,745 495,249 1,515,496 

" Fund balances at beginning ofyear 2,331,343 2,331,343 2,331,343 

7,060,780 7,215,572 

Fund balances at end of year $ 2,132,598 $ 4,342,088 $ 2,826,592 $ 1,515,496 

~ 
L 

L 
It
L 
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City of JacJ{son 


1982 Industrial Parl{ Bond Capital Project Funds 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 


Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget-

Actual Positive 
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Interest 

Total revenues 

$ $ $ 147 

147 

$ 147 

147 

EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations: 

Other Services and Charges 34,760 34,760 34,760 

Total expenditures 34,760 34,760 34,760 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

(34,760) 

(34,760) 

36,163 

(34,760) 

(34,760) 

36,163 

147 

147 

36,163 

34,907 

34,907 

Fund balances at end of year $ 1,403 $. 1,403 $ 36,310 $ 34,907 
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City of Jackson 

1998 GO Bond Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 

Variance 
with Final 
Budget­
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 3,144 

3,144 

3,815 

171,277 

L 
Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditure 

Net change in fund balances 

495,246 

{495,2462 
(495,246) 

365,223 

{365!2232 
(365,223) 

190,131 

(186,9872 
(186,987) 

t..:.II. 
Fund balances at beginning of year 365,223 365,223 365,223 

Fund balances at end of year $ {130,O23 2 $ $ 178,236 

175,092 

178,236 

178,236 

$ 178,236 

Budgeted Amou nts 

Original Final 

REVENUES 

Interest $ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations 

Supplies 	 5,229 3,815 

Other services and charges. 	 490,017 361,408 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 	 3,144 

3,144 

190,131 
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City of Jackson d 
2003 GO Public Improvement Bond Fund 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 
 I 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with IFinal Budget-

Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental Revenue 
Interest 

Total revenues 

$ 6,786,312 
81663 

6,794,975 

$16,169,770 
8,663 

16,178,433 

$ 7,166,463 
10,956 

7,177,419 

$ (9,003,307) 
2,293 

(9,001,014) 

EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations 

Personnel services 

Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Capital outlay 

17,179 

32,818 

11,111,740 

39,500 

17,179 

31,828 

19,283,181 

39,500 

7,139,588 

17,179 

31,828 

12,143,593 

39,500 

Total expenditures 11,201,237 191371,688 7,139,588 12,232,100 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures { 4,406,262) {3,193,2552 37,831 3,231,086 

Net change in fund balances (4,406,262) (3,193,255) 37,831 3,231,086 

Fund balances at beginning of year 3,193,255 3,193,255 3,193,255 

Fund balances at end of year $ (1,213,007) $ $ 3,231,086 $ 3,231,086 

'~....•.• 

~ .

• 
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l City of Jackson 
. 2006 GO Bond Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
For the year ended September 30, 2013 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance 

with Final 
Budget-

Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Interest $ $ $ 1,034 $ 1,034 

Total revenues 1,034 1,034 

EXPENDITURES 


Current Operations 


Other services and charges 


Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures __________ 1,034 1,034 

Net change in fund balances 1,034 1,034 

Fund balances at beginning ofyear 315,627 315,627 315,627 

Fund balances at end of year $ 315,627 $ 315,627 $ 316,661 =$===1,=03=4= 

L 
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City of Jackson 

2009 GO Bond Fund 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 

REVENUES 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 
Actual 

Amounts 

Variance 
with Final 
Budget-
Positive 

(Negativel 

Intergovenmental 

Interest 

Total revenues 

$ $ 200,000 

200,000 

$ 200,000 

13,117 

213,117 

13 1117 

13,117 

EXPENDITURES 
Current Operations 

Supplies 

Other services and charges 

5,229 

49°2°17 

3,815 

3612408 2,026,911 

3,815 

{1,665,503 l 
Total expenditures 495,246 365,223 2,026,911 (1,661,6882 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures (495,246) (165,223) (1,813,794) (1,648,571) ~ 
II 

Net change in fund balances (495,246) (165,223) (1,813,794) (1,648,571) 

Fund balances at beginning of year 4,240,771 4,240,771 4,240,771 ~.; 

Fund balances at end of year $ 4,075 1548 $ 2,426,977 $ (1 1648 257 12 • 
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City of Jackson 


2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fund 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 


Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget­

Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES 

Interest $ $ $ $ 

L Total revenues 

L 
EXPENDITURES 


Current Operation~: 


Other services and charges 


Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) 

Total other financing sourceS and uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 123 

Fund balances at end of year $ $ $ 123 $ 
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I 
City of Jackson 


2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Funds 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and ACtual 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 

Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget-

Actual Positive 
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Interest $ $ $ $ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations: 


Other Services and"Charges 


Total expenditures 


Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in: 

Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning ofyear 231 

Fund balances at end of year $ $ $ 231 $ 

~.j'.'

" 

97 


I 



L 

City of Jackson 

2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Funds 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 

For the year ended September 30,2013 


Budgeted Amounts 
Variance with 
Final Budget-

Actual Positive 
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Interest $ $ $ $ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations: 

Other Services and Charges 


Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in: 

Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds 


Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 
Fund balances at beginning ofyear 160 

Fund balances at end ofyear $ $ $ 160 $ 

98 
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I 
City of Jackson 


2012 GO Note Capital Project Funds 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 


Budgeted Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget-

Actual Positive 
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Interest $ $ $ 5,485 $ 5,485 


Other 


Total revenues 5,485 5,485 


EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations: 

I,······~c; 

Other Services and 'Charges 920,875 9,934,378 94,593 9,839,785 


Total expenditures 920,875 9,934,378 94,593 91839,785 


Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures ~920,8752 {9,934,378) (89,108) 9,845,270 ,.

"OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers out (8,933,503) (8,933,503) 

Proceeds from long term debt 9,013,503 11,098,377 2,084,874 
Total other financing sources (uses) 9,013,503 2,164,874 (6,848,629~ 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

(920,875) 

(671) 

. (920,875) 

(671) 

2,075,766 

(671) 

2,996,641 

Fund balances at end of year $ ~921,5462 $ ~921,5462 $ 2,075,095 $ 2,996,641 

j: 
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City of Jackson 


Capitol Street 2-Way 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 


For the year ended September 30, 2013 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental Revenue $ $ 7,298,915 

Interest 

Total revenues 7,298,915 

EXPENDITURES 

Current Operations 

Other services and charges 7,761,666 

Total expenditures 7,761,666 

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures (462,751) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) 

Transfers in 462,751 

Total other financing sources and uses 462,751 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end ofyear $ $ 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget-

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 2,137,562 

975 

$ (5,161,353) 

975 

2,138,537 (5,160,378) 

349,839 7,411,827 

349,839 7,411,827 

1,788,698 2,251,449 

462,751 

462,751 

2,251,449 2,251,449 

$ 2,251,449 =$==2=,2=5=1=,44=9= 

RECEIVED 

JUN 2 3 2Dl4 
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L 

Nonmajor Proprietary 

Madison Sewage Disposal System Fund 

To account for costs of construction, operation and maintenance of the East Madison County 
Sewage Disposal System. The City ofRidgeland, Mississippi will be responsible for the 
service contracts with Madison County participating in the system. 

Transportation Fund 

To account for operational costs of the City's transit system. Deficiencies in the revenues 
over expenses. are financed by the City. 

l 
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City of Jackson 


Combining Statement of Net Position 


Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds 


As of September 30, 2013 

Madison 
Sewage Transportation Totals 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalent $ 53,417 $ $ 53,417 

Intergovernmental Receivable 2,795,358 2,795,358 

Total Current Asset 53,417 2,795,358 2,848,775 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost 

Land 450,000 450,000 

Buildings 187,903 187,903 

Water plant, distribution system and equipment 532,942 410,690 943,632 

Automotive and other equipment 5,278 11,178,965 11,184,243 

538,220 12,227,558 12,765,778 

Less: accumulated depreciation (227,278) {6,301,442) (6,528,720) 

310,942 5,926,116 6,237,058 

Construction in progress 13,800 2,424,314 2,438,114 

Net property; plant and equipment 324,742 8,350,430 8,675,172 

Total Assets $ 378,159 $ 11,145,788 $ 11,523,947 
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ICity of Jackson 

Combining Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds iAs of September 30, 2013 

I 
Madison 
Sewage Trans~ortation Totals 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $ 42,315 $ 150,757 $ 193,072 I 
Due to other funds 4,067,463 4,067,463 


Compensated absences 9,006 9,006 
 ICurrent portion of long term debt: 

Lease Obligations 219,587 

Total current liabilities 42,315 4,446,813 4,489,128 

Post Employment BenefitS accrual 49,406 49,406 

Long Term Debt (less amounts classified as current liabilities): 

Lease obligations 370,452 


Total long-term debt 370,452 370,452 


Total liabilities 42,315 4,866,671 4,908,986 


NET POSITION 

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 324,742 7,760,391 8,085,133 

Unrestricted 11,102 ~1,481,274l ~1,470,I72l 

Total Net Position 335,844 6,279,117 

Total liabilities and net position $ 378,159 '$ 11,145,788 
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City of Jackson 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds· Nonmajor Funds 
I7­

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

I 
Madison Sewage Transportation Totals 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Receipts from customers and users $ $ 676,999 .$ 676,999 I
, 

Receipts from other revenue 108 (1,656,824) 

Payments to suppliers (67,855) (5,509,858) 

Payments to employees ~217,992l 

(1,656,716) 

(5,577,713) 

{217,9921 
id 

Net cash used for 

Operating activities (67,747) (6,707,675) (6,775,422) at 
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Transfers In 92,098 4,409,563 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related 

4,501,661 I 
financing activities 92,098 4,409,563 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 

4,501,661 

II{ 

Financing Activities 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (5,278) (752,992) 

Proceeds from capital debt 76,540 

(758,270) 

76,540 i'> 

Principal paid on capital debt (212,094) (212,094) 

Proceeds from capital contributions 3,154,366 

Net cash provided by capital and related 

3,154,366 t 
financing activities {5,2782 2,265,820 

Cash Flow Provided by Investing Activities: 

2,260,542 , 
Interest on investments 119 119 

Net cash provided by investing activities 119 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 19,073 (32,173) 

119 

(13,100) f" 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34,344 32,173 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 53,417 $ $ 

66,517 

53,417 I. ~ 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 

Used for Operating Activities: i 
Operating loss $ {81,9262 $ {6,396,7OO2 $ {6,478,6262 
Depreciation expense 13,148 807,927 

(Increase) decrease in other receivable (2,131,481) 

821,075 

(2,131,481) I 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 1,138,519 1,138,519 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,031 (129,591) 

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 283 

(128,560) 

283 if 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilties 3,368 3,368 

Total adjustments 14,179 (310,975) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ {67,7472 $ {6,707,6752 $ 

(296,796) 

{6,775,4222 dp 

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing 

Activities: I 
Borrowing under capital lease $ $ 76,540 

"I 
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l 

Fiduciary Funds 

Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund 

. To account for money held in trust to fund unemployment claims pursuant to State law. 

Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund 

To account for contributions from the public sector which are held in trust for police and fire 
allowable claims. 

Mausoleum Trust Fund 

To account for " funds to be used for maintenance and upkeep ofthe Hemy Mausoleum 
located in Kernaghan Cemetery. 

Tax Collections 

To account for receipt of tax collections for and subsequent payment to the JacksonIHinds 

Library System, Jackson Municipal Separate School District, Capital City Community 

Convention Center, and Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau. 


R::CEIVf;'[) 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

ALL TRUST FUNDS 


COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN POSITION AND LIABILITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Unemployment 

Compensation 


Revolving 

Fund 


Charitable 
Trust Mausoleum 

Fire and Police Trust 
Fund Fund Total 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment at fair value: 

Certificate of deposit 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Liabilities: 
Payables to others 

Total liabilities 

Net Position: 
Held in trust 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net position 

$ 

$ 

432,216 $ 

$ 

9,155 

9 z 155 

$ 

$ 

-
32,270 

321270 

$ 441,371 

32,270 

$ 473,641 

$ 

432,216 

432,216 $ 

9,155 

9,155 

9,155 $ 

32,270 

321270 

32,270 

473,641 

4731641 

$ 473,641 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

ALL TRUST FUNDS 


COMBINING STATElVIENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


Unemployment 
Compensation Trust Mausoleum 

Revolving Fire and Police Trust 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Additions: 
Interest $ 1,384 $ 65 $ - $ 1,449 
Other additions 209,274 209,274 

Total additions 210,658 65 210,723 

Deductions: 
General government 
Trust funds 166,339 166 339z

Total deductions 166,339 1662339 

Change in Net Position 44,319 65 44,384 

Net position at beginning of year 387,897 9,090 321270 429,257

k Net position at end of year $ 4322216 $ 9,155· $ 32,270 $ 473,641 

l 

l 
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I 
CITY OF JACKSON 


ALL AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Capital City Community Convention C
Balance at October 1,2012 
Additions 
Deductions 

enter 
$ 

ASSETS 
Cash 

and Cash Total 
Eguivalents Assets 

21,379 $ 21,379 
4,609,627 4,609,627 
4,618,764 42618,764 

$ 

LIABILITIES 

Other Total 
Liabilities Liabilities 

21,379 $ 21,379 
4,609,627 4,609,627 
4,6182764 426182764 

Balance at September 30,2013 $ 122242 $ 12,242 $ 122242 $ 12,242 

Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau 
Balance at October 1, 2012 
Additions 
Deductions 

$ - $ 
3,246,324 
32246 2324 

3,246,324 
3,2462324 

$ - $ 
3,246,324 
32246,324 

3,246,324 
322462324 

Balance at September 30,2013 $ - $ $ - $ 

Jackson/Hinds Library System 
Balance at October 1, 2012 
Additions 
Deductions 

$ - $ 
1,634,288 
1,6342288 

1,634,288 
12634,288 

$ - $ 
1,634,288 
126342288 

1,634,288 
1,634,288 

Balance at September 30,2013 $ - $ $ - $ 

Jackson Municipal Separate School Dis
Balance at October 1, 2012 
Additions 
Deductions 

trict 
$ - $ 

9,357,325 
9,3572325 

9,357,325 
923572325 

$ - $ 
9,357,325 
9,3572325 

9,357,325 
92357,325 

Balance at September 30, 2013 $ - $ $ - $ 

Tota1- All Agency Funds: 
Balance at October 1, 2012 
Additions 
Deductions 

$ 21,379 
18,847,564 
18,8562701 

$ 21,379 
18,847,564 
182856z701 

$ 21,379 
18,847,564 
1828562701 

$ 21,379 
18,847,564 
1828562701 

Balance at September 30, 2013 $ 122242 $ 122242 $ 122242 $ 12,242 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE (1) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012 


2013 2012 

Governmental fnnds capital assets: 
Land $ 14,443,131 $ 14,500,351 
Buildings ,81,480,260 81,480,260 
Automotive and equipment: 75,312,543 70,639,460 
Infrastructure 219,955,869 214,244,644 
Constru.ct1on in progress 98,565,717 93,985,876 

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 489,7572520 $ 474,850,591 

Investment in governmental funds capital assets by source: 

Assets prior to 1985 not segregated 
by sources $ 14,002,713 $ 14,002,713 

General Fund revenues 81,347,095 77,050,416 
Special Revenue Fund revenues 95,226,355 95,008,222 
Special Assessment bonds 2,123,934 2,123,934 
General Obligation bonds 252,669,962 242,408,749 
Limited Obligation bonds 4,330,429 4,330,429 
Debt Service Fund revenues 65,000 65,000 
Federal grants 39,465,922 39,377,918 
State grants 95,161 52,261 
County grants 430,949 430,949 

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 489,757,520 $ 474,850,591 

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances (excluding accumulated depreciation) 
related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds 
are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds 
are included as governmental activities in the statement of net position. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (1) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Land Buildings Infrastructure 
Automotive and 

Equipment 
Construction 
lnProgress Total 

Assets prior to 1985 not segregated by 
function and activity $ 10,957,843 $ $ $ 3,044,869 $ $ 14,002,712 

General Government: 
Planning 
Code Services 
Telecommunication 
Data Processing I Information System 
Vehicle Pool Flllld 
Mayor's Office of Development Assistance 
Office Services 
Purchasing 
Finance and Management 
Personnel 
Municipal Court Services 
Vehicle Maintenance 
Minority Business Development 

401,119 

100,000 

43,001 

4,554,834 
42,257 

2,299,392 

5,816 

39,349 

8,943 

133,238 

387,080 
682,941 
188,241 

5,724,086 
1,502,804 

104,679 
146,335 
50,452 

272,762 
225,894 

1,451,978 
720,841 

27,598 

3,348,277 

712,767 
1,789 

4,218,826 
682,941 

4,752,018 
5,766,343 
1,502,804 

204,679 
146,335 
50,452 

2,705,392 
225,894 

2,164,745 
728,446 

27,598 

Total general government ___501,119 6,945,300 181,530 11,485,6~1 4,062,833 23,176,473 

Urban Development and Housing: 
Neighborhood Enhancement Task 
Redevelopment Projects 
Post Office Project 
Union Station 

87,578 
500 

15,044,796 243,000 

11,125 
69,874 

11,125 
157,452 

500 
15,287,796 

Total urban development and housing 88,078 15,044,796 243,000 __ 8Q,999 15,416,873 

Health and Welfare: 
Public RelationslInformation 
Senior Services 
Day Care Services 
Senior Centers/Community Centers 
Group Home 
Human and Cultural Services 

46,245 

251,344 
281,849 

1,271,615 

15,645 

16,109 

1,81£ 

14,829 
455,372 
256,428 

19,813 

48z671 

14,829 
706,716 
554,386 

1,291,428 
46,245 
66,192 

Total health and welfare 46,245 1,820,453 17,985 795,113 2,679,796 

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds, 
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the 
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets ofintemal service funds are included as 

109governmental activities in the statement ofnet position. 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Land Buildings Infrastructure 
Automotive all( 

Equipment 
Construction 
In Progress Total 

Public Safety: 
Fire Department 
Police Department 
Small Animal Control 
Juvenile Justice 
Emergency Management 
Conmnmication Center 
Public Safety Garage 

. $ , 75,000 
123,992 

$ 5,300,973 
6,037,047 
1,366,367 

431,482 

1,292,879 

$ 3,580,587 
856,190 

4,502,506 

$ 17,760,322 
26,947,882 

17,746 
86,199 
17,914 

300,903 
29,060 

$ 677,910 
12,249,406 

$ 27,394,792 
46,214,517 

1,384,113 
5,020,187 

17,914 
1,593,782 

29,060 

Total public safety __198,992 14,428,748 8,939,283 45,160,026 12,927,316 81,654,365 

Public Works: 
Cemeteries 8,430 143,318 151,748 
Engineering 585,273 1,020,866 5,185,518 6,791,657 
Traffic Engineering 17,215 638,701 2,342,985 1,506,018 4,504,919 
Traffic Signals 2,355,398 425,624 8,881,133 11,662,155 
Care and Maintenance ofPublic Buildings 7,817,689 433,294 131,752 10,201,865 18,584,600 
Custodial Services 121,244 121,244 
Public Works Deputy Dir/Adm 41,124 3,128 44,252 
Pest Control 1,426 1,426 
Central Supply (65) (65) 
Streets 354,278 128,148,222 400,945 46,328,235 175,231,680 
Storm Drainage 70,154,513 816,301 6,752,068 77,722,882 
Bridges 23,032 2,847,769 2,870,801 
Soil ConseIVation 120,000 112,159 232,159 

Total public works 939,551 8,984,200 201,865,319 9,610,172 76,520,216 297,919,458 

Culture and Recreation: 
Planetarium 827,314 34,963 495,482 1,357,759 
Jackson Zoological Park 3,000,000 465,122 172,281 3,637,403 
Municipal Art Building 5,758 29,049 5,907 40,714 
Parks and Recreation 225,820 16,678,250 7,947,871 3,019,253 (142,510) 27,728,684 
Teen Center 5,293 5,293 
Library 5,710,933 156,099 2,437,501 8,304,533 
Smith Robertson Cultural Center 1,238,810 185,738 57,595 155,007 1,637,150 
City Auditorium and Art Center 3,849,374 5111131 64,922 2,4332°73 6,858,500 

Total culture and recreation 225,82~ 31,310,439 8,708,752 4,269,673 5,055,352 49
2
570,036 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
CAFITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Automotive and Construction 
Land Buildings Infrastmctnre Egui,Ement In Progress Total 

Miscellaneous: 
City CouncilfMayor $ $ 402,665 $ $ 397,248 $ - $ 799,913 
City Clerk 165,842 165,842 
City Hall 2,526,372 2,526,372 
Legal 17,287 246,356 263,643 
Mayor's Action Line 34,862 34,862 
Indnstrial Park 1,485,483 1,485,483 
Internal Audit 2]!692 21z692 

Total miscellaneous 1,485,483 2,946,324 866,000 5,297,807 


Total governmental funds capital assets $ _14,443,131 $ 81,480,260 $219,955,869 $ 75,312,543 $ 98,565,717 $ 489,757,520 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY(I) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets 

October 1,2012 Additions Deductions 

Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets 
SeEtember 30, 2013 

General Government: 
Planning 
Code Services 
Information Systems 
Transportation 
Data Processing 
Vehicle Pool 
Telecommunications 
Office Services 
Purchasing 
Finance and Management 
Personnel 
Municipal Court Services 
Vehicle Maintenance 

$ 2,315,941 
633,095 

1,528,193 
10,192,613 

724,267 
844,598 

lO,369,823 
1,669 

50,839 
7,706,344 

136,244 
1,947,895 
1,638,917 

$ 566,885 

233,603 

87,954 
21,187 

1,789 

$ 57,220 
60,031 
37,881 

13,769 

11,734 

$ 2,825,606 
573,064 

1,723,915 
10,192,613 

724,267 
932,552 

10,391,OlO 
1,669 

50,839 
7,692,575 

136,244 
1,947,895 
1,628,972 

Total general government 38,090,438 911,418 180,635 38,821,221 

Urban Development and Housing: 
Redevelopment Projects 
Union Station 

272,751 
13,448,496 

272,751 
13!448,496 

Total urban development and housing 13,721,:211 13,721,247 

Health and Welfare: 
Senior Services 
Day Care Services 
Senior Centers/Community Centers 
Human and Cultural Services 

810,241 
1,219,280 

616,255 
1,332,992 73!512 

10,300 

34,427 

8 lO,24 1 
1,208,980 

616,255 
1,372,077 

Total health and welfare 3,978,768 73,512 44,727 4,007,553 

(I) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. 
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the 
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as 
governmental activities in the statement ofnet position. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets 

October 1,2012 Additions Deductions 

Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets 
Se[!tember 30, 2013 

Public Safety: 
Fire Depart:IiIent 
Police Department 
Small Animal Control 
Juvenile Justice 
Communication Center 

$ 27,906,331 
42,995,816 

1,714,102 
11,693,078 
4,120,964 

$ 4,030,350 
1,347,581 

$ 14,642 
919,773 

$ 31,922,039 
43,423,624 

1,714,102 
11,693,078 
4,120,964 

Public Safety Garage 7.J'-­c fn 
Total public safety ::z: (")

N m 
u.t -

Public Works: ......, < 
Cemeteries 

c;:::) m-Engineering 
JIr" 0 

Trattic Engineering 
Public Works Administration 
Care and Maintenance ofPublic Buildings 
Custodial Services 
Pest Control 
Central Sup[Ply 
Streets 
Storm Drainage 
Soil Conservation 

230,776 

88,661,Q67 

356,014 
4,502,852 

14,37':1,K67 
14,408 

21,389,716 
131,867 

10,452 
709,337 

164,330,333 
63,249,839 

482,909 

5,177,931 

710,856 
2,':1':16,753 

(31,314) 

9,533,269 
1,533,860 

934,415 

2,5':15,31':1 

3,590 
10,368 

2,193,222 
533,147 

230,776 

93,104,583 

356,014 
5,213,708 

14,7KI,301 
14,408 

21,354,812 
121,499 

10,452 
709,337 

171,670,380 
64,250,552 

482,909 

Total public works _2§9,557,594 14,743,424 5,335,§46 278,965,372 

Culture and Recreation: 
Planetarium 
Jackson Zoological Park 
Municipal Art Building 
Parks and Recreation 
Library 
Smith Robertson Cultural Center 
City Auditorium and Art Center 

4,789,583 
3,678,574 

75,838 
18,288,770 
10,611,997 
2,856,528 

13,892,048 

34,963 
9,100 

898,260 

11,290 
148,736 

47,584 

734,385 

4,776,962 
3,687,674 

75,838 
18,452,645 
10,611,997 
2,867,818 

142040z784 

Total culture and recreation 54,193,338 
113 
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CITY OF JACKSON 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Miscellaneous: 
City Council/Mayor 
City Clerk 
Legal 
Mayor's Action Line 
Internal Audit 

Total miscellaneous 

Total governmental funds ca~ital assets 

Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets 

October 1,2012 

$ 6,383,538 
45,060 

187,849 
7,674 

24,018 

6,648,139 

$ 474,850,591 

Additions 

$ 

$ 22,208,634 

Deductions 

$ 

24,313 

$ 7,301,705 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Funds Capital Assets 
September 30, 2013 

6,383,538 
45;060 

163,536 
' 7,674 
24,018 

6,623,826 

489,757,520 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 


This part of the City of Jackson's comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detail information as a context for understanding what the information in the fmancial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the 
city's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 116 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City of 
Jackson's fin,ancial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 121 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City of Jackson's most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 125 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City 
of Jackson's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional 
debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 132 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City of Jackson's financial activities talce 
place. 

Operating Information 134 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the City of Jackson's financial report relates to the services the city 
provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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City of Jacl{son 

Net Position by COIIIPonent 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Fiscal Year 

2013 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Govemmental activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of rdated debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total governmental activities net position 

$ 179,234 
13,446 

$ 187,511 
15,040 

(41,290) 
$ 161,261 

$ 180,357 
17,469 

(36,100) 
$ 161,726 

$ 188,172 
23,585 

$ 180,607 
32,587 

$ 197,359 
28,617 

$ 207,047 
64,061 

$ 16R,I44 
4,169 

$ 131,159 
4,296 

$ 113,083 
5,787 

53,370 
$ 172,240 

Business-type activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type activities net position 

$ 101,011 $ 184,185 $ 183,735 $ 176,170 

77,521 
$ 253,691 

$ 163,408 
3,861 

82,482 
$ 249,751 

$ 156,309 
3,820 

91,591 
$251,720 

$ 147,01J 
3,765 

$ 135,512 $ 80,995 
3,643 

$ 128,208 
3,581 

85,831 
$ 217,620 

Primary government 
Invested in eapital asseL~, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primary govemment net position 

$ 280,245 
IJ,446 

$ 371,696 
15,041 

$ 364,092 
17,469 

$ 364,342 
23,585 

$ 344,015 
36,448 
49,878 

$ 430,341 

$ 353,668 
32,437 

$ 354,060 
67,826 

$ 

$ 

303,656 
7,830 

127,894 
439,380 

$ 

$ 

212,154 
7,939 

177,373 
397,466 

$ 241,291 
9,368 

Source: Statement of Net Position, 
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City of Jackson 

Changes in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(accrual basis of accounting) 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Fiscal Year 

Expenses 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Governmental activities: 

General government 
Publ ic safety 
Publ ic works 
Human and cultural services 
Employee benefits 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities expenses 

$ 40,602 
64,780 
24,661 
14,311 
7,860 
8,230 

160,444 

$ 29,456 
57,055 
24,721 
13,756 
8,685 
7,448 

141,121 

$ 29,312 
59,166 
21,774 
16,011 
8,625 
5,864 

140,752 

$ 32,358 
56,922 
27,451 

9,645 
8,764 
8,830 

143,970 

$ 44,790 
55,996 
31,518 
14,170 
2,149 
5,389 

154,012 

$ 69,721 
53,664 
25,301 
14,g90 

1,765 
5,917 

171,258 

$ 49,147 
62,576 
15,993 
13,067 
2,180 
5,647 

148,610 

$ 29,179 
29,109 
35,819 
17,004 

1,836 
4,73 I 

1 17,678 

$ 33,311 
53,193 
23,972 
14,069 
3,257 
9,307 

137,109 

$ 30,021 
59,495 
19,657 
10,829 
2,329 
5,965 

128,296 

Business-type activities: 
Water/Sewer 
Transportation 
Madison Sewage 

Sanitation 

48,891 
7,554 

82 
11,699 

55,347 
6,970 

74 
11,894 

41,795 
8,713 

51 
11,156 

41,064 
7,956 

10,244 

42,275 
7,990 

10,296 

45,279 
7,685 

10,299 

39,904 
6,852 

10,931 

41,184 
6,589 

9,893 

39,663 
6,167 

8,979 

39,299 
6,117 

9,205 

Total business-type activities expenses 

Total primary government expenses 

68,226 

$ 228,670 

74,285 

$ 215,406 

61,715 

$ 202,467 

59,264 

$ 203,234 

60,561 

$ 214,573 

63,263 

$ 234,521 $ 

57,687 

206,297 

57,666 

$ 175,344 $ 

54,809 

191,918 $ 

54,621 

182,917 

Program Revenues 

Governmental activities: 

Charges for services 
General government 

Publ ic Safety 
Public Works 
Human and cultural services 
Employee benefits 

Operating grants and contributions 

Capital grants and contributions 

Total governmental activities program revenues 

$ 14,204 
823 
200 
595 

12,261 

11,291 

39,374 

$ 15,019 
798 
253 
885 

10,114 

1,970 

29,039 

$ 13,075 
367 

15 
619 

11,570 

5,025 

30,671 

$ 4,951 
3,241 
1,206 
2,025 

17,441 

2,226 

31,090 

$ 6,334 
2,824 
1,469 
1,575 

16,681 

6,188 

35,071 

$ 4,525 
3,135 
1,393 
2,813 

18,436 

7,912 

38,214 

$ 7,422 
2,806 
1,147 
1,667 

12,968 

1,771 

27,781 

$ 3,139 
3,003 
1,698 
1,481 

22,969 

5,955 

38,245 

$ 5,562 
7,993 
7,038 
2,524 

12,720 

2,034 

37,871 

$ 3,101 
5,662 
2,682 
2,036 

901 

4,611 

12,774 

31,767 

Business-type activities: 

Charges for services: 
Water/Sewer 
Transportation 
Sanitation 

44,052 
677 

11,311 

47,966 
589 

12,007 

47,578 
529 

11,473· 

41,974 
431 

11,258 

41,440 
360 

10,850 

47,468 
397 

11,981 

43,847 
426 

10,476 

42,262 
448 

9,113 

39,023 
423 

8,016 

40,809 
475 

9,031 

Operating grants and cOlitributions 

Capital grants and contributions 

582 

4,675 

631 

2,844 

706 

2,568 

664 

4,584 

694 

1,74 I 

832 

1,534 

1,378 

5,133 

4,391 4,137 1,947 

Total business-type activities prograra revenue 61,297 64,037 62,854 58,911 55,085 62,212 61,260 56,214 51,599 52,262 


Total primary government program revenues $ 100,671 $ 93,076 $ 93,525 $ 90,001 $ 90,156 $ 100,426 $ 89,041 $ 94,459 $ 89,470 $ 84,029 
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Fiscal Year 
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Ne! (expense)/revenue 
Governmental activities 
Business-lype activities 
Total primary government net expenses 

(121,071) (112,083) 
(10,248) 

$(122,332) 

(l1O,081) 
1,l39 

$( 108,942) 

(112,880) 
(353) 

$(113,233) 

(118,941) 
(5,4762 

$( 124,417) 

(133,044) (120,829) (79,433) (99,238) 
(3,210) 

$ (102,448) 

(96,529) 

General Hevenues and Other Charges in 

Net Assets 

Governmental activities' 

Taxes 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 

Investment earnings 
Gain on sale of capital asset~ 
Miscellaneolls 
Transfers 

Total governmental activitlCs 

$ 72,437 
32,718 

8,245 
145 
108 
577 

(9,5852 
104,644 

$ 74,856 
32,701 

8,218 
395 
166 
282 

(5,000l 
111,617 

$ 68,108 
31,656 
7,878 

341 
172 
317 

(10,232) 
98,240 

$ 68,523 
31,268 

8,552 
187 
40 

204 
(4,027) 

104,747 

$ 71,298 
33,598 

9,234 
616 

203 
(4,027) 

110,922 

$ 65,845 
37,298 

9,062 
3,021 

478 
106 

(4,613) 
111,197 

$ 65,037 
40,453 

8,936 
5,251 

198 
20 

(4,369) 
115,526 

$ 61,945 
40,849 
10,144 
1,864 

301 
25 

$ 59,529 
36,197 

8,818 
1,042 
3,189 

494 

$ 60,675 
36,593 

8,460 
964 
27 

3,034 

Business-type activities: 
Investment earnings 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Transfers 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

249 
15 

9,585 
9,849 

$ 114,493 

472 
30 

490 
76 

244 
21 

812 
(1,332) 

2,352 
56 

4,613 
7,021 

$ 118,218 

4,470 
50 

4,369 
8,889 

$ 124,415 

4,615 
55 

5,473 
10,143 

$ 119,798 

2,823 
77 

4,288 
7,188 

$ 112,169 

1,353 
42 

3,513 
4,908 

$ 111,148 

Changes in Net Position 
Governmental activities 
Business-type actiVities 
Total primary government 

$ (16,426) 
2,921 

$ (13,506) 

$ 

$ 

(465) 
(4,748) 
(5,213) 

$ (11,841) $ (8,133) $ (8,019) $ (21,847) $ (5,303 ) $ 30,222 
8,691 

$ 38,913 

$ 5,743 $ 9,711 
2,549 

$ 12,260 

Source: Statement of Activities 
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City of Jackson I 

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(accrual basis of accounting) 
 I 
(amounts expressed in thousands) 

Motor Alcoholic 
Fiscal Property Sales Franchise Fuel Beverage 
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax· Tax Total 

2013 56,970 29,902 1,590 26 270 88,758 

2012 55,855 29,155 1,652 30 268 86,960 

2011 54,594 30,798 1,823 28 268 87,511 

2010 50,483 29,995 1,890 31 262 82,661 

2009 53,256 32,301 1,572 31 274 87,434 

2008 48,769 35,428 . 1,477 31 282 85,987 

2007 44,240 35,838 1,442 31 304 81,855 

2006 41,324 37,993 1,398 31 302 81,048 

2005 40,509 35,673 - 1.406 31 267 77,886 

2004 41,660 35,882 '1,152 31 261 78,986 

Source: General Fund Budget and Actual Statement 

I 

" II 
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City of Jackson 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified acnual basis of accounting) 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 


General fund 
NOllspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total general fund 

$ 2,283 
492 

3,585 
49 

$ 

$ 

2,160 
658 

4,789 
49 

26,310 
33,966 

$ 

$ 

1,814 
437 

6,086 
33 

24,757 
33,127 

$ 

$ 

1,470 

2,659 

26,695 
30,824 

$ 

$ 

1,327 

2,807 

24,897 
29,031 

$ 

$ 

1,301 

2,747 

20,760 
24,808 

$ 

$ 

1,138 

2,731 

11,835 
15,704 

$ 

$ 

981 

2,641 

12,041 
15,663 

2005-- ­

$ 924 

2,511 

$ 

2004 

859 

2,235 

All other govemmental funds 
Nonspendahle 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total all other governmental fimds 

$ 

$ 

7,210 
13,943 

$ 
4,045 

11,692 

$ 

$ 

3,600 
19,780 

23,380 

$ 

$ 

4,876 
21,075 

25,951 

$ 

$ 

7,205 
27,311 

34,516 

$ 

$ 

4,215 
27,271 

31,486 

$ 

$ 

3,855 
63,120 

66,975 

$ 

$ 

2,270 
16,116 

18,386 

$ 
6,266 

22,926 

$ 29,192 

$ 

$ 

3,160 
38,44'1 

41,604 

Source: Govemmenlal Funds - Balance Sheet 
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City of Jackson 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 


(amounts expressed ill thousands) 


Fiscal Year 

Revenues 
2013 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Taxes 
Licenses and pennits 
Intergovernmeiltal 
Charges for servi ces 
Fines 
Investment earnings 

assessments 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

$ 70,026 
2,291 

55,535 
4,152 
3,923 

145 
2 

$ 69,887 
2,676 

49,721 
3,693 
4,166 

395 
6 

16,560 
147,104 

$ 68,253 
2,873 

46,069 
3,499 
4,537 

342 
8 

$ 67,772 
2,541 

48,425 
3,314 
4,092 

186 

$ 69,315 
3,453 

55,498 
3,324 
4,245 

616 
19 

13,526 
149,996 

$ 62,702 
4,198 

62,448 
3,456 
3,602 
3,020 

$ 63,606 
3,167 

56,783 
3,032 
3,106 
5,252 

14 
13,374 

148,334 

$ 60,221 
2,968 

63,338 
3,150 
3,202 
1,865 

14 

$ 59,078 
2,199 

59,769 
3,446 
3,123 
1,042 

17 
17,307 

145,981 

$ 59,979 
2,673 

55,620 
3,155 
3,123 

964 
26 

Expenditures 

General government 
Public safety 
Planning and Development 
Culture and recreation 
Public Works 
Employee Benefits 
Capital Outlay 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest 
Other 

Miscellaneous 
Total expenditures 

30,718 
52,586 

13,753 
23,232 

7,780 
21,090 

2,780 
5,061 

157,000 

29,269 
57,035 

3,833 
8,349 

24,698 
8,685 

10,539 

873 
6,575 

149,856 

30,977 
52,606 

13,370 
19,126 
8,625 
5,749 

624 
6,424 

137,501 

30,506 
51,571 

8,078 
24,430 

8,071 
9,982 

3,806 
7,128 

143,572 

38,847 
53,215 

12,299· 
36,742 

2,149 
15,311 

10,731 
5,789 

53,572 

12,835 
26,302 

1,765 
1,379 

14,330 
6,419 

556 
180,488 

45,471 
58,926 

13,177 
17,243 
2,180 
9,040 

13,830 
6,314 

28,359 
58,984 

16,550 
30,012 

1,836 
2,049 

13,190 
4,584 

760 
156,324 

30,352 
56,471 

13,686 
20,855 

15,617 

12,912 
4,150 

334 

30,396 
59,173 

9,496 
25,557 

2,846 
1,053 

1l,500 
5,977 

962 
146,960 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (2,503) (2,752) 4,003 (2,534) (25,591) (27,731) . (18,552) (5,616) (12,227) (7,799) 
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Olher financing sources (nses) 

Tral1sler in 
Transfel out 
Proceeds from capital leases 
Issuance of debt 
Proceeds frollllefill1dll1g bonds 
Proceeds from GO Bonds 
Sale of capital assets 
Issuance of retill1ding Bonds 
Payments to refunded bund escrow agent 
Payments to escrow agent 
Premium on GO bond issue 
Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds 
Total other financing 

sources (uses) 

10,400 
(26,745) 
12,144 
11,098 
64,940 

108 
(913) 

(69,891) 

5,738 

6,879 

4,813 
(16,442) 

3,098 
402 

166 

(7,963) 

7,92i 
(18, 159) 

172 
9,041 

(33) 

(1,052) 

7,201 
(15,006) 

3,488 

40 
23,665 

(25,089) 
1,463 

(4)38) 

7,581 
(15,474) 

12,070 

26,210 
(359) 

430 

32,840 

6,584 
(15,012) 

2,208 

5,155 

267 
(124) 

1,348 

6,565 
(14,354) 

1,119 
186 

66,117 

59,633 

4,116 
(13,443) 

47 
6,783 

(2,497) 

4,296 
(12,212) 

1,846 
750 

22,248 

(21,914) 

(4,986) 

7,174 
(13,453) 

4,839 

(1,440) 

Net change in fund balances $ 4,376 $ {I0,7IS) $ 2,951 $ (6,772) ~ 7,249 $ ~~83) $ 41,081 $ (8,113) $ (17,213) $ (9,239) 

Debt service as a percentage of non cap iraI 
expenditures 6.2% 5.6% 5,7% 8.9% 115% 12.6% 14.6% 130% 13.9% ]3,6% 

City of Jacl{son 
Gene..al Governmental Tax Revenues By Source 

Lasl Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual hasis of accounting) 

(amounts expressed ill thousands) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Property 
Tu 

Sales 
Tax 

Fl'llnchise 
Tax 

Motor Fuel 
Alcoholic 
Beverage 

Tax Total 

2013 70,026 32,034 1,590 26 270 103,946 

2012 69,887 29,155 1,652 30 268 100,992 

2011 68,253 30,798 1,823 28 268 101,170 

2010 67,772 29,995 1,890 31 262 99,950 

2009 69,315 32,301 1,572 31 274 103,493 

2008 62,702 35,428 1,447 31 282 99,890 

2007 63,606 35,838 1,442 31 304 101,221 

2006 60,221 37,993 1,398 31 302 99,945 

2005 59,079 35,673 1,406 31 267 96,456 

2004 59,979 35,882 1,152 31 261 97,305 

Source: GOl'clIlmelllal Funds - Statement of RcvclIues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
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City of Jackson 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 


Last Ten Fiscal Years (2) 


Real Property Personal ProEerty Total 
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated 
Year Value (1) Actual Value Value (2) Actual Value 

2013 $ 805,068,802 6,271,511,887 396,924,146 1,871,856,147 1,201,992,948 8,143,368,034 
2012 810,977,848 6,317,262,297 413,249,466 1,993,670,330 1,224,227,314 8,310,932,627 
2011 809,368,529 6,323,192,313 396,605,625 1,897,105,793 1,205,974,154 8,220,298,106 
2010 798,026,041 6,252,141,950 400,170,321 1,887,134,230 1,198,796,362 8,139,276,180 
2009 790,601,910 6,190,265,033 423,164,849 1,988,646,047 1,213,766,759 8,178,911,080 
2008 658,357,211 5,139,019,840 452,411,093 2,016,697~273 1,110,768,304 7,215,717,113 
2007 657,256,904 5,079,239,993 452,073,610 2,081,230,213 1,109,330,514 7,160,470,206 
2006 657,256,904 5,079,239,993 452,073,610 . 2,081,230,213 1,109,330,514 7,160,470,206 
2005 646,330,913 5,049,924,236 450,491,882 2,058,904,287 1,096,822,795 7, I 08,828,523 
2004 647,107,272 5,064,263,293 449,595,540 2,056,352,200 1,096,702,812 1,120,615,493 
2003 645,275,896 5,058,517,697 450,036,558 2,047,883,870 1,095,312,454 1,106,401,567 

Ad valorem tax property assessments within the City and the Jackson Municipal 
Separate School District are fixed at ten percent (l0%) of appraised value for 
homeowner occupied real property, and fifteen percent (15%) of appraised value for 
all other real and personal property for Fiscal Yoars 1987-1996. State law required a 
reappraisal of all property in Mississippi in order to obtain an equitable and uniform 
appraisal-in proportion to current market value, and property was assessed at fifteen 
percent (15%) beginning in Fiscal Year 1985. The assessed value for motor vehicles 
and for property owned by public service corporations is determined by an 
assessment schedule prepared each year by the State ofMississippi Tax 
Commission, and is set at approximatdy thirty percent (30%) ofapprrused value for 
Fiscal Year 1989 and thereafter. 

(2) Includes automotiVe valuation. 

There was an error in reporting the fiscal year 2006 a<;sessed and estimated taxable property. 
This error is corrected in fiscal year 2007. 

SOURCE: Hinds, Rankin and Madison County Tax Collectors 
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Total Direct 

Tax Rate 


56.54 
56.63 
56.63 
56.72 
56.72 
56.75 
56.15 
54.75 
54.75 
54.75 
54.75 

Ratio of Total Assessed 
to Total Estimated 

Value 

1O%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
1O%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
1O%,15%,and 30% 
10%,15%,and 30% 
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CITY OF JACKSON 


PROPERTY TAX RATES 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 


LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 


Overlapping Rates 

City of Jackson County School District 

Debt Service Total 

Debt Total & Operating Debt Total Direct & 

Fiscal Operating Service City County Operating Service School Special Overlapping 

Year Millage Millage MiI~age . Milage Millage Millage MiIlage Districts Rates 

2013 . 53.5 3.04 56.54 38.33 6258 14.91 77.49 1.49 173.85 

2012 53.43 3.20 56.63 38.33 62.66 12.33 74.99 1.40 171.35 

2011 53.56 3.07 56.63 . 44.13 62.58 12.41 74.99 1.40 177.15 

2010 50.09 6.63 56.72 39.12 68.91 6.08 74.99 1.31 172.14 

2009 51.25 5.47 56.72 39.12 68.91 6.08 74.99 1.31 172.14 

2008 52.28 4.47 56.75 39.12 68.91 ·6.08 74.99 1.28 172.14 

2007 47.23 9.52 56.75 39.12 68.91 6.08 74.99 1.28 172.14 

2006 45.23 9.52 54.75 39.12 68.91 6.79 75.70 1.28 170.85 

2005 45.23 9.52 54.75 39.12 68.91 6.79 75.70 1.28 170.85 

2004 45.23 9.52 54.75 37.54 68.91 6.79 75.70 1.28 169.27 

Source: Hinds County Tax Collectors, Jackson Public School District, and JacksonlHinds Library System 
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City of Jackson I 

Principal PI'operty Taxpayers 
September 30, 2013 

(amounts expressed in thousands) " ~ 
2013 2004 

Percentage of Percentage of 
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable I 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Ranlt Value 

Bell South $ 38,109 2 3.64% $ 76,029 7.92% I 
Entergy 116,866 11.17% 45,673 2 4.76% 

Atrnos Energy 13,415 6 1.28% I 
Midcontinent Express Pipe1ane LLC 27,304 3 2.61% I'
AT&T 9,804 0.94% 11,064 4 1.15% 

Trustmark National Bank 5;393 7 0.56% 

IParkway Properties 10,233 0.98% 6,088 6 0.63% 

Central MS Health Systems 13,729 3 1.43% IEntergy Services Inc 13,419 5 1.28% 


Wal-Mart/Sam's Wholesale Club 6,021 8 0.58% 5,180 8 0.54% 
 I
Metrocenter 3,919 9 0.41% 

Jackson HMA Inc. LLC 5,957 9 0.57% t 
Texas Eastern Transmission C 5,612 10 0.54% 


St. Dominies Hospital 3,823 10 0.40% 
 I
Gulf South Pipeline Company LP 25,768 4 2.46% 

illinois Central Railrol!rl 7,778 7 0.74% I 
Mississippi Valley Gas Company 81596 5 0.90% 

Totals $ 28°1286 26.78% $ 179,494 18.69% I 
ISource: Hinds County 

Hinds County does not calulate City ofJackson top ten tax payers separlely. 

I 
I 
j 
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City of Jackson 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(amonnts expressed in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Se~tember 30 

2013 

2012 

2011 

2010 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

Total Tax 
Levy for 

Fiscal Year 

$ 69,069 

67,138 

61,942 

61,363 

55,175 

55,147 

52,019 

53,925 

51,710 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Amount Percentage (}f Levy 

$ 61,147 88.5 

$ 60,734 90.5 

59:321 95.8. 

59,602 97.1 

53,501 97.0 

54,276 98.4 

50,928 97.9 

52,750 97.8 

50,606 97.9 

C(}llections in 
Subse!luent Years 

$ 1106 

1533 

972 

376 

212 
" 

306 

996 

270 

301 

$ 

Total C(}llections to Date 
Am(}unt Percenta;e of Levy 

62,253 90.1 

62,267 92.7 

60,293 97.3 

59,978 97.7 

53,713 97.4 

54,582 99.0 

51,924 99.8 

53,020 98.3 

50,907 98.4 

The data was not available from Hinds County in 2011. 

The total tax levy does not include automobile ad valorem taxes. 

Beginning Fiscal Year 1988, the majority ofschool taxes collected were remitted 
directly to the Jackson Municipal Separate School District by Hinds County, the 
collecting agency. 
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City of Jackson 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(amounts e:lpre.ssed in thousands, except per capita amount) 

Fucal 
Year 

Geueral 
Obligation 

Bonds 

Limited 
Obligation 

Bonds 

Gavernmental ActilitieS 
State Miss 

Revolling Development Section 
LoanMDA Bank Loan lOll Loan 

General 
Obli2tion Note 

Capital 
Leases 

BllSiness-TXEe Actilities 
State 

Sewer Revolving 
Bonds LoanMDA 

Capital 
Leases 

State 
Revolving 

Loan@EQl 

Total 
Primary 

Government 

Percentage 
of Personal 
Income!ll 

Per 
CaEita {I) 

2013 135,645 5,622 342 2,747 7,000 9200 18,167 239,265 2,727 4,137 15,653 440,505 7.34% 2,539 

2012 131,290 6,102 383 3,040 7,000 402 17,058 154,430 3,069 12,578 335,352 5.59% 1,933 

20n 131,720 6,541 430 3,335 7,000 18,073 148,325 2,758 13,799 331,981 5.54% 1,913 
2010 131,720 4,231 462 2,650 7,000 13,520 148,920 4,704 15,428 328,635 5.26% 1,894 
2009 134,610 4,522 497 2,847 7,000 13,053 155,830 5,722 16,997 341,078 5.59% 1,851 

2008 112,535 2,270 . 534 737 13,027 161,345 1,716 18,508 310,672 4.98% 1,686 

2007 115,500 210 568 622 14,013 167,670 2,272 19,005 319,860 5.46% 1,736 

2006 58,715 405 602 668 16,009 173,700 1,379 18,125 269,603 4.69% 1,463 
2005 66,525 820 632 740 12,601 179,250 1,417 19,361 281,346 5.30% 1,527 

2004 73,195 1,205 664 14,105 115,995 2,550 20,550 228,264 4.30% 1,239 

Note: Details regarding the cily's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financw statements. 
(I) See the Schedule ofDemognsphic and Economic Statistics on page 130 for personal income and population data. 
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City of Jackson 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita amount) 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

General General Less: Amounts . Actual Taxable 
Fiscal Assessed Obligation Obligation Available in Debt Value of 
Year Value Note Bonds Service Fund Total Pro~erty (1) 

2013 $. 1,053,718 9,200 $ 135,465 $ 5,149 $ 139,516 
2012 1,046,591 402 131,290 2,331 129,361 

2011 1,034,756 131,720 1,832 129,888 

2010 1,022,263 131,720 2,577 129,143 

2009 1,027,088 134,610 2,471 132,139 

2008 921,948 112,535 2,257 110,278 

2007 920,291 115,500 2,521 112,979 

2006 908,925 58,715 1,529 57,186 

2005 918,235 66,525 1,785 64,740 

2004 903,200 73,195 1,293 71,902 

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual of Taxable Property on page 121 for property value data. 
(2) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 130. 

1324% 
12.36% 

12.55% 

12.63% 

12.87% 

11.96% 

1228% 

629% 

7.05% 

7.96% 

~ 7.Jc: 
~ r'l 

N () 
t...) rn;-~ 
.:;;: ~ 

0 

Per 

Capita (2) 


$ 758.24 
703.05 

705.91 

701.86 

718.15 

599.34 

614.02 

310.79 

351.36 

390.23 
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I City of Jaclcson 
Dh'ect and Overlapping Govel'Dmental Activities Debt 


As of September 30,2013 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Estimated 
Estimated Shal'e of 

Debt Percentage Overlapping IGovel'Dmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt 

Debt repaid with property taxes: 
Hinds County $ 38,605 76,57% $ 29,560 
Jackson Public Schools 145,850 100.00% 145,850 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 175,410 

City of Jackson direct debt 150,287 100.00% 150,287 

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 325,697 

:.;rj"

II
, 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages by City of Jackson, Hinds County, and Jackson Public S~hools. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide with the geographic boundaries ofthe city, This schedule estimates the portion 
of the outstanding debt ofthose overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses ofthe City of Jackson. I 
This process recognizes that, when considering the City of Jackson ability to issue and repay long-term debt" the entire debt 
burden borne by the residents and business should be taken into account However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, 
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government. 

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated 
by determining the portion ofthe county's taxable assessed value that is with the government's boundaries and dividing it by the county's 
total taxable assessed value. 

.~tI­
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City of Jackson 

Legal Debt Margin Information 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(amounts expressed in tbousands) 


Fiscal Year 

2~ 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 

Debt limit li176,090 li 174,971 S173,629 SI73,116 li175,386 SI60,093 $160,138 

Total net debt applicable to limit 94,548 73,224 73,261 70,951 74,132 43,375 50,710 

Legal debt margin $ 81,542 S 101,747 $100,368 S102,165 $101,254 li116,718 $109,428 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as It percentage of the debt limit 

Note: Under state finance law, the City ofJackson's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 15 percent oftotal assessed property value. By law, the general 
obligation debt subject to the limation may be offSet by amounts set aside for repaying general obligation bonds. 

2006 2005 2004 

li158,399 $159,636 $159,437 

59,120 67,345 74,400 

.$ 99,279 _~92,291 S 85,037 

Legal Debt margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2013 

Assessed value 
Less Homestead Exemption 
Total assessed value 

S 
.$ 

.$ 

1,234,682 
(60,748) 

1,173,934 

Debt limit (15% oftotal assessed value) 
Debt application to limit 

Bond indebtedness 

176,09.0 

320,807 
Less: Amount set aside for repayment of 

revenue bond debt 
Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin . 
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City of Jackson 


Pledged-Revenue Coverage 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Sewer Revenue Bonds 

Water/Sewer 

Fiscal Charges 

Year and Other 

2013 44,186 

2012 48,171 

2011 47,578 

2010 41,974 

2009 41,440 

2008 47,468 

2007 44,180 

2006 45,495 

2005 41,166 

2004 40,012 

Less: 


Operating 

Expenses 


33,337 

33,366 

32,755 . 

26,128 

27,837 

29,410 

22,830 

. 23,985 

22,387 

23,394 

Net 


Available 

Revenue 


10,849 

14,805 

14,823 

15,846 

13,603 

18,058 

21,350 

21,510 

18,779 

16,618 

Principal 

$ 9,380 

;6,780 

4,870 

6,085 

6,910 

6,910 

6,325 

6,030 

6,030 

5,550 

Debt Service 
Interest 

$ 6,680 

4,961 

6,876 

7,284 

7,617 

7,617 

8,212 

8,510 

8,510 

8,939 

Coverage 

0.681 

1.26 

1.26 

1.19 

0.94 

1.24 

1.47 

1.48 

1.29 

1.15 

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fmancial statements. Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation. 

I The City ofJackson increased water/sewer rates effective November 19, 2013. The sewer rate increase was 108% and the water rate increase was 29%. Applied fund balance was used 

for water/sewer shortfall for fisC;al year 2013. An engineer consultant will conduct an analysis on the water/sewer system. 
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City of Jackson 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Education 
Personal Per Level in 
Income Capita Years of 

Fiscal (amounts expressed Personal Median Formal School Unemployment 
Year Population (1) in thousands) Income (3) Age (4) Schooling (2) Enrollment (2) Rate (3) 

2013 173,514 5,801,267 33,434 31.5 12 30,000 6,7% 

2012 173,514 5,997,858 34,567 31.0 12 30,000 7.3% 

2011 173,514 5,995,776 34,555 32.0 12 30,600 8.4% 

2010 173,514 6,247,025 36,003 31.0 12 30,600 7.8% 

2009 184,256 6,104,770 33,132 31.9 12 30,600 7.9% 

2008 184,256 6,238,540 33,858 31.0 12.3 31,000 6.5% 

2007 184,256 5,860,815 31,808 31.9 12.3 31,000 5.0% 

2006 184,256 5,744,549 31,177 31.9 12.3 32,403 4.4% 

2005 184,256 5,308,231 28,809 31.0 12.3 32,000 8.3% 

2004 184,256 5,308,231 28,809 34.3 12.3 31,580 4.5% 

Data Sources 

(1) Mississippi Census Bureau 

(2) Jackson Public Schools Estimate 

(3) Bureau of Labor Statistics 

(4) U S Census Bureau 
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City of Jackson 

Principal Employers 


Current Year and Nine Years Ago 


2013 2004 

Percentage Percentage 
of Total City of Total City 

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment 

State of Mississippi 31,556 17.13% 

University ofMississippi 8,000 2 4.34% 

U.S. Government 5,500 3 2.98% 

Jackson Public School District 4,814 4 2.61% 

Baptist Health Systems 2,875 5 1.56% 

st. Dominic Health Services 2,600 6 1.41% 

City of Jackson, Mississippi 2,323 7 1.26% 

8 .Jackson State University 1,667 0.90% 

AT&T 1,300 9 0.71% 

Central MS Medical Center 1!200 10 0.65% 
61,835 33.56% 

Source: MetroJackson Chamber of Commerce 2013 

Note: Data for 2001 is currently not available. 
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City of Jackson 

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Full-time Eguivalent EmEloIees by Function 

Function 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

General government 
Public safety 

Police 
Officers 
Civilians 

Fire 
Firefighters and officers 
Civilians 

Public works 
Culture and Recreation 
Total 

302 

455 
267 

316 
17 

461 
318 

2136 

290 

499 
272 

337 
11 

484 
238 

2131 

315 

479 
261 

357 
11 

482 
303 

2208 

307 

465 
270 

342 
10 

449 
370 

2213 

310 

354 
11 

466 
319 
1460 

325 

500 
299 

362 
11 

606 
218 

2321 

330 

425 
291 

351 
7 

552 
381 

2337 

377 

468 
174 

356 
8 

625 
424 

2432 

392.5 

490 
284 

353 
12 

645 
436.5 
2613 

389.5 

490 
284 

631 
11 

606 
452.5 
2864 

Source: City of Jackson Information System Department. 
The dashes indicate data that is not available. 
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City of Jackson 

Operating Indicators by Function 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Fiscal Year 


2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2004 2004 

Function 

Police 

Parking violations 12,281 17,190 18,101 13,777 11,076 13,223 14,832 20,490 24,970 24,970 
Traffic violations 52,425 60,598 57,815 56,587 47,146 38,429 25,314 30,061 47,324 47,324 

Fire 

Number of calls answered 11,825 9,403 11,577 7,644 7,342 12,259 12,602 12,602 
Inspections (3) 4,500 4,635 3,590 3,701 4,510 3,241 4,500 4,086 3,727 3,727 

Highways and streets 

Street resurfacing (miles) 4.2 10.6 68.3 8.3 5.6 7.1 9.5 9.5 
Potholes repaired (2) (4) 37,565 ' 29,871 38,776 51,431 3,619 4,154 3,626 4,011 5,724 5,724 

Sanitation 

Refuse collected (tons/day) 5,301 7,904 4,523 5,718 5,OS8 5,848 2,398.4 1,447.8 3,612.3 3,612.3 
Recyclables collected (tons/day)(I) 91.35 89.84 76.89 81.72 80.16 .109.88 90.77 99.68 . 

Culture and recreation 

Community center admissions (3) 89 118 53 68 90 34 101 95 168 168 

Water 

New connections 212 198 670 334 530 602 501 501 
Average daily consumption 

(thousands ofgallons) (3) 24,024 21,080 21,530 20,630 21,250 21,250 

Wastewater· 

Average daily sewage treatment 
(thousands of gallons) 46,650 47,170 , 44,650 42,100 47,200 52,400 52,400 

Source: Various City ofJackson departments. 

(1) The City 5f Jackson Sanitation Division implemented their recycling program in March 2005. 

(2) The City of Jackson Streets Division implemented a new system ofreporting potholes. Therefore data for fiscal years 1999·2002 is not. available. 

(3) The dashes indicate data that is Dot available. 
(4) Prior years has been recorded as the number ofpothole calls Dot the number ofpotholes repaired. 
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City of Jackson 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 
Function 

Public 
Police stations 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 
Fire stations 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 

Highways and streets 
Streets (miles) 1,201 1,204 1,300 1,447 1,431 1,428 1,428 1,428 '1,428 1,428 
Traffic signals intersection 358 358 358 334 334 333 333 332 332 332 

Culture and recreation 
Parks 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 
Swimming pools 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 
Tennis courts 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 
Community centers 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Water 
Water mains (miles) 1,220 1,220 1,220 1,220 1,220 1,220 
Fire hydrants 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 
Maximum daily capacity 25,600,000 25,600,000 25,600,000 

(thousands of gallons) 

Sewer 
Sanitary sewers (miles) 911 911 911 911 909 909 909 
Storms sewers (miles) 460 460 460 460 460 460 460 

Source: Various City of Jackson departments. 
The dashes indicate data that is not available. 
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l1li WHITE & CO. 


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPL1ANCE AND OTHER MAnERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


The Honorable Mayor Tony Yarber 
and Honorable Members of the City Council 
Jackson, Mississippi 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generaliy accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City), as of and for 
the year ended September 3D, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City of Jackson, Mississippi's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon 
dated April 30, 2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Jackson, 
Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Jackson. 
Mississippi's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over. 

Our consideration of internal control over was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we 
consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the desig n or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiencies described in 2013-1, 2013-2 and 2013-4 in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiency described in 2013-3 in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs to be a significant deficiency. 

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE· RIDGELAND, MS 39157. (601) 353-5423. FAX (601) 353-5426 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Jackson, Mississippi's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

City of Jackson, Mississippi's Response to Findings 

City of Jackson. Mississippi's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Jackson, Mississippi's response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of.this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~:~~;4-~ ~. 
April 30,2014 
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City ofJackson 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

Federal Pass Through Current Year 
CFDA Grantor Federal 

Federal Agenc;t/Program Number Number EXEenditures 

L 


L 


U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Direct Program: 

Food and Nutrition Service (MS Department of Education· Pass Through) 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 

SUBTOTALCFDA NUMBER 10.558 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 
Summer Food Service Program for Children (MS Department ofEducation • Pass Through) 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.559 

TOTAL Child Nutrition Cluster 

(Central Mississippi Planning and Development District· Pass Through) 
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 

SUBTOTALCFDA NUMBER 10.565 

(Natural Resource Conservation Service· Pass Through) 
Emergency Watershed Protection Program 

SUBTOTALCFDA NUMBER 10.923 

TOTAL U,S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Develo(!ment 
CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster: 

Community Development Block Grant· Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
Community Development Block Grant 
Community Development Block Grant 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.218 

TOTAL CDSO Entitlement Grants Cluster 

Emergency Solution Grants Program 

Emergency Solution Grants Program 


SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.231 


HOME Investment Partnership Program 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 


SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.239 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.241 


Economic Development Initiative-Special Project, Neighborhood Initiative and Miscellaneous Grants 
Economic Development Initiative·Special Project, Neighborhood Initiative and Miscellaneous Grants 
Economic Development Initiative.Special Project, Neighborhood Initiative and Miscellaneous Grants 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.251 

TOTAL U,S. DEPARTl'rIENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

10.558 	 VOOO0718080 $ 298,907 
298,907 

10.559 	 VOOO0718080 43,205 
43,205 

43,205 

10.565 378·N·25 	 25,681 
10.565 	 396·G·25 32,475 

58,156 

10.923 	 68·4423-12·2342 93,363 
93,363 

493,631 

14.218 B-08·MN·28·0001 	 743,598 
14.218 B·IO-MC-Z8-0003 	 691,445 
14.218 	 B-II·MC·28-0003 719,535 

2,154,578 

2.154,578 

14.231 E·ll·MC·28·0002 	 61,635 
14.231 	 E-12-MC-28·0002 185,651 

247,286 

14.239 M-06·MC·28·0200 	 44,389 
14.239 M·07·MC·28·0200 	 238,164 
14.239 M·08-MC-28-0200 	 689,593 
14.239 M·09-MC-28·0200 	 113,896 
14.239 	 M-12-MC·28·0200 19,400 

I, \05,442 

14.241 	 MS·HI I-FOOl 192,213 
192,213 

14.251 B-09-SP·MS·0 133 	 148,736 
14.251 B·09·SP·MS-0 134 3,600 
14.251 	 B-1 O-SP-MS-O I08 740,852 

893,188 

4,592.707 

RECEIVED 

JUN 2 3 2014 
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City of Jackson 

Schedule ofExpenditures of Federal Awards 


For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Federal 
CFDA 

Federal Agency/Program Number 
U.S. Department of Justice 
JAG Program Cluster: 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16,738 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program· ARRA 16,804 
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.804 

TOTAL JAG Program Cluster 

Second Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative 16,812 
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.804 

Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16.710 
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16,710 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.710 

Developing, Testing And Demonstrating New Programs 16.541 
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.541 

TOTAL U.s. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

U.S. Department of Labor 

Older Americans Act 
Senior Community Service Employment Program (Title V) 17.235 
Senior Community Service Employment Program (Title V) 17.235 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NU:VIBER 17.235 

TOTAL U.s. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

U.S. Department of Transportation 

Federal Transit Administration 


Federal Transit Cluster: 
Direct Programs: 
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.507 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.507 

Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.500 

TOTAL Federal Transit Cluster 

Highway Planning & Construction Cluster: 

(Mississippi Department of Transportation-Pass Through) 


Highway Planning and Construction (Lynch Street Improvements) 20.205 

Highway Planning and Construction (Fortification Street Improvements) 20.205 

Highway Planning and Construction (Capitol Street Improvements) 20.205 

Highway Planning and Construction (Safe Routes) 20.205 

Highway Planning and Construction (ITS-3 Railroad Grade Crossing Project) 20,205 

Highway Planning and Construction (ITS-3 Railroad Grade Crossing Project) 20.205 

140 

Pass Through 

Grantor 

Number 


201IDJBX3320 
20 I2DJBX!O95 

2009SBB93222 

2011·CZ·BX·0041 

2009CKWX0603 
201lULWX0021 

2009.JL·FX-0009 

AD-24194-13-55-A-24 

AD-23234-12-55-A·24 


MS-90·XO-72 
MS-90·XO-81 
MS-90·XO-88 

MS·04-00-03 
MS-96-XO·03 

DHp· 7300-00(00 I) 
104587/811000 

STP· 7285-00(002) 
105325/801000 

STP-xxxx-OO(002) 
106058/801000 

DHP· 7305-00(005) 
105967 

ITS·02S0·00(020)LPA 
1039011701000 

TCP·02S0 

Curren t Year 

Federal 


Expenditures 


7,756 
72,727 
80,483 

72,8\6 
72,816 

153,299 

22,080 
22,080 

17,014 
881,810 
898,824 

55, III 
55.111 

1,129,314 

123,221 
401.225 
524,446 

524,44.6 

831,635 
556,508 

1,306,984 
21695,127 

459,240 
987,035 

1,446,275 

4,141,402 

81,079 

5,237,943 

351,242 

180,610 

74,617 

520 
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City of Jackson 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 


For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Federal Pass Through 
CFDA Grantor 

Federal Agency/Program Number Number 
(Mississippi Department of Transportation-Pass Through) 

Urban Youth Corps Grant 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205 


TOTAL Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRAl'iSPORTATION 

U.S, Institute of Museum and Library Services 

Direct Programs: 

Congressional Set-Aside; Museums 


SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 45.312 


TOTAL U,S. INSTITUTE OF MUSEUM ASD LIBRARY SERVICES 

U.S. Department of Environmental Ouality 

(Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality-Pass Through) 


Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 


SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 66.458 


TOTAL U.S. DEPARHIENT OF ENVIROSMENTAL QUALITY 

U.S. Department of Energv 

Direct Programs: 

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program CARRA) 


SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 81.128 


TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF El'iERGY 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Direct Programs: 

Metro Medical Response System 


SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.000 


Aging Cluster: 

Special Programs for the Aging Title Ill, Part B, Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 

(Central MS Planning and Development District - Pass Through) 


Title lU·B Outreach 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.044 


Special Programs for the Aging Title Ill. Part C, Nutrition Services 
(Central MS Planning and Development District - Pass Through) 

Congregate Nutrition Program (Non-cash) 
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.045 

TOTAL Aging Cluster 

CCDP Cluster: 
(State of MS Office of Child Nutrition - Pass Through) 

Child Care Development Block Grant 
Child Care Development Block Grant 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.575 

TOTAL CCDF Cluster 

20.205 

45.312 

66.458 
66.458 

81.128 

93.000 

93.044 

93.045 

93.575 
93.575 

STP-9999·09(023) 
106638-310000 

CM-OO-05-0012-05 


SRF-C280886-02-0 

SRF-C280838-02-0 


DE-SC0003032 

233-01-0043 

377-N-25 

378-N-25 

625Q631A 
625Q621A 

Curren t Year 

Federal 


Expenditures 


5,960,725 

5,960,725 

10,102,127 

113,827 
113,827 

113,827 

2,569,355 
2,263,974 
4,833,329 

4,833,329 

7,841 
7,841 

7,841 

8,862 
8,862 

10,000 
10,000 

92,745 
92,745 

102,745 

824,241 
108,375 
932,616 

932,616 
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City ofJackson 

Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards 


For the Year Ended September 30,2013 


Federal Agency/Program 

Title XX·Social Services Block Grant 
(Central MS Planning and Development District. Pass Through) 

Transportation 
Home Delivered Meals (Non.cash) 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.667 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

Corporation for National and Community Service 
Mississippi Commission for Volunteer Service· Pass Through 

AMERJCORPS 
AMERJCORPS 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 94.006 

TOTAL MISSISSIPPI COMMISSION FOR VOLUNTEER SERVICE 

U.S. Office of National Drug Control PoliCY 
(MS Gulf Coast HlOTA· Pass Through) 

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HlOTA) 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 95.001 


TOTAL U.S. OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Federal Emergency Management Agency 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.044 

Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass·Through) 
Homeland Security Grant Program 
Homeland Security Grant Program 
Homeland Security Grant Program 
Homeland Security Grant Program 
Homeland Security Grant Program 

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.067 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

Federal 
CFDA 
Number 

93.667 
93.667 

94.006 
94.006 

95.001 

97.044 

97.067 
97.067 
97.067 
97.067 
97.067 

Pass Through 
Grantor 
Number 

396-G·25 
396·G·25 

!3ACI52478 
12ACI09584 

G12GC0003A 

EMW·2011·FO·02991 

IOMM221 
S1IHS221T 
llHS221T 
I1LE221 
12LE221 

$ 

Current Year 

Federal 


Expenditures 


128,202 
132,354 
260,556 

1.304,779 

10,207 
242,472 
252,679 

252,679 

5,160 
5,160 

5,16() 

57,610 
57,610 

19,029 
9,590 

887 
38,187 
5,619 

73,312 

73,312 

23,490,762 
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CITY OF JACKSON 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 


For the Year Ended September 30,2013 


NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the City of Jackson and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of State, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this 
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose 
financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - CONTINGENCY 

The City has responsibility for expending grant funds in accordance with specific instructions from its 
funding sources. Any deficits resulting from over expenditures and/or questioned costs are the 
responsibility of the City. 

Any unexpended grant funds at the end of the grant period may be refundable or carried over to the 
following period at the discretion of the funding sources. Notwithstanding the audits by independent 
certified public accountants, all costs included in this report remain subject to audit by the agencies 
providing financial support within the limits of the Single Audit Act of 1996, as amended. The 
determination as to whether costs will be allowable or unallowable under the grants will be made by 
representatives of the funding sources having authority to make and enforce contracts. 

NOTE 3 - SUB-RECIPIENTS 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Jackson provided federal 
awards to sub recipients as follows: 

Amount Provided 

Prog ram Title Federal CFDA Number to Sub-recipients 

Home Investment Partnership 
Program 14.239 $1,054,828 

Community Development Block 
Grant - Entitlement Grants 14.218 182,144 

Housing Opportunities for Persons 
With Aids 14.241 177,428 

Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231 42.984 

Total ~ j!~QZ,38~ 
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NOTE 4 - LOAN AND LOAN GUARANTEES 

In accordance with OMS Circular A-133, loans and loan guarantees include new loans made during 
the year, plus prior year loans for which the federal government imposes continuing compliance 
requirements. 
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lUI BANKS, FINLEY, 

l1li WHITE &CO. 


CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 


The Honorable Mayor Tony Yarber 
and Honorable Members of The City Council 
Jackson, Mississippi 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Jackson, Mississippi's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's major federal programs for the year ended 
September 30,2013. City of Jackson, Mississippi's major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City of Jackson, Mississippi's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Jackson, 
Mississippi's compliance. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on CFDA#14.218 and 14.239, Community Development Block Grant 
and Home Investment Partnership Program 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, City of Jackson, 
Mississippi, did not comply with requirements regarding sub-recipient monitoring that is applicable to its 
Community Development Block Grant and Home Investment Partnership Program. Compliance with 
such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for City of Jackson, Mississippi to comply with the 
requirements applicable to those programs. 

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE· RIDGELAND, MS 39157. (601) 353-5423. FAX (601) 353-5426 
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ReCCIVED 

JUN 23 2014 

Qualified Opinion on Community Development Block Grant and Home Investment Partnership 
Program 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, City 
of Jackson, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended September 30,2013. 

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 

In our opinion, City of Jackson, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major 
federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs for the year ended September 30, 2013. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to 
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-6. Our opinion on each major federal program is 
not modified with respect to this matter. 

City of Jackson, Mississippi's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Jackson, Mississippi's response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of City of Jackson, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and 
significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal 
control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 
item 2013-5 to be a material weakness. 
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A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over 
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-6 to 
be a significant deficiency. 

City of Jackson, Mississippi's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our 
audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Jackson, 
Mississippi's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

15~'~~I~-" c.., 
Ridgeland, Mississippi 

April 30,2014 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended September 30,2013 . 

Section 1: Summary of Auditor's Results 

1. Type of auditor's report issued on the basic financial statements. 

2. Material noncompliance relating to the financial statements. 

3. Internal control over financial reporting: 

a. 	 Material weaknesses identified? 
b. 	 Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material 

weaknesses? 

Federal Awards: 

4. Type of auditor's report issued on compliance with major federal programs: 

Unmodified 

No 

Yes 

No 

Unmodified for all major programs except 
Community Development Block Grant 

for Home Investment Partnership Program and 

5. Internal control over major programs: 

a. 
b. 

Material weaknesses identified? 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material 
weaknesses? 

Yes 

Yes 

6. Any audit findings reported as required by Section _.51 O(a) of OMB Circular A-133? Yes 

7. Federal programs identified as major programs: 

Community Development Block Grant Entitlement Grants Cluster: 

\ 

L 
CFDA #14.218 - U. S. Department of Housing and Urban DeVelopment 

Community Development Block Grant 
CFDA #14.218 - U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Community Development Block Grant - Neighborhood Stabilization Program 

Home Investment Partnership Program: 

CFDA #14.239 - U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS: 

CFDA #14.241 - U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended September 30,2013 


Federal programs identified as major programs: (continued) 

Economic Development Initiative-Special Project, Neighborhood Initiative and Misc. Grants: 

CFDA #14.251 - U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 

CFDA #16.710 - U. S. Department of Justice 


Federal Transit Cluster: 


CFDA #20.500 - U.S. Department of Transportation 

Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants 


'CFDA #20.507 - U.S. Department of Transportation 

Federal Transit Formula Grants 


Highway Planning & Construction Cluster: 


CFDA #20.205 - U. S. Department of Transportation 

Highway Planning and Construction 


Capitalization Grants for Clean Water - State Revolving Funds: 


CFDA #66.458 - U. S. Department of Environmental Quality 


8. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $704,723 

9. The City of Jackson did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

Section 2: Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Audit 

PAYROLL CHANGES IN PERSONNEL FILES 

Finding 2013-1 
Finding Type: Material Weakness 
Repeat Finding 

Statement of Condition 

Our audit testing of payroll transactions revealed that in 12 out of 40 personnel files tested, adequate 
documentation was not available in the personnel file to support the current pay rate of some employees. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Cause of Condition 

Failure to follow established procedures for personnel pay rate changes. 

Effect of Condition 

The employee's current salary pay rate could not be verified with supporting documentation in the 
personnel file. 

Criteria 

The requirements of the City of Jackson Department of Personnel and Management's Employee 
Handbook Section 7.1.1 - states 'The Department of Personnel Management shall maintain records 
showing administrative actions including records of employment history of each employee, performance 
evaluation records and related files and correspondence. In addition, the Department of Personnel 
Management shall prepare, maintain and preserve records on the wages, hours and other conditions and 
practices of employment of all City employees." 

Auditor's Recommendation 

The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure that the personnel department 
updates all changes in an employee's wages and documents these changes in the employee's personnel 
file so that, at any point in time, the employee's current salary can be verified. 

TIMELY REQUESTS FOR GRANT REIMBURSEMENTS - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

2013-2 
Finding Type: Material Weakness 

Statement of Condition 

During our audit. we noted that there are no formal procedures within the City's Public Works Department 
for preparing requests for reimbursement of grant funds for grant expenditures. This practice has 
contributed to preparing requests for funds months after costs have been incurred and, in some cases, 
after the end of the City's fiscal year. 

Cause of Condition 

There are no formal procedures within the Public Works Department in place for preparing requests for 

reimbursement of grant funds. 


Effect of Condition 


The recording of grant revenue is delayed and grants receivables are not accurately in the accounting 

records. Additionally, the City's general fund resources are being usee! to fund the grant projects. 


Criteria 


The City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended September 30. 2013 


Auditor's Recommendation 

We strongly recommend that the City implement internal control procedures within the Public Works 
Department that require requests for grant reimbursements to be made in a systematic and timely 
manner. The timely filing of reimbursement requests minimizes the period that the City's General funds 
are used and improves cash management of grant funds and the City's available cash resources. 

GRANT ACCOUNTANT NEEDED FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

2013·3 
Finding Type:. Significant Deficiency 

Statement of Condition 

The City does not have a Grants Accountant for the Public Works Department 

Cause of Condition 

Improper administration of grants within the Public Works Department 

Effect of Condition 

Requests for reimbursement of grant expenditures were not filed in a systematic or timely manner 

Criteria 

The City of Jackson's External Funding Policies and Procedures Manual states that "All financial reports, 
including reimbursement requests and federal financial reports are to be prepared by the department of 
administration's grant accountants," 

Auditor's Recommendation 

We strongly recommend that the City provide a Grant Accountant for the grants administered by the 
Public Works Department. That person should be included within the Finance Department as stated in 
the City of Jackson's External Funding Policies and Procedures Manual. These changes will help with 
proper oversight and to ensure that reimbursement requests and financial reports are prepared and 
submitted in a systematic and timely manner. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned.Costs 


Year Ended September 30,2013 


NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REVENUE BOND COVENANTS 

2013-4 
Finding Type: Material Weakness 

Statement of Condition 

Pursuant to revenue bond and related agreements, the City has certain covenants that provide for rates 
to be set at levels annually to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios. In addition, rates must be set 
at levels to provide for the payment of current expenses and to provide deposits to meet certain trust fund 
requirements associated with the bond agreements. The City is not in compliance with the debt 
covenants above. 

Cause of Condition 

The City did not have adequate monitoring of revenues, expenditures and future debt service 
requirements to ensure bond covenant compliance in light of changes in operations in the current year . 

Effect of Condition 

Noncompliance with revenue bond covenants 

Criteria 

Article VI of the July 2011 revised Revenue Bond debt covenants states that "If the water system net 
revenues in any fiscal year, as shown by the Municipality's audit, are less than 120% of the annual debt 
service requirement for such fiscal year or 100% of the sum of (a) the annual debt service requirement on 
the bonds and all subordinate indebtedness in such fiscal year, (b) the amounts required to be paid 
during such fiscal year into any debt service reserve fund and the contingent fund, and (c) the amount of 
all other charges and liens whatsoever payable out of Revenues during such Fiscal Year, not otherwise 
provided for in this subsection then the Municipality shall, as promptly as possible, request an 
Independent Consulting Engineer to make recommendations as to a revision of such rates, fees and 
charges or methods of operating the System which will result in producing the required amount in the 
following Fiscal Year." 

Auditor's Recommendation 

The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure complfance with adopted procedures 
and to ensure compliance with the revenue bond covenants. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 


Year Ended September 30, 2013 


Section 3: Major Federal Awards Program Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding 2013-5 - SUB RECIPIENT MONITORING 
Finding Type: Material Weakness 

Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program(HOME}/14.239 
Grant Program/CFDA#: Community Development Block Grant - Neighborhood Stabilization 

Program(NSP)/14.218 

Statement of Condition 

The City of Jackson is required to monitor the performance of HOME and NSP sub recipients against 
goals and performance standards. During our audit we noted that the City of Jackson did not perform 
monitoring reviews of HOM E and NSP sub-recipients during FY 2013. 

Cause of Condition 

Lack of compliance with established policies and procedures and understaffing within the department 

Effect of Condition 

No monitoring reviews of HOME and NSP sub-recipients were conducted. 

Criteria 

The City of Jackson's External Funding Policies and Procedures Manual states that "The City of Jackson 
departments are required to monitor activities of their sub-grantees. A department must monitor each 
project, program, sub-grant or activity supported by a federal award to assure compliance with applicable 
federal, state and city regulations and those performance goals are achieved." 

Auditor's Recommendation 

The City should adhere to their adopted procedures and provide the appropriate staff within the 
Development Assistance Department administering the HOME and NSP grants to ensure that the 
monitoring of sub-recipient occurs and that it is within the prescribed time period. 

Finding 2013-6 - REPORTING 
Finding Type: Significant Deficiency 

Grant Program/CFDA#: Economic Development Initiative Grant(EDI}/14.251 

Statement of Condition 

During our review of Progress and Performance Reporting, we noted that the EDI program did not submit 
the required semi-annual Program Progress Reports during the year. 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended September 30,2013 

Cause of Condition 

Noncompliance with the EDI Program Grant Agreement reporting requirements 

Effect of Condition 

Semi~annual Program Progress Reports were not completed and submitted 

Criteria 

The EDI Grant agreement states that "The Grantee shall submit to the Grant Officer a performance report 
every six months after the effective date of the Grant Agreement. Performance reports shall consist of (1) 
a narrative of work accomplished during the reporting period and (2) a completed- Federal Financial 
Report-SF-42S." 

Auditor's Recommendation 

We strongly recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control procedures to ensure that 
the required reports are completed and submitted in a timely manner. 

RECEIVr.~p 

JUN 2 3 2014 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 


YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3D, 2013 


2012-1 FINDING NO.1 - SECTION 2 

Condition: Our audit testing of payroll transactions revealed that adequate documentation was not 
available to support the employees' current pay rate. 

Current Status: Not Corrected, repeated as finding 2013-1 

2012-2 FINDING NO.2 - SEC-nON 3 

Condition: The City of Jackson is required to monitor the performance of HOME sub recipients against 
goals and performance standards and sub recipients are required to submit to the City a copy of their 
annual audit(s) within 180 days after their fiscal year end (if required). 

In our review of sub recipient monitoring reports and audit reports, the City could not provide us 3 out of 
4 monitoring reports and 4 audit reports. 

Current Status: Not Corrected, repeated as finding 2013-5 

2012-3 FINDING NO.3 - SECTION 3 

Condition: CDBG - Eubank Creek Drainage Project 

The City did not comply with the Davis-Bacon Act requirement that certified payroll reports be submitted 
on a weekly basis by contractors and/or subcontractors working on federal financed construction 
contracts in excess of $2,000. . 

Current Status: Corrected 

2012·4 FINDING NO.4 - SECTION 3 

Community Development Block Grant 

Condition: During our review of Performance Reporting, we noted that the City did not submit 2 out of 4 
reports in a timely manner. 

Current Status: Corrected 
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 


SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued) 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


2012-5 FINDING NO.5 - SECTION 3 

Public Safety Partnership Grant 

Condition: The City did not provide the COPS Annual Progress Report to the Department of Justice in 
a timely manner. 

Current Status: Corrected 

2012-6 FINDING NO.6 - SECTION 3 

Community Development Block Grant & Housing Opportunities For Persons With Aids 

Condition: During our review of the Sub award Reporting under the Transparency Act, we noted that 
the City had not reported the required sub recipient/subcontractor information in the Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Sub award Reporting System (FSRS). 

Current Status: Corrected 
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Department of Administration 200 South President Street 
Post Office BOl( 17 
Jackson. Mississippi 39205-0017 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

04/30/14 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

The City of Jackson respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended 
September 30, 2013. 

Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Banks, Finley, White & Company 
308 Highland Park Cove, Ridgeland, MS 39157 

Audit period: Year Ended September 30, 2013 

The findings from the September 30, 2013 schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed 
below. The findings are numbered conSistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule, Section 1 of 
the schedule. Summary of Audit Results, does not include findings and is not addressed. 

2. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

Finding No. 2013-1 - PAYROLL CHANGES IN PERSONNEL FILES 

Recommendation: The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure that the 
Personnel Department updates all changes in an employee's wages and documents these changes in 
the employee's personnel file so that, at any point in time, the employee's current salary can be 
verified. 

Corrective Action: The Personnel Department will strengthen its administrative internal control to 
ensure that all changes in the employee's wages and documents are included In each employee's 
personnel file. This will be done by a systematic audit of each file to ensure that all appropriate 
documentation is included in each individual employee file. 

Finding No. 2013-2 - TIMELY REQUESTS FOR GRANT REIMBURSEMENTS - PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENT 

Recommendation: We strongly recommend that the City implement internal control procedures 
within the Public Works Department that require requests for grant reimbursements to be made in a 
systematic and timely manner. The timely filing of reimbursement requests minimizes the period that 
the City's General funds are used and improves cash management of grant funds and the City's 
available cash resources. 

Corrective Action: The City will implement internal control procedures within the Public Works 
Department to conduct quarterly grant status meetings to determine the program and financial status 
of each grant in order to ensure timely request for reimbursements and other reporting reqUirements. 
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RECEIVED 

JUN 23 2m~ 

Finding No. 2013-3 - NONCOMPLIANCE WITH REVENUE BOND COVENANTS 

Recommendation: The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure compliance 
with adopted procedures and to ensure compliance with the revenue bond covenants. 

Corrective Action: The City raised Water and Sewer rates effective November 19, 2013. It is 
anticipated that with the rate increase, the annual debt service requirement will be met. However, an 
independent consulting engineer will be contracted to make recommendations as to further revision of 
rates, fees, and charges. 

Finding No. 20134 - GRANT ACCOUNTANT NEEDED FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

Recommendation: We strongly recommend that the City provide a Grant Accountant for the grants 
administered by the Public Works Department. That person should be included within the Finance 
Department as stated in the City of Jackson's External Funding Policies and Procedures Manual. 
These changes will help with proper oversight and to ensure that reimbursement requests and 
financial reports are prepared and submitted in a systematic and timely manner. 

Corrective Action: The Public Works Department will work with the Department of Administration to 
secure funding to hire a Grant Accountant for the grants administered by the Public Works 
Department. As per the City's External Funding Policies and Procedures, this Grant Accountant will 
be included in the Finance Department. This will ensure proper oversight and timely reimbursement 
requests and financial reports submitted in a timely and systematic manner. 

3. FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 2013-5 - SUB RECIPIENT MONITORING 

Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) I 14.239 

Grant Program/CFDA#: Community Development Block Grant - Neighborhood 


Stabilization Program (NSP) I 14.218 


Recommendation: The City should adhere to their adopted procedures and provide the appropriate 

staff within the Development Assistance Department administering the HOME and NSP grants to 

ensure that the monitoring of sub-recipient occurs and that it is within the prescribed time period. 


Corrective Action: The Office of Housing and Community Development has implemented a process 

to ensure that the monitoring reqUirements as stipulated in the External Funding Policies and 

Procedures are followed by on site monitoring or desk monitoring depending on risk assessment 

based on pay requests and monthly status reports. 


Finding No. 2013·6 - REPORTING 

Grant Program/CFDA#: Economic Development Initiative Grant (EDI) 114.251 

Recommendation: We strongly recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control 

procedures to ensure that the required reports are completed and submitted in a timely manner. 


Corrective Action: The City will strengthen its administrative procedure and tracking system to 
ensure that the program manager, along with the newly hired grant accountant, submits the required 
program and financial reports as per the grant guideline . 
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If you have any questions or further concerns regarding the corrective actions, please contact me at (601) 
960-1005. ·,cerely,o
C~A 


eA. Unger 
Director of Ad 
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L lUI BANKS, FINLEY, 
l1li WHITE & CO. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTSL 

l INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 

STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

To the Honorable Mayor Tony Yarber and 

Honorable Members of the City Council 

City of Jackson, Mississippi 


We have audited the financial statements of the City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City) as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2014. We 
conducted our audit in accordance auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State 
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and 
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not 
an objective of our audit and, accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. 

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures and our audit of the financial 
statements disclosed no instances of non-compliance with state laws and regulations. 

~.i•... This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Council. management others 
within the organization. Office of the State Auditor and federal awarding agencies and pass-through • 

L 
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

L Ridgeland, Mississippi 
April 30, 2014 

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE. RIDGELAND, MS 39157. (601) 353-5423. FAX (601) 353-5426 
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CITY OF JACKSON 


SCHEDULE OF BONDS OF CITY OFFICIALS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


1) Company: 

limits of liability: 

Posltion 

All employees except City Council (7) 
Mayor, City Administrative Officer, 
Director of Administration, Chief of Police, 
Deputy Chief of Police, City Clerk, 
Deputy Clerk (10) 

2) Company: 

Limits of liability: 

Position 
City Council (7) 

Mayor 

City Administrative Officer 

City Clerk 

Director of Administration 

Chief of Police 

Assistant Police Chief 

Deputy Chief of Police 

Assistant City Clerk 

Deputy Clerk (10) 

Porter's Insurance Agency 

Honesty Blanket 

Position Bond Coverage 

Coverage per each 

$100,000 

Statewide General Insurance 

Surety Bond coverage as follows: 

Coverage per each 
$100,000 

$100,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

Term of bond 

03128/11 • Indefinite 

Term of bond 
07101/13 07101/14 
07104/13·07104/14 

07101/13 - 07101/14 

08/02/13 • 08/02/14 

04/15/13 - 04/15/14 

05/01/13 - 05/01/14 

07101/13 - 07/01/14 

07/20/13 - 07/20/14 

02/24/13 - 01/08/14 

05/10/13 - 05/10/14 

01/11/13·09/04/14 
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